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SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED IS BUILDING

A NEW DESTINATION ON MACAU’S COTAI STRIP

TO HOUSE A UNIQUE COLLECTION OF REFINED
AND REMARKABLE LUXURY EXPERIENCES.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW
el

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

South Shore Holdings Limited (the "Company”) is a hospitality,
enfertainment and construction group that combines a unique

ultra-luxury hotel and entertainment development on Macau's

Cotai Strip ("THE 13 Hotel") with the Hong Kong-based legacy
business of Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited ("PYE").

Macau Market

The Macau gaming market is the single largest gaming
destination in the world. For the year ended December 2017,
Macau generated gross gaming revenues of approximately
HK$258 billion (MOP266 billion or US$33 billion),
approximately 19% increment compared with those for the year
ended 31 December 2016. In addition, Macau generates the
world's highest gaming revenue per visitor. There were 115 hotels
and guesthouses operating in Macau at the end of March 2018
with a total of approximately 39,000 guest rooms. Macau
receives approximately 32,600,000 visitors annually with
approximately 68% of coming from Mainland China and 22%
coming from Hong Kong and Taiwan.

THE 13 Hotel

THE 13 Hotel and entertainment complex, located at the
southern end of Macau's famous Cotai Strip, houses a unique
collection of refined and remarkable luxury experiences.
Designed by internationally acclaimed luxury architect, Peter
Marino, it will include a hotel with about 200 duplex suites,
limited edition products from the major luxury brands and the
only branch of a legendary Paris institution of haute cuisine.

The Company appointed internationally acclaimed architect
Peter Marino as the Executive Design Theme Architect and the
Interior Design Theme Consultant. Mr Marino is the principal

of Peter Marino Architect PLLC, an architecture, planning and
design firm based in New York City, whose clients include some
of the most iconic names in the fashion and art worlds. He is
responsible for the flagship stores of many of the world’s leading
luxury brands including Chanel, Louis Vuitton, Christian Dior,
Ermenegildo Zegna, Graff and Loewe.

With a gross floor area of approximately 945,079 square feet,
THE 13 Hotel is designed to ensure the highest level of luxury
and privacy, THE 13 Hotel will offer approximately 200 duplex
suites and villas beginning at about 520 square feet ranging up
to about 9,870 square feet and a royal villa of about 19,838
square feet. Guests will arrive in one of the hotel's fleet of
signature-red Rolls-Royce extended wheel base Phantoms with

the option for private check in. All guests will arrive in their rooms

via lifts that open directly into the suites.
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The Restaurant

The fabled L'Ambroisie in Paris, which has held three Michelin
stars since 1988, will open its only other branch in THE 13 Hotel.
With only approximately 100 seats, the critically acclaimed
Paris restaurant is one of the most sought-after reservations in
the world.

PYE

PYE is a 51.76% owned subsidiary of the Company and is one
of the leading management contractors in Hong Kong and
Macau. PYE traces its origins fo Shanghai in 1946 and has
played a major role in shaping the skyline and world-class
infrastructure of Hong Kong over the past six decades.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, PYE is dedicated to providing
full-fledged engineering and property services, with operations
in Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai, Hangzhou, Guangzhou,
Chongging, Nantong, Shenzhen, Macau and Singapore.

With more than seven decades of experiences, PYE prides itself
on its ability to deliver integrated property development solutions
from concept to completion as well as on-going management.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
S ik

Percentage
2018 2017 change
—E—N\E "E—tF EHEE
PYE segment revenue (HK$'million) REZZEHIBIA (BEEIT) 6,799.5 6,953.8 (2%)
PYE segment profit (HK$' million) RERZDIEN (BEET) 113.4 128.7 (12%)
Loss before interest and tax (HK$' million) KA BENREIEE (BEETT) (1,376.2) (23.8) 5,682%
Loss forl’rh'e }/ear attributable to shareholders RS RS IS (E ST (1,573.8) (44.6) 34099
(HK$'million)
Shares outstanding (million) BITRO (BER) 1,013 220* 360%
Net asset value per share (HK$) EREERE (B) 5.1 25.8* (80%)
Loss per share (HK cents) - Basic EREBE B — &K (630.5) (20.5)* 2,976%
Total assets (HK$'million) wmEEBR (EBED) 13,945.2 13,523.8 3%
Equity ol’r’rr'ib.u’rdb|e to shareholders R (SRS (B D) 5,144.6 5,680.4 (9%)
(HKS$ 'million)
K Be ORd) i
Operating cash (outflow) inflow (HK$ million) tﬁgﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ O ) A (89.6) 29.8 Kgéﬁg
Net cash inflow (outflow) (HK$ million) BIRERA CRE) (BEB7T) 806.4 (577.9) \N/A
TEA
Total debts/total assets ratio mal feEELR 0.35 0.33 6%
* Number of shares outstanding, net asset value per share *EBECES T RB =+ HLEFECETRMOE
and basic loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2017 B. BREEFENESREAGBECOIEHEBHARE,
have been adjusted retrospectively to reflect the impact of URMEE—E—N\F=B=+—HILFEMET
capital reorganisation and rights issue effected during the BAEE N MR e B,
year ended 31 March 2018.
6
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC* LOSS FOR THE YEAR NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE*
SREBE-E4x ATTRIBUTABLE TO BREERE"
SHAREHOLDERS
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The figures have been adjusted retrospectively to reflect the impact of capital reorganisation and rights issue effected during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

' FZEHFEMFHENRER, URMBE_F—/\F=RB=+—HILFEMETRAZERHE TE,

7

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED




BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS
e

THE 13 Hofel
e June 2017

o the Company agreed to sell its indirect interests of
51.76% in PYE to Precious Year Limited and Tycoon
Bliss Limited for a consideration of HK$300 million,
and the Company received a deposit of HK$179 million

e March 2018

e The Company raised net proceeds of approximately
HK$973 million for hotel development project through

rights issue
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BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS
e i

PYE

Construction management contracting projects secured during

the year and up to date of this report:

Construction of footbridge and civil works and demolition
works for office development at 2 Murray Road, Central

Construction of public rental housing development at
Queen's Hill Site 1 Phases 2, 4 & 5 and portion of Phase 6

cum alteration and addition works at Ching Ho Estate

Construction of subsidised sale flats development at Tseung

Kwan O Area 65C2 Phases 1 and 2

Construction of subsidised sale flats development at Tung

Chung Area 27
Fitting out works for Grand Lisboa Palace at Cotai, Macau

Foundation works for the proposed deve|opmen’r at

NKIL6562 & NKIL6565, Kai Tak
Hotel development at 25-31 Tyrwhitt Road, Singapore

Main contract for redevelopment at 205-211A Hai Tan
Street, Sham Shui Po

Main contract for residential cleve|opmenf at junction of

Shouson Hill Road West and Wong Chuk Hang Path

Main contract for SCAA Grandstand South at 88 Caroline
Hill Road, Causeway Bay
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BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS
e

Main contract works for the hotel development at 320 -

330A Lockhart Road, Wan Chai

Main contract works (Lot 8) for the Concordia
Comprehensive Development at Coloane, Macau

Main contract works for residential and commercial
re-development at 13 - 15 Sze Shan Street, Yau Tong

Main contract works for residential development at Castle

Peak Road - Castle Peak Bay, Area 48, Tuen Mun

Main contract works for residential development at Castle

Peak Road - Tai Lam, Area 55, Siu Sau, Tuen Mun

Main contract works for residential development at 9 Sai

Wan Ho Street, Shau Kei Wan

Management contract for refurbishment at 5 A Kung

Ngam Village Road, Shau Kei Wan
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRS

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,
Unique Hotel Project in Macau

Development of our hotel project is nearing completion but has
been delayed due to delays in putting in place the final stage of
necessary funding. We have successfully completed rights issue
to raise net proceeds of approximately HK$973 million for the
hotel project in March 2018, while the opening of hotel is subject
to confirmation from key contractors and suppliers and also

the permission of relevant hotel licence obtained from Macau

government.

The rights issue is fully underwritten and fully supported by the
shareholders and we hope all of you will continue to support the
Company and the completion of the hotel project in Macau.

Disposal of 51.76% interests in Paul Y. Engineering Group
("PYE")

On 28 June 2017, the Company agreed to sell its indirect
interests of 51.76% in PYE to Precious Year Limited and Tycoon
Bliss Limited for a consideration of HK$300 million, and the
Company received a deposit of HK$179 million. The disposal is
approved by the shareholders in a special disposal meeting held
on 8 May 2018. The completion of the Disposal is subject to the
fulfilment of certain conditions. For further details please refer to
the circular of the Company dated 28 March 2018.

As the Company is nearing the opening of the hotel, we
believe it is timely for the disposal to take place so that the
management team can focus more time and resources on the
core hotel business.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRS

Consolidated Figures

We recorded a basic loss per share of 630.5 HK cents in 2017
versus basic loss per share of 20.5 HK cents in 2017 (2017
figure is adjusted retrospectively to reflect the impact of share
consolidation and rights issue effected during the year ended 31
March 2018). The significant change in basic loss per share was
primarily due to the one-off impairment loss in relation to hotel
development segment as recorded in current year.

We expect consolidated losses to continue until the hotel is
operational and generating revenue. We believe that our niche
strategy targeting a g|ob0| clientele of customers seeking a
unique luxury experience remains well positioned in the Macau

market.

Again, as at year ended 31 March 2018, we will not pay a
dividend as we are still developing the hotel.

Finally, we thank our employees for their dedication and hard

WOI’l(, Oﬂd our shdre|'10|ders, customers Gﬂd business porfners FOI’

their continued support.

Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
TTBURRIRN S

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

| am pleased to report the annual results of South Shore
Holdings Limited (the "Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the "Group’) for the year ended 31 March 2018, together with
comparative figures for 2017. The consolidated statement of
profif or |oss, the consolidated statement of profif or loss and
other comprehensive income, financial position, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Group, all of which are audited,
together with explanatory notes, are set out on pages 108 to
268 of this annual report, which have been reviewed by the
Company's Audit Committee.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND
POSITIONS

Hotel Development

The Group is building an exclusive luxury hotel and
enfertainment complex on a site of some 65,000 square feet
located on the Cotai Strip of Macau ("THE 13 Hotel").

Following the completion of the rights issue in March 2018, the
Company raised net proceeds of approximately HK$973 million.
With these funds, the Company has focused on completing the
fit-out, furnishing and installation of operating equipment at
THE 13 Hotel in preparation for hotel licensing inspections. On 4
June 2018, the Macau Government Tourism Office (MGTQO")
commenced the inspection process for granting of the required
licenses, namely the licenses for "Hotel”, "F&Bs”, "Health Club”
and "Bar”. All the required license inspections (other than the
hotel license) have in general been passed. Passing the hotel
license requires us to address the comments and rectify the
defects denoted during the inspection. These comments and
defects relate mainly to the following aspects:

(a) Activation and operating of the passenger lifts;

(b) Touching up the defective finishes to guestrooms and
rectification of the defects of in-room chihfies, inc|uo|ing
switches, TVs and so on; and

(c) Completion of the minor outstanding works for the luggage
room, cloak rooms, business center, chonging room and
other areas in the podium of THE 13 Hotel.

It is envisaged that these defective works can be remedied and
completed before the targeted MGTO re-inspection date, which
is now scheduled for 23 July 2018. The Company expects that alll
the required licenses will be granted on around 25 July 2018 and
THE 13 Hotel will open on 31 July 2018 (which may be further
revised according to the actual circumstances in respect of the
development).
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
TR TR &

As at 31 March 2018, the hotel development segment recorded
assets of approximately HK$8,988 million after an impairment
loss of approximately HK$1,203 million to reflect the valuation
provided by an independent valuer at valuation date of 31 May
2018. Further details are explained in section “Impairment loss
on hotel development segment” below. The hotel development
assets include cost of |c1nc|, hotel under deve|opmenf, deposifs
paid for acquisition of hotel fixture, furniture and equipment in
Macau.

The hotel development segment also recorded liabilities of
approximately HK$4,255 million which include liability portion
of convertible bonds issued for financing the hotel development
and borrowings for the hotel development.

There was segment loss of approximately HK$1,532 million for
the year ended 31 March 2018 which represent the impairment
loss and pre-opening expenses recorded in the current year.

Engineering Business - PYE
In the year under review, PYE and its subsidiaries ("PYE Group")

benefitted from both the macro-economic and advocated
policies of the HKSAR Government. We performed well with
a stable volume of construction works and a steady increase

in contract projects in a challenging environment. Competition
within the industry intensified particularly in pricing and human
resources. Rising market demand for construction professionals
and skilled labour continued to drive up costs. Excellence is

our cornerstone, and in response, we strengthened operational
and project management performance by applying advanced
technology in our daily operation.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, segment revenue at PYE
Group was approximately HK$6,800 million (2017: HK$6,954
million including approximately HK$827 million for the Hotel
project in Macau), representing a decrease of approximately 2%
from that of the last year. Segment operating profit decreased
approximately 12% to approximately HK$113 million (2017:
HK$129 million including approximately HK$35 million for the
Hotel project in Macau) as a result of increase in staff costs and
legal and professional fees.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
TTEUR RS

Fund Raising Activities

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company proposed
a rights issue of 920,867,010 rights issue shares at HK$1.10 per
rights issue share on the basis of 10 rights issue shares for every 1
share held by shareholders. Details of the rights issue are set out
in the circular of the Company dated 24 January 2018.

The rights issue was completed on 20 March 2018 and the net
proceed of approximately HK$973 miillion was raised. Up to the
date of this report, a total of approximately HK$738 million was
used out of such net proceeds, in which approximately HK$293
million was used for decoration, approximately HK$126 million
was used for furniture, fixtures and equipment, approximately
HK$85 million was used for operating supplies and equipment,
approximately HK$126 million was used for hotel operation
preparation costs and approximately HK$108 million was paid
for general working capital, which were applied consistently

with the intended uses previously disclosed in the circular of

the Company dated 24 January 2018. The remaining of
approximately HK$235 million will be utilized as intended.

Sale of Engineering Business - PYE

On 28 June 2017, a subsidiary of the Company entered into sale
and purchase agreements in respect of the disposal of its entire
51.76% interests in PYE, an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
to Precious Year Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of ITC
Properties Group Limited ("ITCP”), a listed company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 199), and
Tycoon Bliss Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Chan
Fut Yan, the deputy chairman and executive director of PYE
and also the managing director and executive director of ITCP,
for a total consideration of HK$300,000,000 (the “Disposal”).

As at 31 March 2018, deposits of HK$179,000,000 were
received pursuant to the sale and purchase agreements.
Subsequent to the reporting period, the Company’s shareholders
approved the Disposal in a special general meeting held on

8 May 2018. The completion of the Disposal is subject to the
fulfilment of certain conditions. For further details please refer to
the circular of the Company dated 28 March 2018.

The Group

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group's consolidated
revenue including joint operations increased to approximately

HK$6,800 million (2017: HK$6,127 million).

Gross profit increased to approximately HK$299 million (2017
HK$247 million) primarily due to gain from final account
settlement. Gross profit margin increased to 4.4% (2017: 4.0%).
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Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year

was approximately HK$1,574 million (2017: HK$45 million),
representing an increase of approximately 34 times resulting
mainly from the impairment loss of HK$1,203 million recognized
on hotel under development and the increase in pre-opening
expenses for the hotel development segment compared with last
year. Basic loss per share was 630.5 HK cents.

The Group recorded total assets of approximately HK$13,945
million as at 31 March 2018, an approximately 3% increment
compored with the prior year. The equity attributable to owners
of the Company decreased 0pproximofe|y 9% to opproximofe|y
HK$5,145 million which was mainly due to loss for the year
resuHing from the hotel deve|opmenf segment but net of the
equity raised from issue of rights issue shares in March 2018.

Net cash outflow from operating activities was about HK$90
million and net cash outflow in respect of investing activities
was approximately HK$110 million. Net cash inflow in respect
of financing activities was approximately HK$1,006 million,
resulting in a net increase in cash and cash equivalents of about
HK$806 million for the Group for the year ended 31 March
2018.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Hotel Development

Following the rights issue, the Company has focused on
completing remaining works and installation of furniture, fixtures
and equipment and operating supplies and equipment in
preparation for hotel licensing inspections by the MGTO. These
inspections commenced on 4 June 2018. Due to additional time
is required for completing defective works after the inspection by
MGTO, the Company has further revised the expected opening
date of THE 13 Hotel to 31 July 2018 (which may be further
revised according to the actual circumstances in respect of the

development).

The number of staff in hotel segment was approximately 230 by
the end of March 2018.

Engineering Business - PYE

Management Contracting division remained the core business
and the major contributor of revenue this year. Revenue of this
division amounted to approximately HK$6,799 million (2017
HK$6,951 million), down by about 2%. The revenue for last year
included approximately HK$827 million for the Hotel project

in Macau. It reported an operating profit of approximately
HK$118 million (2017: HK$126 million). The operating profit for
last year included approximately HK$35 million for the Hotel
project in Macau. As at 31 March 2018, the value of contracts
on hand was approximately HK$31,538 million, while the value
of works remaining had stood at approximately HK$15,090
million.
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During the year under review, the Management Contracting
division secured new construction contracts with an aggregate
value of approximately HK$9,844 million, representing an
increase of 0pproxim0’re|y 2% as compored to the amount of

approximately HK$9,657 million for last year. Subsequent to the
year end, the division secured further contracts of approximately
HK$3,436 million. Set out below are some of the new contracts

secured during the year and up to the date of this report:

Construction of footbridge and civil works and demolition
works for office development at 2 Murray Road, Central
Construction of public rental housing development at

Queen's Hill Site 1 Phases 2, 4 & 5 and portion of Phase 6
cum alteration and addition works at Ching Ho Estate

Construction of subsidised sale flats development at Tseung

Kwan O Area 65C2 Phases 1 and 2
Construction of subsidised sale flats development at Tung

Chung Area 27

Fitting out works for Grand Lisboa Palace at Cotai, Macau

Foundation works for the proposed development at
NKIL6562 & NKIL6565, Kai Tak
Hotel development at 25-31 Tyrwhitt Road, Singapore
Main contract for redevelopment at 205-211A Hai Tan
Street, Sham Shui Po
Main contract for residential cleve|opmenf at junction of
Shouson Hill Road West and Wong Chuk Hang Path
Main contract for SCAA Grandstand South at 88 Caroline
Hill Road, Causeway Bay
Main contract works for the hotel development at 320 -
330A Lockhart Road, Wan Chai
Main contract works (Lot 8) for the Concordia
Comprehensive Development at Coloane, Macau
Main contract works for residential and commercial
re-development at 13 - 15 Sze Shan Street, Yau Tong
Main contract works for residential development at Castle
Peak Road - Castle Peak Bay, Area 48, Tuen Mun

+ Main contract works for residential development at Castle
Peak Road - Tai Lam, Area 55, Siu Sau, Tuen Mun

+ Main contract works for residential development at 9 Sai
Wan Ho Street, Shau Kei Wan

+ Management contract for refurbishment at 5 A Kung

Ngam Village Road, Shau Kei Wan
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The Property Development Management division reported a
loss of approximately HK$7 million for the year under review.
The value of contracts on hand for Property Development
Management division at the year end was insignificant.

The Property Investment division reported a profit, through

its joint venture, of approximately HK$2 million for the year
under review. The joint venture holds an investment property

in Hangzhou, the Pioneer Technology Building, which is an
office building with gross floor area of about 20,000 square
meters. The building generated rental income of about HK$12
million (2017: HK$12 miillion) during the year and its occupancy
reached about 90% as at 31 March 2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no major subsequent events since the end of the

reporting period and up to the date of this report.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group maintains a variety of credit facilities to meet
requirements for working capital. At 31 March 2018, cash, bank

balances and deposits stood at approximately HK$1,188 million,

of which approximately HK$1,128 million, HK$40 million,
HK$12 million, HK$1 million, HK$3 million and HK$4 million
were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi, Macau
Patacas, Singapore Dollars, Malaysian Ringgit and United
States Dollars respectively.

The Group had total borrowings of approximately HK$4,144
million at year-end of which approximately HK$4,116 million
are repayable within one year. In addition, the Group also
has outstanding convertible bonds with a face value of
approximately HK$2,219 million and a liability component
as at 31 March 2018 of approximately HK$685 million. The
convertible bonds mature in February 2025.

As at 31 March 2018, other than the convertible bonds, the
Group's variable-rate borrowings and fixed-rate borrowings
are approximately HK$3,829 million and HK$315 million
respectively. The convertible bonds are interest free. Al
borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The
Group's ratio of total debt to total assets, based on total

debt of approximately HK$4,829 million and total assets

of approximately HK$13,945 million, slightly increased from
approximately 33% as at 31 March 2017 to approximately 35%
as at 31 March 2018.

As of 31 March 2018, the Group's current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately HK$3,014 million and the
Group had outstanding capital commitments of approximately

HK$209 million.
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In March 2018, the Company completed the issue of rights issue
shares and raised gross proceeds of approximately HK$1,013

million in order to meet its working capital and investment needs.

In addition the Group also applied for a further extension of the
Hotel opening date covenant to July 2018 under the HK$3,042
million loan facility extended by a Mainland-Chinese Bank.

Lastly, the Group is also working to obtain further facilities after
opening the Hotel, which will enhance the |iquic|i’ry of the Group

upon commencement of operations.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON HOTEL DEVELOPMENT
SEGMENT

Reasons and details of circumstances leading to impairment

As part of the audit process, the Group conducted an
impairment test on the assets of hotel development segment
according to the accounting standards and engaged an
independent valuer to assess the project value of THE 13 Hotel
project (the "Project”).

In accordance with the "Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 -
Impairment of Assets’, an entity shall assess at the end of each
reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists (such as asset’s
value has declined significantly more than would be expected
as a result of the passage of time or normal use and significant
changes with an adverse effect on the entity have taken place),
the entity shall estimate the recoverable amount of the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its book

value, impairment loss should be made based on the difference

between the recoverable amount of the asset and its book value.

According to the valuation report prepared by the independent
valuer dated 27 June 2018 (“June Valuation Report”), the value
of the Project was approximately HK$8,988,000,000 as at
31 May 2018 which showed an indication of impairment as at
31 March 2018 in accordance with the "Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 36".

In view of the anticipated drop of forecasted revenue of the
Hotel (the reasons of which are set out under the sub-section
headed "Reason of significant changes in the value of inputs
and assumptions adopted in current period from previous
period” below), the Group accordingly made an impairment

of approximately HK$1,203 million on the carrying amount

of assets under the hotel development segment in its financial
accounts for the year ended 31 March 2018, so as to taking into
account the above factor in the financial positions of the Group
as at 31 March 2018.
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Valuation methodology, value of inputs and basis and
assumptions

The valuation mefhodobgy, value of inputs in the current and
previous year used in the valuations together with the basis and

assumption are as follows:

HER A HEBABBEBEERFTAZEERRR

BEFE GEMAREAFERTFECGABBEE

BREENRRNOT

June Valuation Report Previous Year Valuation Report

Valuation Methodology HEHE
Discount Rate FhIRE
Number of Gaming Tables BErRE 8
Commencement of Gaming Operation EHEREP S
Sale Revenue (HK$ million) & HEWA (BEBET)

Growth Rate Mg R

Year B—F

Year 2 BF

Year 3 B

Year 4 EF

Year 5 BHEF

There is no change in valuation method used by the valuers for

current year and previous year.

Reasons of significant changes in the value of inputs and
assumptions adopted in current period from previous period

The reasons for the significant changes in the value of the
inputs and assumptions adopted in current period from those

previously adopted are as follows:

(a) In view of the upcoming new luxury casino hotels to be
completed in Macau which will upgrade the quality of their
gaming and accommodation facilities and their quality
of services, the Company has seen that infense market
competition in premium-mass segment was ramping

up during the financial year 2017/18. To enhance the

competitiveness of the Project and to cater for the increasing

sophisticated needs of the target customers, the Company
has revised the operating forecast of the Project; and

(b) At the time of the recent fund-raising exercise by rights issue,

the Company expected the casino to open by 31 March
2019, which is the second year of THE 13 Hotel opening.
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8,659.70 (5%) 12,542.81 (4%)
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Events and circumstances after receiving the valuation report
dated 24 January 2018

The value of the Project as reported in the valuation report
issued on 24 January 2018 (which was included in the circular
of the Company dated 24 January 2018) is approximately
HK$8,988,000,000 based on the assumption that the
concessionaire/sub-concessionaire will secure the right to locate
a total of 66 gaming tables in the Project, being the maximum
number con’remp|ofec| between a subsdiory of the Company

and the concessionaire/sub-concessionaire.

After receiving the valuation report dated 24 January 2018, the
Company has been anticipating that the value of the Project will
increase in view of the upward trend of the hotel and gaming
industry in Macau. The Directors therefore chose to observe the
market trend and deferred the decision on any impairment until

announcement of annual results in June 2018.

There are no significant changes in the value of the Project as
reported in the valuation report dated 24 January 2018 and the
value of the Project as reported in the June Valuation Report
(with valuation date of 31 May 2018).

EMPLOYEES

The Group had 1,690 full-time employees, including the
Directors of the Group but excluding contracted casual labour

in Macau, as at 31 March 2018. The Group offers competitive
remuneration packages based on overall market rates, employee
performance, and the performance of the Group. Remuneration
packages are comprised of salary, performance-based bonuses,
and other benefits including training, provident funds and
medical coverage. Three share incentive schemes (namely share
option scheme, share award scheme and share financing plan)
are in place to motivate and reward eligible employees.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group pledged hotel under
development, prepaid land lease payments, property, plant

and equipment, inventories and bank deposits of approximately
HK$6,220 million, HK$1,491 million, HK$159 million, HK$31
million and HK$17 million, respectively, and charged the Group's
benefits over certain construction contracts and the Group's
interests over certain subsidiaries to secure the general banking
and other facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had contingent liabilities in respect of indemnities
of approximately HK$45 million issued to financial institutions
for bonds on construction contracts of joint operations and
contingent liabilities in respect of corporate guarantee of
approximately HK$14 million issued to a bank for general
banking facilities granted to an associate as at 31 March 2018

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has expenditure contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment and
hotel under development of approximately HK$111 million and
HK$98 million respectively.
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SECURITIES IN ISSUE

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company undertook
a capital reorganisation (the "Capital Reorganisation”)
comprising of (i) a share consolidation of every ten shares of
HK$2.00 each in the issued and unissued share capital of the
Company into one consolidated share of HK$20.00 in the
issued and unissued share capital of the Company; (i) a capital
reduction involving reduction of the issued share capital of the
Company through cancelling the paid-up capital to the extent
of HK$19.80, resulting in the reduction in the nominal value

of each issued share from HK$20.00 to HK$0.20; and (i) a
subdivision of every unissued consolidated share of HK$20.00
each into 100 shares of HK$0.20 each. Upon completion of
the Capital Reorganisation, the Company issued 920,867,010
rights issue shares in March 2018 on the basis of ten rights issue
shares for every one share held (the "Rights Issue”).

During the year, 31,634,500 share options (pre-adjusted),
973,400 share options (adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February 2018) and
786,907 share options (adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February 2018 and the
completion of the Rights Issue on 20 March 2018) lapsed.

As at 31 March 2018, there were 1,012,953,711 shares in issue.
Additional shares may be issued by way of: i) exercise of share
options of the Company for up to 11,246,173 shares of the
Company depending on the fulfilment of vesting conditions
attached to the options; and i) conversion of three 2025
convertible bonds which if fully converted would result in the
issuance of 231,632,026 shares of the Company.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for

the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were no purchases,

sales or redemptions by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,
of the Company’s listed securities.

OUTLOOK

Following strong economic performance in 2017 and QI

2018, both the US and China are focused on sustaining stable
late-cycle economic growth rather than seeking higher growth
numbers. With economies at or nearing full employment both
central banks are focused on monetary stability and debt
reduc’rion, whether it be the central bank balance sheet or in
the broader economy. This secular change is coming after a
decade of unconventional monetary policy and during a period
of growing trade friction and uncertainty led by the US. While
most baseline global macroeconomic forecasts remain sanguine
with global growth slowing slightly in 2019, the scope of the
potential secular changes also leaves open the possibility of

unpredictable outcomes.

Hotel Development

Overall Macau gross gaming revenue ("GGR") continued to
grow robustly in 2017. GGR for the year 2017 recording an
increase of 19.1% when compared to the year 2016 and the five
months ended May 2018 recorded year-on-year ("Y-O-Y")
growth of 20.1%. October 2017 GGR was the highest recorded

in Macau since January 2015.

Visitation to Macau for the year 2017 recorded an increase
of 5.4% when compared to the year 2016 and recorded an
increase of 7.8% YQY for the five months ended May 2018.

Macau GGR is rebounding on the back of increasing nominal
Gross Domestic Product ("GDP") growth in China and greater
political stability in China following the 13th National People’s
Congress. According to OECD data, in 2017, China recorded
11.2% year on year nominal GDP growth vs. 8.0% for 2016. The
OECD is forecast 10.8% growth for 2018.
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Engineering Business - PYE

Hampered by land constraints, the HKSAR government
encountered various challenges in devising housing policies.

In August 2017, the Task Force on Land Supply was set up

to garner broad public consensus on land-supply strategies.
We believe that the government will be able to work out
pragmatic medium to long-term land-supply solutions to meet
residential unit targets. In addition, it is expecfecl that more
infrastructure projects will be put on stream both in Hong Kong
and Macau. We are optimistic about the long-term outlook
for the construction sector in which we are one of the leading

participants.

As a leading integrated contracting services company in

Hong Kong, the Group keeps abreast of industry trends and
developments and devotes considerable resources to innovation
research and development. We have in place an entire blueprint
for innovation research and digital technology applications for
construction. For example, our "BIM for All to Use” program
keeps us at technology’s cutting edge by regularly inviting
experts to share their BIM knowledge with staff from various
departments. Technological advancements such as big data and
cloud computing, drones, 3D scanning and printing, real-time
face recognition, and Augmented Redlity (AR) Technology

are applied in our day to day work, enhancing efficiency

and reducing construction time. Further, Virtual Reality (VR)
Technology is applied in a variety of fields from safety training
to site safety.

While macro-economic and industry uncertainties are part of
the course, the business legacy and creative response of an
enterprise are dependent on the cohesive efforts of the team

to move forward. Solidarity and the sharing of unified beliefs
and values make the crucial difference. Being pragmatic, our
Group will continue to think boldly and creatively, making every
endeavour to explore opportunities and advancements, to
maximise the interests of our stakeholders.

Walter Craig Power
Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director)

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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Peter Lee Coker Jr., aged 49, has been the Joint Chairman (Executive Director)

of the Company since February 2013 and Chairman (Executive Committee) of

the Company since 25 January 2018. He is also the Chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Company, and a member of the Finance and Investment
Committee and Disclosures Committee of the Company, and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 27 years of experience in the finance and
investment industries. He is the Managing Partner of Pacific Advisers, and is also

a partner of TDR Capital Investment Ltd (a Shenzhen-based private equity firm).
Mr Coker served as an officer of the Bridge Companies prior to joining Wellington
Securities (New Zealand) in 2002. During his service with the Bridge Companies,
Mr Coker held the title of Managing Director-Asia, Chief Executive Officer of
E-Bridge and Managing Director of Bridge Asia where he was responsible for the
firm's equity business in Japan and South East Asia/Australia. From 2000 to 2001,
Mr Coker served as the Chairman of IRESS Market Technology Limited (formerly
BridgeDFS) (ASX: IRE). From 2002 to 2005, Mr Coker served as the Chairman of
Wellington Securities (New Zealand). From 2006 to 2009, Mr Coker served as the
Chairman of Global Trading Offshore Pte (Singapore). Mr Coker graduated from
Lehigh University in the United States with a Bachelor of Arts degree in 1990.

MR PETER LEE COKER JR.
PETER LEE COKERJR. %t4E Peter Lee Coker Jr., 495%, B - T —=—F _HEHEARBAZHELRE
BTES) MEZE—/\F—A-TARRBHIARBEZEE BITE
B, TAARBCHTEEE TR NARNE cHBRREEZE G
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EVEE IR7FKER, A Pacific Adveriersw TIES A, JRATDR Capital
Investment Ltd (—EI ISR FABRIERENE]) 2 5% Ao CokerftE
R ZEE Z F 1 A Wellington Securities (778 ) 5 S #& T Bridge Companies
Z =M E. FBridge Companies T B HA], Coker’t 4 & #2{LE-Bridge”
B0 18 2 S A A TE 3047 AR A LU N7 Bridge Asiar S8 2HRICTE, BEHA
NEmEL, BN N EIRERE X, BB EEFE ST —F,
Coker4't HE#ETIRESS Market Technology Limited (87 #8BridgeDFS) CELMEE 22
FTIRE) 2 E£E, B FF - FZF " EFEF R, CokerdLEEIWellington
Securities (FTFHE) w F[F. BEBNFE_FFNF, CokerfoEIHEMT
Global Trading Offshore Pte ($TI13) 2 F[F. Cokerft R — NN BFEEZE
R ZE B Lehigh University, #5832 4B 1,

Chairman (Executive Director)

TE @ITESR)
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Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, aged 67, is the Deputy Chairman (Executive Director) of the
Company. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee, Finance and Investment Committee, Disclosures Committee,

Corporate Governance Committee, PYE Committee and Executive Committee

of the Company. He is also the Deputy Chairman and non-executive director

of a subsidiary of the Company and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr Lau has over 40 years' international corporate development and
management experience in infrastructure c|eve|opmenfs as well as construction and
engineering services invo|ving the road, rail, port, power, telecommunications, mining
and resources sectors in the Asia Pacific Region. Mr Lau has been the Deputy
Chairman of the Company since January 2005. He has been re-designated from
Non-Executive Director of the Company to Executive Director of the Company since
February 2013. Mr Lau is the Chairman and Managing Director of PY| Corporation
Limited (0498.HK), a significant developer and operator of major bulk cargo

ports in the Yangtze River Region in China. He is also the Deputy Chairman and

non-executive director of Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (0310.HK) and
he was an independent non-executive director of China National Building Material
Company Limited (3323.HK) until November 2011. Mr Lau is also a director of

MR LAU KO YUEN, TOM Circle Swing Limited, Rally Praise Limited, Empire City International Limited and
=R TE Affluent Talent Limited, all of which have interests in the shares/underlying shares

Deputy Chairman (Executive Director) of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of

2lEfE FTES) Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Walter Craig Power, aged 64, has been the Chief Executive Officer (Executive
Director) of the Company since February 2013. He is also a member of the Finance
and Investment Committee and Executive Committee of the Company, and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is one of the longest serving
casino executive expatriates in Macau's gaming industry. Arrived in Macau in
January 2003, Mr Power has held the positions of Chief Operating Officer of New
Cotai Entertainment, an investor and developer of Macau Studio City, as well as
Senior Vice President of Operations of Venetian Macau Limited. Mr Power was
instrumental to the success of the deve|opmenf, opening and operation of the Sands,
the first western casino in Macau. During his tenure at the Sands, he was responsible
for casino operations, hotel operations, all food and beverage outlets and security
operations. He was also a member of the Compliance and Credit Committee. Being
one of first western executives to enter the Macau gaming market, and having
worked in Macau for over fourteen years, Mr Power is known infernaﬁona”y for his
extensive knowledge of Macau gaming to include junket, VIP, and mass market

operations. A 26-year gaming indusfry veteran, Mr Power accumulated extensive
international gaming experience through executive operational positions at casino
resorts in the United States, Argentina, South Africa and the Philippines, in addition

MR WALTER CRAIG POWER to his work in Macau. Mr Power, a former United States Marine Corps Major and
WALTER CRAIG POWER 54 Naval Aviator, received his BA and MBA from the University of Michigan. He is also
Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director) a graduate of the casino industry’s Executive Development Program offered by the

THS: (S TEE) University of Nevada/Reno.
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James Chiu, OBE, JP, aged 79, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company since March 2006. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and PYE Committee
of the Company. He is also the Chairman and independent non-executive director
of a subsidiary of the Company, and an independent non-executive director of a
subsidiary of the Company. Ir Chiu has served Hong Kong's construction industry for
54 years. He was the Managing Director of the General Electric Company of Hong
Kong Limited from 1984 to0 1998.

Ir Chiu has held a number of important industry roles. He was a president of The
Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors Limited, The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and a Chairman of the British Chamber of
Commerce in Hong Kong. Currently, he is a Council Member of Hong Kong
Electrical & Mechanical Contractors Association and Hong Kong Electrical
Contractors’ Association Limited.

Ir Chiu is an Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, and a

Fellow of Hong Kong Academy of Engineering Sciences.

IR JAMES CHIU

S TR WIS, OBE, JP, 798, BI-BEAES B HEANEZETIRIT
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lain Ferguson Bruce, aged 77, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director

of the Company since January 2005. He is also the Chairman of the Finance

and Investment Committee and Disclosures Committee of the Company, and a
member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee and PYE Committee of the Company. He is also an independent
non-executive director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr Bruce joined KPMG in
Hong Kong in 1964 and was elected to its partnership in 1971. He was the Senior
Partner of KPMG from 1991 until his retirement in 1996 and served as Chairman of
KPMG Asia Pacific from 1993 t0 1997. Since 1964, Mr Bruce has been a member

of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland, and is a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants with over 50 years of international
experience in accounting and consulting. He is also a fellow of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors, and the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He is
an Independent Non-Executive Director of MSIG Insurance (Hong Kong) Limited.
Mr Bruce serves as an Independent Non-Executive Director on the boards of several
publicly listed companies in Hong Kong, including, Wing On Company International
Limited (0289.HK), Tencent Holdings Limited (0700.HK) and Goodbaby
International Holdings Limited (1086.HK). He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Yingli Green Energy Holding Company Limited, a company whose

MRIAIN FERGUSON BRUCE shares are traded on the New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Bruce was an Independent

mRIEE Non-Executive Director of China Medical Technologies, Inc., a China-based
Independent Non-Executive Director medical device company that was listed on NASDAQ, up to 3 July 2012. He was
B I TEE an Independent Non-Executive Director of Vitasoy International Holdings Limited

(0345.HK) and retired from that company’s board on 4 September 2014, and

was the Chairman of KCS Limited until 1 August 2015. He was an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Sands China Ltd. 1928 .HK) until 11 March 2016. He
was also a Non-Executive Director of Noble Group Limited, effective from 1 March
2017, a company whose shares are listed on The Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited, and resigned from that company’s board on 11 May 2017. He was
also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited, and
resigned from that company’s board on 2 August 2017.
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Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP, aged 73, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since January 2005. He is also the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee of the Company, and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and PYE Committee of the Company. He is also an
independent non-executive director of a subsidiary of the Company. Professor Lee
is the chair professor of geotechnical engineering and is the Chancellor of the Chu
Hai College of Higher Education. He is also an academician of Chinese Academy
of Engineering. Professor Lee graduated from The University of Hong Kong in
1968 and subsequently received his master's degree from the University of Hong
Kong in 1970 and a Ph.D. from the University of Western Ontario, Canada in 19792.
Professor Lee is an internationally renowned expert in geotechnical engineering.
He worked for Ontario Hydro in Canada for some 20 years before he joined his
alma mater in 1994. He has participated in the design of many massive dams and
nuclear power stations. He has served as a specialist consultant or an advisor to
many international bodies such as the United Nations Development Plan, World

Bank, Asian Development Bank, etc. on numerous energy and infrastructure projects
in many parts of the world. Professor Lee's eminent achievement in civil engineering

has been highly recognized; he was awarded the KY Lo Medal in 2000 by

PROFESSOR LEE CHACK FAN the Engineering Institute of Canada and was elected the academician of the
AS e AT Chinese Acctclemy of Engineering in 2003 in recognition of his contributions to the

Independent Non-Executive Director engineering profession. He has been appointed as Justice of the Peace by the Hong
EIEH TS Kong Special Administrative Region Government in July 2003, and he has been
awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star and Gold Bauhinia Star in July 2005 and July

2013 respectively.

Professor Lee is currently the Chairman of Hong Kong Institute for Promotion of
Chinese Culture, member of the Commission on Strategic Development, and the
President of the Fu Hui Charity Foundation.
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Francis Goutenmacher, aged 76, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since February 2013. He is also a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Goutenmacher has been with
Richemont Luxury Group, S.A. ("Richemont”), one of the world leading luxury goods
groups, for over 30 years. He has been the managing director and chief executive
officer of several prestigious brands, like Cartier and Piaget, encompassed by
Richemont. After retiring as the regional chief executive of Richemont Asia Pacific
Limited, Mr. Goutenmacher is now running a marketing consultancy firm, Gouten
Consulting Limited, and is a director of this consultancy company. Mr Goutenmacher
holds a Bachelor's degree from Ecole Nationale des Arts Decoratifs in Paris, France.
He is an independent non-executive director of |.T Limited (0999.HK). He was an
independent non-executive director of Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited (O157.
HK) until 18 December 2015.

Francis Goutenmacher, 763%, B —S5——F — AREBEANE 2 &I IEH
TEZE, MIBARNBCEREEENIEREZEEME. Goutenmachert
ERRKEHRBLEEREEE c—NEZEE (FZ)) RFBR305F.
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BRITEHEH . GoutenmacherfT F BT EZ IR A B IR/ B 2 & 1817 HHE

MR FRANCIS GOUTENMACHER 4%, B TS I BRER 1) 5 Gouten Consulting Limited, i 5%/2 )

FRANCIS GOUTENMACHER 54 HIZEH. Goutenmacherst 355 /A [E F2 Z2Ecole Nationale des Arts Decoratifs
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Mr Chan Kok Chung, Johnny, aged 58, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since November 2014. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr Chan has over 33 years of experience in investment
banking and investment management industry. He is a co-founder of Techpacific
Capital Limited since 1999, and the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Crosby Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited from 2002 to 2016, Mr Chan is
the President of the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity Association. He
is also the Secretary General of the Asia Venture Capital and Private Equity Council.
Mr Chan is a member of the Innovation and Technology Commission from 2014 to
2017. He is a member of the Choate Rosemary Hall Parent Advisory Council. He is
an Independent Non-Executive Director of CNQC International Holdings Limited
(1240.HK) and a Director of Repton International (Asia Pacific) Limited. Mr. Chan
holds a Master of Business Administration degree from City University Business
School in the United Kingdom, a postgraduate diploma from The Securities Institute
of Australia and a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) degree in Economics from the London
Metropolitan University.
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Richard Liao, aged 54, has been the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since
May 2013. He is also a member and alternate secretary of the Executive Committee of
the Company. Mr Liao has over 30 years of experience in finance and private equity.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr Lico was a Managing Partner of Brookfield Asset
Management (*Brookfield”) and Head of Real Estate Investment for Brookfield in
Europe. Prior to his appointment at Brookfield in 2010, Mr Liao served as Managing
Director, Real Estate Investment Banking for Bank of America Merrill Lynch ("Merrill
Lynch"), London, a position he held since 2005 and was employed for the preceding

7 years at Citigroup in both London and New York as a Managing Director of Real
Estate Investment Banking. Before moving to New York in 1998, Mr Liao spent 11
years in Hong Kong initially with Merrill Lynch and then co-founded Amida Capital
Group Limited with Mr Hung in 1992. Mr Lico graduated from Harvard College with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in 1986.

BL7, 54, B ——FLABHEARSZMBRE, TAELF
ZATEESHENEGUE. BAERYBLMSES BRBERI0F

MR RICHARD LIAO e, MAARNE ZHI, PRI ABrookfield Asset Management (I Brookfield |)
Bth%kE Z FIEESE N FBrookfield RBUNZ BHERE T E, MT _F—FFHR
Chief Financial Officer 12 BrookfieldF i w2 Bil, RS4R3 58 7 - FALA H 1 Bank of America Merrill
U Lynch (T H)) 2 R HEHERARTEEREE—B, M2alLERIRE

TEEEENR MBI BHERERITERRCIE R—/\ERBEHH
Wedl, BREGRBESBNE, SAEBREM, ERR— N NATFEK
B 90 A4 #8 F B 17 Amida Capital Group Limiteds RS TR — 1L\ IR R ZEA B
BARB, BENELTEL,

Mui Ching Hung, Joanna, aged 49, is the Corporate Counsel and Company Secretary
of the Company. She is also the secretary of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, Disclosures Committee, PYE Committee and Executive Committee of the
Company, and the company secretary of various subsidiaries of the Company. She

is responsible for legal, regulatory compliance, corporate governance and company
secretarial matters of the Group. Ms Mui has over 26 years’ experience in company
secretarial field. She joined the Group in 1997. Ms Mui holds a Bachelor (Hons) Degree
in Law and a Master of Arts Degree in Language and Law. She is an associate member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered

Secretaries and Administrators.

MBBRAL, 4958, MANBIZEEXBEBRNIWE, TAERAZEKES

g RHEEE. KEZEE. RERXZEENITEZEEWE, WA
REZENBREZNEME. RESFAEE R BEEGR. £XEAR
NRBIMEER. W NEARRBWESTHHEBERTFER WR—Nt
FMALER, 5/ NAKEERERBELRUNES MEREXER TR

MS MUI CHING HUNG, JOANNA MAEEFAUELGNREFFUERTRABLREEE,
MEERAL/ VB

Corporate Counsel and Company Secretary

PEBERRAEINE
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South Shore Holdings Limited (the “Company’, together with

its subsidiaries, the "Group”) is committed to maintaining high
standards of corporate governance because we believe that

is the best way fo enhance shareholder value. The Company
places strong emphasis on an effective board (the “Board”) of
directors (the "Directors”) of the Company, accountability, sound
internal control, appropriate risk-assessment procedures, and
fransparency fo all shareholders.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the "Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) (the "Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
March 2018 and has adopted most of the recommended best
practices stated therein.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-Executive Directors to ensure independent viewpoints in all
discussions. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
eight Directors, including three Executive Directors and five
Independent Noon-Executive Directors. Board members are
listed below:

HFREEERNE ((AQF), ERENBAE, &8
»IAER) O KEehxzER, HAEEME
BRDRERARREECREES. ARBZEEERR

AlsafeReAneEgsx ((8F) 8 ((8F8) . @&
M. B AEEE. BEZRRFEEF M E2ER
RZERE,

REEZE—/\F=B=1+—HLEFER, ARFE2E
STEBMAERSAERAE (EBHRA)) B2 LHR
A (T EMRA) Mg+ Hprs (2B e~ (<PR)
ZFBESTRNESS, TEFRME N REMDEZRRER R

EXg

AL
ESEPITEZNIERNTEZ CHEGRF Y, R
PrEsTmERBIIERR. NARSHY, EFTH/\I
EFEN QR URTESRAMBIFRTES) .
ESgMEINMT

Board of Directors EEE

Executive Directors

HITES
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Chairman)
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (=)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Deputy Chairman)
2eR @EIEE)

+ Walter Craig Power (Chief Executive Officer)
Walter Craig Power (ITEFEZEY)

Mr Stephen Hung resigned as Joint Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 25 January 2018.

Biographical information of the Directors is set out on pages
26 to 32 of this annual report and on the Company's website.
In addition, a list containing names of Directors and their roles
and functions is published on the websites of the Company and
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIIFRITES
James Chiu
AR
+  Lee Chack Fan
R
» lain Ferguson Bruce

-
«  Francis Goutenmacher
Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Ko|< Chung, Johnny
Eﬁ /\_4\

KR AECRHEARALRBAZMEETRERATES, B
E—/\F-B - +hBAREEW.

EEBEBNIINAFREWEEEIE, TFRARE
Wt S, 15, EFUR. ACKBHELENEAR
T&é%%“%%ﬁﬂﬁo
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Throughout the year ended 31 March 2018, af least one-third

of the Board was made up of Independent Non-Executive
Directors, one of whom had appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by the Listing Rules. There is no relationship
(inc|uc|ing FinoncioL business, fcmi|y or other material/relevant
re|o1’ionship) among members of the Board.

The composition of the Board (with five Independent
Non-Executive Directors out of eight Directors) exceeds the new
Listing Rules requirement to have independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the board.

The Company has established a policy concerning diversity of
Board members (the “Board Diversity Policy”). In the Board
Diversity Policy:

1. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its

pencormcmce

2. With a view fo achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
deve|opmenf.

3. In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

4. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objectives criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skill, know|edge and |engf|'1 of service. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

REEZSE—/\F=-B=+—HLRBEFERN, EFE
MEDZDZ—EFABEIULIIFNTES, MEP—E
ELHRAFMREECEBEXREEN G UREYHE
BEER, ESESNE BT EFNMT. BX Rk
S EMEX AR BRI R R

ExeuEm (\LESTELRBUFATESR B
B EHRABIIFNTESABREZTEED =L
—ZHTIRTE-

FREREEREZEHEZ UL E R (EEEME
ZLLEER) . REEFEMEZTLEER !

. ARBHBITAEESENEZS TILENRENA
BIBEXRR,

2. REFIFELOERE, FRERAESENE
HRZ ot R HBRAEEENMEE R R
R BRI,

3. AREEFEMEMAE, EXZEITEEEES
EHEZ T, BEEARNMER. Fiv. XX
BER. Bk, FXKER. K. NBKRRBE

Hio

4 EFEMHEEEHURAAETBRR, TEZEBA
ERUERGHETTIBAESTENEZ T 28R,

NERE—RNZTLEBRERE, DEETR
RIER Fis. XERBEBR. Bk, BXEER. X
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The following is a chart showing the diversity profile of the
Board:

8 -

7 Independent

TEEHIIESEREZ LB :

5

Non-E i -
6 on-Executive %=[H
5 ESE
4
3 Executive Chinese
2 hEY Ill!!!lll
1 HITES 40-50
No. of Directors Designation Ethnicity Age
EEAY B iz Bk Fin
Role and Responsibilities AENEE

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company'’s strategic
direction and the controls applied to its activities, and ensuring
that Management has appropriate processes in place for
risk-ossessmenf, management, and internal control over the

Company's day-to-day affairs.

The Board has in place a list of decisions that are to be retained

for the Board decision. These matters include:
1. Corporate strategy;

2. Financial reporting and control;

3. Madjor financial arrangements;

4. Risk management;

5. Succession planning;

6. Notifiable transactions under Chapters 14 and 14A of the
Listing Rules; and

7. Recommendations to shareholders regarding the
appointment of external auditors, dividend payments,
capital reorganizations and schemes of arrangement.

The Board has delegated all day-to-day operations and
management of the Company's business to Management under
the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

ESEEEREARNAZRB AR ER R T
#l, BREEECAARENE. ARNBAESHE
BN RE R REE B2 .

ESTEREMB AR —RIRBMAHELHE,
Hrag .

L RNEIEREE

2. BABBERLIEH ;
3. BEAMBLRHE;
4. EREE;

5. MAEGE;

6. LMRERIBI4R4AEEIRTREN AT RIS
X

7. BOANBREA TS, KE. BEAEHENEHEELR
PrR R R 2.

ESEERALNTAEF . VHFEENERTFER
FUARBTHBHEAENEEREE,
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Company is Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr. The
Chief Executive Officer of the Company is Mr Walter Craig
Power.

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the positions of
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
held by different individuals, with separate duties. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer is clearly established and set out in writing.

The role of the Chairman of the Company is to oversee the
Company's strategic direction and the controls applied to its
activities. The Chairman provides leadership for the Board
and ensures that the Company establishes sound corporate
governance practices and procedures. He also encourages alll

Directors to make a full and active contribution to the affairs of

the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the overall
performance of the Company and plays a leading role in
delivering a growth strategy. He provides leadership for
Management, oversees the day-to-day operations of the Group,

and monitors the achievement of Company's objectives set by

the Board.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Independent Non-Executive Directors were appointed for

a term of approximately three years expiring at the conclusion
of the third annual general meeting from the date of their
appointment/re-election, subject to the Company’s Bye-laws.
Pursuant to the Company's Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement from office by rotation at least once every three years
and are eligible for re-election by shareholders.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has given
an annual confirmation of independence to the Company
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of
the view that all Independent Non-Executive Directors meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

The Nomination Committee of the Company is responsible for
assessing the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors. As a good corporate governance practice, every
member of the Nomination Committee abstains from assessing
his own independence.

E R ERITEUR &

KINTE) &2 F JF APeter Lee Coker JroE4d e AN T2 1THHE
., ZWalter Craig Powert 4,

RRBEFRTEBBE BB TRALEET S8H
B, RN MRS, ERETERRD T8
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o

THRMBESANRCBERR, TENTEERER
BEBREAS, NBREEEE, EEASEHREFIL
ESRBEFEHEI AN A RBRERCERERITE .

BIIFRITES
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BEEAES=ARRBFAETHERL, LANESER
REZNEHEA RBEARBSZAEMEA, FIEESH
RAEVDB=F—RE@mnRE LrAHKRREEEL,

EBIUIFNTEFCRE L HRRAEEA AL E)EE
HBEFREEE, ANARAEEBUIIFATEENTE L
MARRAEIEPE B IS 1851, BARBIES ER
BisBirsm.

ARNBRVLEESEESNMGBIUIFNTEST 2B,
AR EXEAER, BURLESGHEITE2 A
BRAEEI M 2 5,

37

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PEEAWMS

Board Process

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year.
Regu|0r Board meetings are usuo|||y scheduled at the beginning
of the year to give all Directors adequate time to plan their
schedules to attend. Directors receive at least 14 days’ prior
written notice of regular Board meetings and an agenda. The
Board papers, including supporting analyses and relevant
bdckground informoﬁon, are normc1||y sent to all Directors

at least 3 days before the Board meeting. For other Board
meetings, Directors are given as much notice as possib|e in the

circumstances.

In order to have an effective Board, Directors are provided
with information on activities and developments in the Group's
business on a regular and timely basis to keep them apprised
of the latest developments of the Group. The Directors have
full access to information on the Group and are able to seek
independent professional advice whenever they deem it

necessary.

In addition, in order to enable the Board and each Director to
discharge their duties, it has been the Company's practice to
provide all Directors with monthly updates giving a balanced

and understandable assessment of the Company's performance,

positions and prospects since 2007, way ahead of the
implementation of new Code on 1 April 2012.

To avoid conflicts of interest, Directors who have declared
their material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to
be discussed are not counted in the quorum of meetings and
abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions.
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Details of Directors” attendance at Board meetings, Board BHEEERNHE_S—/\F=A=+—HIFERLRE
committee meetings and shareholders’ meetings during the year BEEE G, EERERERNRERGCHBRTU
ended 31 March 2018 are set out in the following table: e

Meetings attended/held during the year ended 31 March 2018

BE_BE—\F=A=+—HLEERLE BFC8E

Finance & Corporate
Audit  Remuneration Nomination ~ Investment  Disclosures ~ Governance PYE
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee AGM SGM
EZE ENZEY FWREE RRZEE WMEL RBEZRE (0XER  REERX i e
REZEE Z5g ZBE BERE HAAE
Number of meetings held
during the year
s 10 3 | 1 92 9 92 4 | 92
FRETEEL
Y
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #{7£%
Stephen Hung (Note)
S - 5/1 1N 2/9 oNn on
KBS (35
Peter Lee Coter ). 10/10 9/ 0/ N o/
LauKo Yuen, Tom 10/10 " 1 9/ 2/ 303 4/4 on o/
AR
Walter Craig Power 10/10 92/9 N 1/2
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS B173E {785
James Chiu
10/10 3/3 1N 3/3 4/4 N 92/2
Jicr 2
Lee Chack Fan
710 92/3 1N 0N 34 on 92/2
555
li Ferguson Brce 10/10 33 1 0/ 0/ 303 4/4 on 0/
hEL
Francis Goutenmacher 10/10 3/3 1N on 112
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny
BES 10/10 3/3 on 2/2
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Note: Mr Stephen Hung resigned as Joint Chairman and
Executive Director of the Company with effect from

25 January 2018. He also ceased to be a member of the
Nomination Committee and Finance and Investments

Committee with effect from 25 January 2018.

In addition to the Board meetings, the Chairman holds regular
meetings with Independent Non-Executive Directors without the
presence of Executive Directors in March 2018.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings with
sufficient details of matters discussed are kept in safe custody

by the Company Secretary, and are open for inspection by
Directors.

Induction and Development

Management and the Company Secretary liaise with the newly
c:ppoin‘red Directors to acquaint them with their duties and
responsibilities as Directors and the business operations of the
Company. On appointment to the Board, Directors receive a
package of orientation materials on the Group and provided
with a comprehensive induction on the business operations and
practices of the Group, as well as the general and specific duties
of directors under general law and the Listing Rules. All Directors
are also given a Directors’ Manual on their appointment

which set out, amongst other fhings, directors’ dufies, terms of
reference of the Board Committee and corporate governance
practices of the Group.

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development ("CPD"),
details on legal and regulatory changes are provided to alll
Directors. Directors are also recommended and encouraged

to attend forums or seminars relating to the roles, functions

and duties of a listed company director. The costs of such
forums or seminars are borne by the Company. The Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company is responsible

for reviewing and monitoring the Directors training and

development.
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The Directors are required to provide the Company with details
of the CPD training undertaken by them. Based on the details
so provided, the CPD training undertaken by the Director during
the year ended 31 March 2018 is summarised as follows:

ESARARNARMRENRFES ZCPDIETIFS, 1R
BARHCHS, BE_F—/\F=A=+—HLFE
EEEZCPDIEIIMENT ¢

Attending presentation/seminars relevant to the

Reading regulatory rules and their updates Groups’ business or directors’ duties

REEERRRRFTEN HELAAEEXRGZNEZHER/EZ

BHRE EHRE

Stephen Hung (Note)
ALK B (B EE)

Peter Lee Coker Jr

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
2SR

Walter Craig Power
James Chiu
fiipiz=s

Lee Chack Fan
=155

lain Ferguson Bruce

Bt

D U O O N T

Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny
@E/p\

<

Note:  Resigned as Director during the year ended 31 March
2018

The Company has received confirmation from each current
Director that he has given sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018.
Besides, Directors have disclosed to the Company their interests
as director and other office in other public companies and
organisation in a timely manner and update the Company on

any subsequent changes.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To facilitate the work of the Board, Board committees have
been set up with written terms of reference which clearly

define the ro|e, ctuﬂ'\orify, and functions of each committee.
Each Board committee is required to report their decisions or
recommendations to the Board. Details of Directors” attendance
at the Board committee meetings during the year ended 31
March 2018 are shown on page 39 of this annual report.

The role and function of, and a summary of work done by, each
Board committee during the year ended 31 March 2018 are set
out below:

Audit Committee
Composition

The Audit Committee consists of five members, all of whom are
Independent Non-Executive Directors, and is chaired by an
Independent Noon-Executive Director.

The current members of this Committee are Ir James Chiu
(Chairman), Professor Lee Chack Fan, Mr lain Ferguson Bruce,
Mr Francis Goutenmacher and Mr Chan Kok Chung, Johnny.
None of them is a partner or former partner of Messrs Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, the Company's external auditor.

Role and Function

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include oversight
of the Group's financial reporting system, risk management

and internal control systems, review of the Group's financial
information, and review of the re|o’rions|'1ip with the external
auditor of the Company. This Committee also meets regularly
with the Company’s external auditor to discuss the audit process
and accounting issues.

Summary of Work Done

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2018:

1. Review of the annual results of the Group for the year ended

31 March 2017;

2. Review of the interim results of the Group for the six months

ended 30 September 2017;

3. Review of the Group's financial information, financial
reporting system, internal control and risk management
systems, and financial and accounting policies and practices;

4. Approval of remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

EXZEY

REEEGTIEERIEN, FIIUAEEYBHBREDE
LEREES, FHMREREESTHE. RIRKEEE
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5. Recommendation to the Board to re-appoint the external
auditor at the 2017 annual general meeting;

6. Review of the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, and
review of policy on engaging the external auditor to supply
non-audit services;

7. Review of the audit plan for the financial year ended 31
March 2018;

8. Review of the Company's systems of financial controls,
internal control and risk management;

9. Review of the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company's internal audit, accounting and financial
reporting functions;

. Review of internal/external auditor’s significant findings
and recommendations, and monitoring of the subsequent

implementation;

1. Review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function of
the Company;

. Approval of the 2019 internal audit plans;
. Review of the continuing connected transactions;

. Mee’ring with the external cudi’ror, in the absence of
Management.

Remuneration Committee
Composition

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, the
maijority of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
This Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director.

The current members of this Committee are Ir James Chiu
(Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Professor Lee Chack

Fan.
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Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee has been established to ensure
there is a formal and transparent procedure for setting policy
on the remuneration of Executive Directors and for fixing the
remuneration packages for all Directors. This Committee is
mainly responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the Company'’s policy and structure for remuneration

of Directors and Senior Management, and making
recommendations on the manpower deployment plan. This
Committee also determines, with delegated responsibility,
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors

and Senior Management, and makes recommendations on

remuneration of Non-Executive Directors.

Summary of Work Done

The work done by the Remuneration Committee during the
year ended 31 March 2018 included review of the remuneration
policy of the Company.

Remuneration Policy

The Company ensures that the remuneration offered is
appropriate for the duties, in line with market practice and pay
levels, and effective in attracting, retaining and motivating
employees (including Executive Directors). For Non-Executive
Directors, the Company ensures that they are sufficiently but
not excessively compensated for their efforts and time dedicated
to the Company. No individual determines his or her own
remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the remuneration

paid fo one Senior Management was within the band

between HK$1,000,000 to 5,000,000, and one Senior
Management was within the band between HK$5,000,001 to
HK$10,000,000.

Nomination Committee
Composition

The Nomination Committee consists of four members, the
majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
This Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director.

The current members of this Committee are Professor Lee Chack
Fan (Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Mr lain Ferguson
Bruce and Mr Francis Goutenmacher.
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Role and Function

This Committee was established to ensure there is a formal,
considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of
new Directors. The duties of this Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board cmc|, if
necessary, recommending changes. It is also responsib|e for
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board, se|ecﬁng or moking recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals to be nominated for directorships,
and reviewing the effectiveness of the Directors.

Summary of Work Done

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 March 2018:

1. Nominated the retiring Directors for re-election at the 2017
Annual General Meeting;

2. Review of the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; and

3. Assessment of the independence of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors.

Nomination Procedure

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board and makes recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes.

Appointments of new Directors are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. In considering the appointment of a
Director, this Committee applies criteria such as professional and
educational background, relevant experience, and qualifications.
The recommendations of this Committee are then put to the
Board for consideration and approval. Thereafter, all Directors
appointed to fill casual vacancy are subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.

Finance and Investment Committee
Composition
The Finance and Investment Committee consists of four

members, and is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director. The current members of this Committee are Mr lain

Ferguson Bruce (Chairman), Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr., Mr Lau Ko
Yuen, Tom and Mr Walter Craig Power.
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Role and Function

The Finance and Investment Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on matters

relating to investing in assets, evaluating the budgets of all key
expendifures, reviewing financial performcmce against Forecost
and considering dividend payout.

Summary of Work Done

The work done by the Finance and Investment Committee
during the year ended 31 March 2018 included:

1. Review and evaluation of actual-to-budget results for the
year ended 31 March 2017 and for the six months ended 30
September 2017 (including budget of all key expenditures);

2. Review of financial performance against forecast;

3. Discussion on changes in accounting standards which may
affect the Company's financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2017 and for the six months ended 30
September 2017; and

4. Consideration of the payment of the 2017 final dividend
and 2018 interim dividend.

Disclosures Committee
Composition

The Disclosures Committee consists of three members, and
is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director. The
current members of this Committee are Mr lain Ferguson Bruce

(Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Role and Function

The Disclosures Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing
disclosures to shoreho|o|ers, the pub|ic, and relevant statutory
authorities, and for overseeing compliance with any applicable
legal requirements for disclosure.

Summary of Work Done

The work done by the Disclosures Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2018 included the review of the content of
announcements relating to the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2017, and the interim results of the
Group for the six months ended 30 September 2017.
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Corporate Governance Committee
Composition

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of three
members, the majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. This Committee is chaired by an Independent
Non-Executive Director. The current members of this Committee
are Ir James Chiu (Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and

Mr lain Ferguson Bruce.

Role and Function

The Corporate Governance Committee was established with
delegated responsibility of the Board to perform the corporate
governance duties and to further strengthen the Company’s
corporate governance. This Committee is mainly responsible
for all corporate governance and corporate social responsibility
matters of the Company.

Summary of Work Done

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Corporate Governance Committee during the year ended 31

March 2018
1. Review of the Company's corporate governance policy;

2. Review of the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

3. Review of the Company compliance with the Code for
the year ended 31 March 2017 and six months ended 30
September 2017;

4. Review of the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2017; and

5. Review of the Company's disclosure in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report for the year ended 31 March
2017.

PYE Committee
Composition

The current members of the PYE Committee are Ir James Chiu
(Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Professor Lee Chack Fan

and Mr lain Ferguson Bruce.

Role and Function

The PYE Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing,
monitoring and supervising the overall management and
operation of the construction business of the Company
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Summary of Work Done
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the PYE Committee

reviewed the results of the construction business of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2017, for the four months ended 31
July 2017, for the six months ended 30 September 2017 and for
the ten months ended 31 January 2018.

Executive Committee
Composition

The Executive Committee consists of four members. The

current members of this Committee are Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr.
(Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Mr Walter Criag Power
and Mr Richard Lico.

Role and Function

This Committee is mainly responsible for handling the
management and operations of the day-to-day business of the
Group.

Management Functions

The division of responsibilities between the Board and
Management are clearly set out in writing to ensure that there is
a segregation of duties with clear accountability.

The Board, under the leadership of the Chairman of the
Company, has de|egc1fed all the doy-fo-doy operations and
management of the Company’s business to Management,
under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Management is required to report to the Board on

their decisions or recommendations.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of

conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct governing
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation
to the Group.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors c1c|mow|edge their responsibihfy for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the
accounts deparfmenf, the Directors ensure that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared on a going concern basis
and in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
financial reporting standards. The Directors also ensure that
the financial statements of the Group are published in a timely

manner.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company
regarding their reporting responsibilities of the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 105 and 107 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Chairman, Board and
Board Committees by ensuring good information flow and that
Board policy and procedures are followed. She is responsible
for advising the Board on governance matters and facilitates
the induction and professional development of Directors.

The Company Secretary is also responsible to the Group's
compliance with all obligations of the Listing Rules and Codes
on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. She reports to the Chairman and the
Board as a whole. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary in respect of their duties and
the effective operation of the Board and Board Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company Secretary
undertook over 15 hours of professional training to update her
skills and knowledge.

49

NN
= #E —

ERHMBRECEE

ESMRNSEECREARE LB RER. L Z5ES
PImEN T, EFEERARBCHBREDIRBAEEK
NERMEBNYBREER, RHFRECEEERR. B
ENERASEERTI A RE,

RRBNBEUBENA NS HAEB LM BFRERCFRE
EFTEEERR, BNAFREIOSE RFEI07TH B
BN o

REWE

REWEEEXETIE. EFGNEEEEY, BRE
FUREENE, MERESTECHRNEFFEET,
SMENEFSRHTELFTECER, TREESHH
NEXER, NEAMEITHAEERET EHRANRAE
WiE. afthRNBLETRIZAEEEES.

NEMERAREZRE, HEFEFLESD, WHE
FERESSFHERER, 2REFYHIERNAWE
AREBENEFENEFEZET VEVWEFREERK
AR#5o

BECS/\F=ZA=1T—HLEE, REOWEEES
15/ B DL B2 BRI, WUE R E R B A

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

N A
PEEAIS

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

At the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 23 August
2017, shareholders approved the re-appointment of Messrs
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company'’s external auditor

for the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

The fees paid to the external auditor for audit and non-audit

services for the year ended 31 March 2018 (and the comparative
figures for the year ended 31 March 2017) are as follows:

SNESIZEEM

CE—tEtFN\A T+ =ZBETZEARFARRAEFRE
£, BREMEEREY-EERS ST ARREE
ECE-/\FZA=+—HLEMBFEZNBZHEM.

ECE - \FZA=t+—HLFE (REEE_F
—tHE=ZA=+—HLEFEZHEFTHR) , BHNEBERK
EN 2 MBI BRT < ERWT

2018 2017

—EN\E —E—tF

HK$ 000 HK$ 000

% 70 F8 70

Audit fee EEH 4,716 4,644
Non-audit services fees IEREARFE E F

Interim review fee FHEIE R E R 900 980

Tax services REARTS 393 347

Provident fund audit NIEE B 27 27

Special engagement Rl & AT 3,800 -

5,050 1,354

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor and ensuring the continuing objectivity and
independence of the external auditor. The Audit Committee of
the Company has resolved to recommend the re-appointment
of Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as external auditor of the
Company. This resolution has been endorsed by the Board and
is subject to final approval and authorization by the shareholders
at the 2018 Annual General Meeting.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Company's
risk management and internal control systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness. In meeting its responsibility, the Board seeks
to increase risk awareness across the Company's business
operations and has put in place policies and procedures which

provide a framework for controls and management of risks.

Such risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objecﬁves, and to provide reosonctb|e, fhough

not abso|ufe, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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Risk Management

The Group has established an enterprise risk management
framework to identify potential events that may be affecting
the Company, to manage risks within its risk appetite and to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the
Company's objectives. It comprises of three lines of defence to
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paYilp=a

provide Management, Audit Committee and the Board with the
confidence that the Company is managing its risks and they are:

RISK &%
BUSINESS OPERATIONS Operational processes, project risk and control OPERATIONAL
FIRST: LINE OF DEFENSE LEIRUUE activity business level monitoring MANAGEMENT
BEWIR B, BE AR RIS TR wEEE
REEE
CORPORATE OVERSIGHT Business planning, policy and procedure setting, SENIOR
SECOND LINE OF DEFENSE . . MANAGEMENT
PR FU_NCTlOI‘LS functional oversight \ v
NEIEEREE HFHRE, BURNZFHIE, BaeEEE RIS
RISK /&g
INTERNAL /EXTERNAL AUDIT Monitoring compliance and provide independent AUDIT
THIRP LINE OF DEFENSE ANEX challenge and assurance COMMITTEE
EEES Sl B AL E R R ENERE

THE BOARD
Exg

(Audit Committee)
(BEET)

REIEARRBREEIER, EFEZEBUHFENR
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Significant risks are considered and identified by the Board
when setting the Company’s strategic objectives. Such risks

are evaluated and assessed based on their impact and
likelihood. Management ensures effective and appropriate risk
management and internal control procedures and measures are
established and across business operations and functional areas.
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This enterprise risk management framework will enable the
Company to have the following potential benefits:-

Greater likelihood of ochieving business objec’rives;
Higher share prices over the longer term;

Reduction in management time spent “fire fighting”;
Increased likelihood of change initiatives being achieved;
More focus internally on doing the right things properly;
Better basis for strategy setting;

Achievement of competitive advantage;

Fewer sudden shocks and unwelcome surprises; and
Early mover into new business areas.

Internal Control

The Company has had in p|c1ce an infegrofed internal control
framework in complying with Code Provisions of Listing Rules.
Internal control is defined as a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in
relation to the following:

Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;
Re|ic1bi|i’ry of financial reporting; and
Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company's internal control framework is divided into five
inter-related components: control environment, risk assessment,
control activities, monitoring and information & communication.
It serves as criteria for the effectiveness of the internal control
system in supporting the achievement of the separate but
overlapping operational, financial reporting and compliance
objectives.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Company's system
of internal control and assessment of risks. The responsibility
of day-to-day management of operational risks and the

implementation of mitigation measures lies with Management.
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Built into our system are checks and balances such that no single REBRGREGFEFEER, FEARER—IER

party can "monopolise” a transaction, activity or process to
conceal irregularities. Hence, Management has undertaken the
following additional checks and balances procedures:

A clear functional organizational structure was set up

with well-defined lines of authority, accountability and
responsibilities. Each division clearly understands their scope
of business and authorities delegated by Management;

A mon’rh|y reporting system on the performance of each
division, and actual financial performance results against
budge’rs to Management was well established. The
Board reviews the Company’s operations and financial
performance on a quarterly basis;

The Board reviews annually, in particular, adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programme and budge’r of the Company's internal audit,
accounting and financial reporting functions as required
under the Listing Rules;

The Audit Committee assesses and monitors the
effectiveness of internal control system in clefecﬂng fraud
and other irregularities by reviewing the work of the internal
corporate audit department and its findings; and

The Company has in place a disclosure of price-sensitive
information po|icy for idenﬂfying, hondhng and
disseminating inside information in compliance with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571) of the
Laws of Hong Kong). Procedures such as limit access to
inside information to those who need to know and requiring
outside parties to execute confidentiality agreement have
been implemented by the Company to guard against
mishandling of inside information. In-house training about
inside information is provided to senior management and
relevant officers regularly.
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Internal Audit

The internal audit function of the Group reviews the Group's risk
management and internal control systems, including assessing
the adequacy and effectiveness of the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controls as well as management
oversight of the in-scope areas and process. Risk management
and internal control review is conducted at least once a

year. The procedures consist of process evaluations through
interviews with various personne| of the in-scope processes,
review of relevant policies and procedures, and sample testing
of controls. During the internal audit process, the Group's
internal audit function identifies internal control weokness,
makes recommendations and obtains remedial action plan
from Management with timelines, for strengthening the internal
control of the Group. Internal audit function of the Group will

also follow up with Management status of remedial action plan.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the internal audit
function of the Group has conducted a review on the Group's
risk management and internal control systems. Internal audit
report, containing observations, recommendations and remedial

action plan, has been submitted to the Audit Committee and
the Board.

The Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Company's risk management and internal control systems
during the year ended 31 March 2018, and was not aware

of any significant issues that would have adverse impact on
the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. Such review covers

all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls, adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget for the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

In order to enhance shareholder and investor understanding
of the Group's business, the Company has established
several communication channels with shareholders and
investors, including (i) printed copies of corporate documents
(including but not limited to annual reports, interim reports,
circulars and notices of shareholder meetings); (i) general
meetings where shareholders can offer comments and
exchange views with the Board; (i) the Company’s website:
www.southshore-holdings.com; and (iv) the Company's share
registrar with whom shareholders register their shares. The
Company has established a shareholders” communication
policy to set out the Company's procedures in providing the
shareholders and investment community with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company.
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In addition, shareholders are encouraged to attend all genero|
meetings of the Company, where the Chairman of the
Company, Chairmen of Board Committees, other Directors and
the external auditor are available to answer questions on the
Group's businesses. In order to conduct the genero| meetings in
a transparent manner, it has been the Company's practice to
conduct poll voting at general meetings since 2005, way ahead
of po|| voting being made monclofory for all genera| meetings
effective on 1 January 2009.

In addition to the annual genero| meeting, the Company held
two special general meetings during the year ended 31 March
2018. The most recent general meeting of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2018 was the special general meeting
held on 9 February 2018. The resolutions put forward are set out
below:

To approve the Capital Reorganisation (as defined in the
circular of the Company dated 24 January 2018) and the
transactions contemplated thereunder; and

To approve the Rights Issue (as defined in the circular of
the Company dated 24 January 2018) and the transactions
contemplated thereunder.

The above resolutions were passed. The results of the poll voting
have been published on the websites of the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Under the Company’s bye-laws, shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the total voting rights at general meetings of
the Company shall have the righ‘r, by written requisition to the
Company, to require a special general meeting to be called for
the business specified in such requisition.

A|so, shareholders ho|ding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights at general meetings or not less than 100
shareholders have to right to submit a written request to the
Company stating the resolution intended to be moved at the

annual general meeting.

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board's
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company's principal
place of business in Hong Kong at 601, Hutchison House, 10
Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong.

Details of the interests of Directors and shareholders in the
shares of the Company are shown on pages 76 to 78 and pages
91 to 96 of this annual report respectively.
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OTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION

Memorandum and Bye-Laws

There were no changes to the Company’s memorandum and

bye-laws during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Key Corporate Dates

HRFER
m%;&*m&%w

FE\F=ZRA=+—HLEFER, ALRFTHEBE

&ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@o

REEEAH

EVENTS DATES
] =E

Announcemenf of 2018 interim results

7N —\FEHRHEE

Announcemen’r of 2018 annual results

R —F—/\F2FRE

2018 annual general meeting

—E\FRRBEFKRE

Public Float Capitalisation

The public float capitalisation of the Company was
approximately HK$558.7 million on 31 March 2018, and

approximately HK$574.9 million on the date of this report.

By order of the Board

Mui Ching Hung, Joanna
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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This Environmental, Social and Governance Report provides HHREBE, 2 hEARSREAEEERBRELAR (K
an annual update on corporate social responsibility ("CSR”) NE, ERENBLABMBIAER) BEZF—/N\
performance of South Shore Holdings Limited (the "Company, FZA=-+—HIFERHItEHEET (bxtEE
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 1) RENEHEEE .

March 2018.

This report aims to provide a balance presentation of the AREETHIOMERAEEMBZOE EIB/EE
Groups' CSR key issues covering its two core businesses, namely BN AR NtEHEETTEEE

hotel deve|opmen’r and construction.

This report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of the ABRETRIBEEH SR ZATERAEES EmiRAIK
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange FO7THREL,

of Hong Kong Limited.

CSR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

CEHEEENERRE

CSR RESPONSIBILITIES

PARTIES
&7

Board of Directors

BEER

Corporate Governance Committee
s = &
PEEREES

Executive Committee
BWITEREE

CSR Work Group
PEMHEEEIIFENE

Departments and Business Units

BRI R FF B AL

CEMEETEE

+ Has overall responsibility for the Company’s CSR strategy and reporting
HARNBGECEETRBLEREERRBET

+ Review CSR matter of the Company
B ARNBNEELEEEER

+  Ensure the effectiveness of CSR risk management and internal control systems

HEREFHEESENEAREERNMEZRREN

+ Promote CSR, and organizing and implementing CSR initiatives
HECETEEANSMNEREEX TS ETRE

+  Develop and formulate CSR risk management and internal control system.

PSS I E XA S ESERNAREE NN EERL

+  Implement CSR practices
Brat ke SEEFL

+ Ensure CSR compliance in daily operation

BERAOSEFPETEELTEE
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APPROACH TO CSR

The Company considers potential risks and impacts that
environment and social factors can have on the long-term risks
and returns to the Company and its shareholders. The Company
is committed to be a responsible corporate citizen by operating
in a manner that is economically, socially and environmentally

sustainable.

The Company's CSR policy consists of a set of CSR principles
focusing on 4 aspects, namely (a) Operating Practices, (b)
Employee Management, (c) Environmental Protection and (d)
Community Investment, which are instrumental in enabling our
businesses to operate in a sustainable manner.

fets /N EE A
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], EhEIUERE, ReEEER; bETEHE;
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EEEMEER,

CSR ASPECTS
ERTERERE

Environmental
Protection

RIBRE

Operating
Practices
EEER

Within each of these CSR aspects, strategies, policies and
guidelines are developed based on the principles set out in the
Company’s CSR policy, for our daily operations.

MATERIALITY

The Group has identified CSR issues of the Group, and assessed
their materiality based on their impact to the Group's key
stakeholders and business. The CSR issues considered to be
material are listed out below and will be described in detail in
this report.
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ASPECTS

LA

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
RIBRE

Emissions

B

Use of Resources

BRfER

The Environment and Natural Resources

RERXAER

EMPLOYEE MANAGEMENT
BTEE

Employment
s

Health Safety
RERELe

Development and Training
RIS

Labour Standards

% T#ER|

OPERATING PRACTICES
EESR

Supply Chain Management
HrEfEEE

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Anti-Corruption

P

R&E5

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
ClEHtE

Community Investment

Ol E

MATERIAL ISSUES
BEEEE

«  Carbon emission
TR
Waste management

EEZYNSSE

Electricity management
REEE
Water management

KEREE

Employee environmental awareness
o = =

BIRIEREH

Green procurement

TRERE

+  Employee welfare and working conditions
ETEMNRITFRE
Work-life balance
TREET

+ Occupational health and safety
BxRREZ e

Staff training
STEF

Human rights and equal opportunities

N TSR

+  Supply chain management

HiEsEEIE

Quality management
mBEEE
Protection of data

ERRE

Whistle-blowing
BRI

Business ethics

ES e

« Community investment
[ClggttE
+  Employee engagement in community

BTNHRSH
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Emissions
Carbon Emission

Our hotel development business will conduct its business

by striving to improve our overall ecological and carbon
footprint, without compromising our guests experience and
satisfaction, using the most responsible working practices. We
have recognized the importance of minimizing the negative
environmental impact from our operations and are keen to
reduce the carbon footprint, while taking steps to minimize or
recycle the waste we generate.

Our construction business proposes various low-carbon
environmental initiatives at the beginning of the bidding process
of construction projects and adopting systematic scientific
processes during construction. It also participates in the "Green
Hong Kong * Carbon Audit” campaign organised by the
Environmental Protection Department to become the “Carbon
Audit « Green Partner”, and signing the Carbon Reduction
Charter.

Waste Management

The Group's waste management policy is aimed at minimizing
generation of waste for disposal as far as reasonably
practicable, encouraging use of sustainable and reusable
materials which are technically and economically viable and
requiring recyclable materials be separated from the waste pile
and reused as much as possible.

Our hotel development business strives to minimize negative
environmental impact from construction wastes in respect of the
deve|opmen’r of THE 13 Hotel generated by the Group and its
contractors.

As for our construction business, we use Qucl|i’ry Powered
Mechanical Equipment as labelled by the Environmental
Protection Department, and donate desktop computers and

LCD monitors to Caritas-Hong Kong, to be gifted to the needy,

either free or at cost.
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Use of Resources

We are committed to the well-being of our planet and its
present and future inhabitants. Our objective is to ensure that
resources are not wasted and that materials are reused and

recycled.

In addition, we strive to promote sustainable construction
methods, so as to make better use of resources and reduce
material consumption and construction waste. We also pay close
attention to chonges in related environmental requirements, and
refer to international environmental standards and procedures

to manage our business.

All levels of staffs are informed of our Energy Policy
Statement, so as to ensure that they take responsibility for the
implementation and effectiveness of our energy management

measures.

Electricity Management

Our construction business uses plant and equipment with

high energy efficiency, and purchases low energy embodied
construction materials, products and services. It also participates
in the "Earth Hour” organised by the World Wide Fund for
Nature to combat climate change and raise awareness of
energy saving. In addition, it signs the "Energy Saving Charter
2017" initiated by the HKSAR Government, and committing
together with our staff to implementation of the energy-saving
measures stated in the Charter.

Water Management

Our construction business reuses treated waste-water for vehicle
and wheel washing at sites to reduce water wastage. It also
places placing notices to encourage water saving at prominent
locations in offices and sites.
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The Environment and Natural Resources
Employee Environmental Awareness

As a concerned global corporation, we have a responsibility
within our industry to be a good steward of the environment.
This includes pollution reduction and conservation of natural
resources in a fiscally responsible manner.

As for our hotel development business, Environmental Policy
(IMS Manual) is in place to establish and maintain documented
targets and objectives to reduce pollution and natural resources
consumption, to review progress towards those targets and
objectives at regular intervals while we strive for continuous
improvement, to operate the business in accordance with the
environmental laws impacting our industry, to communicate to
our staff the importance of good environmental stewardship and
the role we all play in making a positive impact and to make our
pledge towards good environmental stewardship available to
the public which includes milestones reached through use of our

corporate website.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, our hotel development
business has organized the following events to our employees:

« Environment Proection - Sea Pollution (May 2017)
Occupational Noise (August 2017)
Green Walk in Lai Chi Vun Village (September 2017)
Green Walk in Leisure Area of Taipa Waterfront & Loutus
Cycling Track (October 2017)
Green Walk in A-Ma Cultural Village (November 2017)

Green Procurement

The environmental and energy management system of our
construction business is in compliance with international ISO
14001 and ISO50001 standards. We also embrace innovation
and make the best use of technological advancements. Building
Information Modelling (BIM) technologies are an essential part
of the life cycles of our construction projects, improving project
accuracy through comprehensive simulation and pre-viewing of
design, construction and monitoring processes, which allows for
better management of environmental resources, costs, quality
and health and safety risks, and fosters green construction.
During the year, the Group received “The Innovative Use of BIM
Technology (Commendation)” at the "Quality Public Housing
Construction & Maintenance Awards 2017" organised by the
Hong Kong Housing Authority.

In addition to the Safety, Health, Environment and Quality
Management Committee led by top Management, the
Group holds regular meetings to review existing works, monitor
progress, and plan and implement new initiatives to improve
energy saving and reduce emissions and waste.

62

/////

HREMBVESERRT, RMCHE—ERREE

(freBERRTM , RELELERDSREXAER
BFENER, ERRSIZSERNER, RKHITE
O, IBRERMTENREAOIKE R, BT
BEEMA T RRERENEEME URFIERM TS
FRERRHEEENAE, URBALRETHFALERE
RIBAGE, 2iE&EEN TS EHPIERBINR.

BE_F/\FZA=+—HLEFE, HMANWEEEE
EBGABIHRTTIES !

BEREI - BF5R (CE—LFLA)

Bgns (CE—tE/N\A)

HRBIRRET (CE—EFNA)

s EEREEETTBREEKRET (CE—CF+
A)

WA iR BT (CE—tF+—A)

R EERAE

FMERTEEFHNREREREERRF OB
BYISO 14001 71SO 5000124, FHMWER A%, E/H
B, PERBEREEERSRA TIEEENERE,
HERET. IR A, JUEERERESENIES
KFEE, KMEERMERREBEER. A, mEBELE
BNZeRR, BERFER FERN, AEEREE
EEZESTINEE L NEEERSENREMEE
20171, ERIERESRMEMRIFER RiB) 1%

O
aI=p=}
B 57
o 71X

o, EEhEEEREN T2 K. BRRK
BEEZET ERETER, HERSIETIE
EE. REINHETHRER, MUNsREeE Tk

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIB Mg NEARS

University of Chicago, Hong Kong Center
ZINFREEBHD
Conserving Heritage and Preserving Nature

FREBMAKXBAR

Along with the growing awareness towards conservation among community, the conservation of historical buildings has attracted
attention in recent years. Heritage restoration and revitalization projects have become common in the engineering and construction
industry, and as such the restoration of historical buildings is now one of our major business focuses. We have participated in a number
of such projects, including the former detention centre on Victoria Road, a Grade IlI historic building which was transformed into the
Hong Kong Center for the University of Chicago. The site has panoramic views of Hong Kong Harbour and abundant greenery. To
respect both the heritage value of the existing building and the site’s natural beauty and location, the new campus was designed as a
“treehouse of knowledge”.

BEOEHEREEHEKYUR, BELEENREEARZRT, REEENSCEBETIEREFRILERZNH
R, BELEREEIROEFETHRARMNRZEMc— RAZRTZHRABTEEIR, ETIERBER=ZRESE
BEY). ARNEEFENREZSFENHRA0, HEBAZMFAREER L. RUKBERSHENBEERLE, A8
EMRBERFMNBERRE, HMKFTHREFUAE BRI RMAKRE A,

He0|’rhy ftrees are precious resources. The project feam s’rrong|y recommended maintenance works for trees located in the site areas.
Qualified and experienced tree consultants were emp|oyed to conduct tree risk assessments and a series of maintenance works were
carried out to protect the trees. These measures included insect control and installation of chain link fences to ensure healthy growth of
the protected trees, demonstrating PYE's commitment to environmental protection.

BRNEASESER. HEERBERRNS THEERNBEAETEELF. KEEIREREF T EEFNKERE
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group's main type of BE_E—/\FZA=T—HLFE, x&EETE45j)

emission and resources consumption are as follows: NEER 8 N EREFELNT -
Our hotel development business
BPRVBELEEERT

Intensity

(kWh per employee)

kWh #E

TRE (FRE S%8T)

Electricity Consumption AEE 11,701 53

Intensity

(kWh per van)

kWh BE

TRE (FEESHEHE)

Petrol Energy Consumption FUHMEE 73 14.60

Intensity

(Tonnes per employee)

Tonnes BE

L7 (Bnmg, S287T)

Paper Consumption B2 1.5 0.007
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Our construction business
KMIERTIZETS

Carbon Emissions

(Tonne CO2e)
Scope 1#
Scope 2*

Scope 3*

WHE &
N (CREREE)

The above figures indicate total carbon emissions and their

intensities from five local projects with highest revenue of

the Group. Scope 1 includes energy direct emission; Scope

2 includes energy indirect emissions; and Scope 3 includes

electricity used for fresh water and sewage processing.

Sulphur Oxide Emissions from

Vehicles

Non-hazardous Waste

Electricity Consumption
Diesel Energy Consumption

Petrol Energy Consumption

Water Consumption

BEWmA NS

BEBYE

AEe
EHER

RS

K&

Tonnes

Vg
2,729
1,297
32

Intensity (Tonnes per HK$
million project revenue)
(R, BEEBHET
HEKA)

0.95

0.45

0.01

fUERFBRRASEEAM O EES WA TIEEE
B PE B R EEE, SBRaERRERIN
(IR IFERBE RN, REEIIERNERER

5 IKERIER A B,

Kg
F5=

0.36

Tonnes
NI
47,023

kWh
FTRE

2,543,427
10,753,977
239,174

o

AYSE S
75,496
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Intensity

(kg per vehicle)
B
(F=/ES&@WHE)

0.04

Intensity (Tonnes per HK$
million project revenue)
il

(R, SEBET
HRRA)

16.29
Intensity (kWh per HK$

million project revenue)

BE (TRE SB8AT

HEBA)
880.91
3,724.60
82.84

Intensity (m? per HK$
million project revenue)

B
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Note: The above figures indicate total sulphur oxides emissions
(priva’re cars on|y), total non-hazardous waste, total
electricity consumption, total diesel energy consumption,
total pe’rro| energy consumption (private cars on|y), total
water consumption and their intensities from five local
projects with highes’r revenue for the Group.

EMPLOYEE MANAGEMENT
Employment
Employee Welfare and Working Conditions

Acknowledging that our employees’ contribution and effort drive
our dynamic achievements, we try our best to provide them with

a great place to work.

Our human resources policy strictly complies with employment
laws and regulations and we offer competitive remuneration
packages and plenty of training and career prospects. The
Group operates an equal opportunities workplace where
discrimination is not tolerated and staff can function without fear

of age, sex, race or other biases.

We have put in place a series of family-friendly policies and
practices, including compensation leave, marriage leave,
paternity |eove, compassionate |eove, volunteer |eove, and
festival leave to enhance qudlity of life. Always striving to
create a harmonious working environment, we have created a
mutually supportive culture with heart. In the year under review,
our construction business has received once again the Happy
Company Label, presented by the Promoting Happiness Index
Foundation in acknowledgement of the success of our efforts
towards fulfilling staff well-being.

Work-life Balance

Our hotel business has implemented a Personal Enrichment
Program (PEP) to provide classes, internal and external, for
staff relevant to their personal interests with a view to building
know|edge and persono| satisfaction.
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Health Safety
Occupational Health and Safety

The Group assigns utmost importance to providing a safe and
healthy working environment for our people. Our "Safety,
Health, Environmental and Quality Policy Statement” ensures
compliance with all relevant laws and regulations and guides
all levels of stakeholders, from employees to management
and partners, in the implementation of our safety and health
practices. Our "Safety, Health, Environmental, and Quality
Management Committee’, composed of senior management,
oversees these protocols through regular meetings on
occupational safety and health issues. The committee also
follows up, monitors and reviews concerns to identify, assess and
reduce risk. Further, construction procedures are continuously
fine-tuned to enhance occupational safety and health
performance.

Education for employees to enhance safety awareness remains
a priority. Regular safety seminars and workshops are held to
ensure that employees gain a thorough understanding of safety
procedures and mechanisms. Our Safety and Environmental
Protection Department regularly produces vibrant safety videos
for staff education. In addition, the Safety and Environmental
Protection Newsletter listing industry news, regulations and
information on occupational safety and health, was launched to
remind staff of the importance of strict compliance with related
laws and regulations.

Additional safety measures are introduced in response to
different site conditions. For example, safety bulletin boards
related to high-risk works lifting, work platforms, chemical goods
and confined spaces, along with personal protective equipment,
are available at construction sites. Equipment to prevent falls as
well as emergency response manuals are also provided.

The physical and mental health needs of construction workers
are acknowledged and addressed. For example, drinking water
areas, covered seating and mist fans are installed to ease the
pressure of hard labour and improve comfort. Site nurses are
also present to monitor workers” health.
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Lamma Power Station Extension Project

Y RERBEETRE

Zero-Hyceat Stroke Record Wins Bronze Award

EIRERTERR S8 R

Working outdoor in Hong Kong's hot and humid summer can lead to heat stroke. For our project team undertaking civil and building
works for Unit L10 of the Lamma Power Station Extension, prevention was the solution. The "Program to Prevent Heat Stroke at
Work”, with “Say ‘no’ to Heat Stroke” as a slogan, was an important component of our site safety management measures. It proved
very successful, with a “zero heat stroke” record throughout the duration of construction. The initiative also won the “Best Programme
to Prevent Heat Stroke at Work” Bronze award of the "Construction Safety Promotion Campaign 2017 jointly organised by the
Occupational Safety and Health Council, Labour Department and the Construction Industry Council.

BEBNESRAPR, PAIFEEZTE. BV EEHBERH ) HRFEBHELTERAE TIERNEES BB TR LT
ERREE 85I AREEERMT, WUATATESay Not HO%E, FREGIALFRETERAEEER. BEHM
IESRFE B IRENCE, FEARBEZ2ERE. FLRMNEEXZGEMRN BREXRL2HEEE2017)
hERIRERN TERDETE - 722

A multi-pronged approach was adopted to achieve the “zero” heat stroke record. In addition to requiring workers to participate in the
"Prevention of Heat Stroke” induction training at the time of entry, heat-resistant equipment such as portable air-conditioned tents

and drinking water equipment were also made available. In addition, heat-resistant working gear such as sunshade brims for helmets,
helmets with battery fans, anti-UV cooling hand sleeves and cooling sprays for shirts as well as ice towels were distributed to the workers.
A TERIE RERE, BEEKZELET, RTERIAABRZ2E B2 IR, ERENARBUNRS
RHBURBIVIRZE. NAKES, TRATARFELZLEREE. RE2BEERB. BUVACRT M. ARBERKRMEFER
2 o

In another precautionary measure, workers aged 60 or above underwent compulsory body temperature and blood pressure checks
daily before commencing work on the construction site. As the small excavator cab is generally open and has no air-conditioning
system, the project team innovated by installing external mini-generators, air conditioners and a transparent plastic screen to improve
the cab Working environment. The resu|’ring cool environment lowered the risk of heat stroke for the cab operators.

Wb TROFBER, FeomiU LT A, SEEIMAEEERERMNE, NERERESEKTLZIIIF
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Development and Training
Staff Training

Policies are in place to ensure employees (i) have the necessary
tools, skills and knowledge to perform their work, (i) are
provided with opportunities to learn new skills and enhance
knowledge, and (iii) are up-to-date with any developments in
their areas of expertise.

Our construction business devotes considerable resources to
staff training and development so as to keep talent up-to-date
with the best and latest practices in their areas of expertise. Our
Graduate Trainee and Non-Graduate Trainee programmes
support professional development by sponsoring of course

Fees, while further education Funding and examination leave
encourage employees at all levels to top up their qualifications
and embrace continuing education related to their scope

of duties and career aspirations. Meanwhile, our training
department rolls out seminars and workshops on a variety of
subjects, from building techniques to computer technology,
safety and environmental protection, stress management with
Chinese medicine, and even tea and health. These courses are
selected to not only educate staff but also broaden vision and
help our people thrive in the ever-changing business context.
They also provide opportunities for staff to explore their interests
and achieve a healthy work-life balance.
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Innovation-Driven Project Design
EGNEIE

Training to Embrace BIM Era

AR E LI EEBIMEF AL

RPN EBERTITEES —BIFMNEERKEE

to software, technical support and training.

TEHABE ZHEo

shorten construction time.

ATEETEEBMAE —HTEMNRE, T £
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By o

EARIEY, EMmEMMERBMKXM L ERER, UBBICITEEENRARETF, =2

Our construction business is driven by a combination of experience, advanced technology and sensitivity o market dynamics.

« BRBE KRBT HEEINEEER,

The 2017 Policy Address of the HKSAR Government clearly positions Building Information Modelling (BIM) as an integral part of the
design and construction of major government capital works projects starting in 2018. It also promotes BIM use in private construction.
PYE is a pioneer in the use of BIM in construction in Hong Kong. For years, we have incorporated BIM in our construction project
cycles, increasing the Group's strengths and competitiveness in the industry. BIM resources are allocated to all processes, from hardware

REEAREEF _F-—tENMERSES), —F—/\CRECIBZBNEATEEERNRTNES L, KEA
M2 RERRERM I (BIM), WBLRMIEEERARKRIEE L, REZXFEZRK, BERSEBMRMERRT
BREENERS, URAFAEERERNERERGES ), BEEERRE, LEEME. . itk UEHIIFE

Keeping staff at the forefront of BIM technology’s cutting edge is a priority. To this effect, our "BIM for All to Use” program invites
experts to share their BIM know|edge with our senior management and frontline staff from various cleporfmenfs. Staff also gain
valuable hands-on experience of BIM at different work stages, namely design, construction and facility management so they are able
to develop expertise in effective implementation of BIM to streamline project design and planning and increase efficiency as well as

EABIMIETE, BMBERAREFIFSFRMEBIMEBE, &
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LABOUR STANDARDS
Human Rights and Equal Opportunities

We provide a workplace without discrimination and guarantee
equal treatment. We also establish processes and practices that

support workforce in their current and future work.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management
Supply Chain Management

Suppliers play a vital role in the management of our quality
standards and sustainability practices. As a veteran large
contractor, the Group high|y values our |ong-ferm business
partners and has established a platform of mutual cooperation
for win-win outcomes with contracting services of the best
quality.

As for our construction business, in order to maintain this high
standard of service, we have also put in place a performance
evaluation system for our business partners, including continuous
evaluation of CSR and other aspects. In addition, we identify
potential suppliers and sub-contractors to ensure ready
availability of quality resources and services to support business
operations.
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French International School Tseung Kwan O Campus
EEERERGEERR S
Ensuring Quality Right on Time

BOEEEEH%E

FEZZIRER, 2k

productivity and efficiency.

E. £EN B IHE,

B TREEE, URERERRER VAR,

As a main contractor of the Tseung Kwan O campus of the French International School, the school's fifth compus in Hong Kong, the

Group proactively proposed a variety of measures to ensure superior construction quality and on-time completion. They included:

EREBEEFEZREERZAMON - RERRSHREAER, A7 LREREEBELRINRNY, AEEXIRE

» Adopting Glass-fibre Reinforced Concrete (GRC) for panel construction in lieu of Precast Concrete Component (PCC), enabling

assembly and installation procedures to be carried out off-site for time saving and convenience;

SMELGRCEHMNR, MARKERLEMN, EERTIFAFEIUMET, ERKSE;

» Adopting top-down construction methods for some sections of the building so that construction of portions of the upper floors could

be completed first to enable flexibility, leading to better time control and time saving; and

FENDBERAERREEE, UAEAESBENTE, BREEHRMERME ;5 &

» Installing Glass-fibre Reinforced Gypsum (GRG) panels for the acoustic architectural features of the lecture hall replacing more

complicated procedures. Thus procedures were streamlined and there was greater construction accuracy, as well as enhanced

BE PR ERERERRS ERRET, RAGRGHRMARAEEN TR, BItIFER BiRA THINEE

As seen above, the project team identified well in advance the risks that would have delayed completion, and proposed alternatives
that significantly reduced energy consumption, construction complexity, and safety hazards.

M ErEfEtEs, &7 IEEBBETREA SR THIERN AR, TBAT P EEREBNER, ARRETRER

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE g NEama

Product Resonsibilities
Quality Management

Our construction business quality management system
incorporating sustainable business practices is updated regularly
in line with the ISO 9001 international standard. In keeping
with the maxim “a stitch in time”, our project team conducts a
thorough risk analysis of every new project to identify potential
risks in advance and formulate and implement risk-mitigating
measures that incorporate CSR and sustainability practices. Our

quality objectives ensure minimal wastage.

Protection of Data

Protection of company data and privacy of information is

very important to the Company. In order to gain trust from all
our stakeholders, the security of their personal information is
important to us. The Company acknowledges the importance

in carefully handling all personal information. We have policies
in place to monitor how the personal information of our
stakeholders is collected, used and managed. The personal
information is usually collected from our vendors, employees and
other business associates.

The Company understands stakeholders use their personal
information for different purposes while performing business
activities. Therefore, it is important for us to handle this
information with care. To keep all company's data from any
unauthorized access, accidental loss and or desfrucﬂon, the
Company adopts appropriate security and data protection
measures in the transfer and storage of the personal data and
only processes corresponding information when necessary. In
order to ensure that our data would be safe from cnf’rctcks, we
have implemented multiple layers of security features, data
protection mechanism'’s which protect and monitor the integrity
of information. Reference to best practices for cyber security
and data protection methods and the use of various software
and hardware tools, further strengthens our data protection and
network security measures.

Anti-Corruption
Whistle-Blowing

The Company has in place a whistleblowing policy and system
which enables employees and those who deal with the Group to
raise concerns, in com(idence, with the Audit Committee about

possible improprieties in any matter related to the Group.
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Business Ethics

Building and ensuring the culture of integrity within the

Group has long been a major component in management.

All management and staff must comply with the Code of
Conduct, which sets out our position and standards regarding
operating ethics and employee conduct, including preventing
bribery and avoiding conflicts of interest. Any breaches of the
Code are handled in strict accordance with internal disciplinary

procedures.

In addition, protecting the privacy of stakeholders is an essential
task. Non-disclosure agreements are included in our tenders and
contracts for sub-contractors, in order to prevent the leakage of

relevant information.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
Community investment
Community Investment

Last year, our construction business effort towards nurturing

new talent in construction were recognised by the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Small and Medium Businesses. We
participated in the Chamber’s Partner Employer Award for the
fifth consecutive year and were honoured with an Outstanding
Enterprise Award and the Partner Employer Award 5 Years
logo, in recognition of the opportunities we have made available
to local tertiary graduates in the past five years. We firmly
commit to continuing these efforts to nurture new talent in the

construction industry in the future.

Last year, our construction business donated 700 kilogrammes
of rice to the People’s Food Bank at St. James' Settlement.

Our volunteers also he|ped to pack the rice in smalll pocke’rs for
easy delivery fo those in need. In addition, surplus construction
materials including ceramic walll tiles were donated to Longevity
Design House, a social enterprise that provides low-cost home
renovation services for the e|der|yA On the one hand, these
donations help to renovate homes for the elderly, and on the
other, they reduce wastage by fully utilising surplus construction
materials.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, our construction
business made charitable and other donations of approximately
HK$541,000 in support of community welfare, environmental
protection and safety initiatives.

Employee Engagement in Community

The volunteer team of our construction business joined the
Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council last year to visit the
elderly in Lam Tei, Tuen Mun before the Mid-Autumn Festival.
Besides, they visited the mentally challenged at Harmony
Manor, Shatin in February this year.
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The volunteer team underwent an usual training experience /\\: E—tFH, EIEEELHETEEKENRSE
when the Volunteer Committee organised a visit to the FIEEPHE EREETRNEINES), EMMTE
Dialogue in the Dark exhibition in Mei Foo in June 2017. They iE@I;%f%W BEREATHERELE, T2EMTFE
experienced the day-to-day life of the vision-impaired as they @J&*ﬁ BATHPZEE, E—F THREEATHKENL
navigated their way through pitch darkness. They also attended B, BRI AR,

a braille workshop and an experience-sharing session with
visually-impaired individuals to gain a better understanding of

the world of those without sight and to broaden their helping
skills.

PYE Sponsors Central District Cultural Tour
REREXEHPERERLEE

A History Lesson on Building Hong Kong
BREETHERESE

This year, we joined the Conservancy Association Centre for Heritage (CACHe) in organising the "All About Engineering - Constructions
in Central District” cultural tour.

FER, ZARKHIEREEREFEAXEEBEERTOIGFERTIRTIUX - TRERTEZ | XLEEE,

About 30 people joined the walk which took in a number of PYE landmark constructions in Central, namely The Center, Cheung Kong
Center, China Construction Bank Tower and the Central Mid-Levels Escalator and Walkway System. Our engineers acted as docents
and shared with participants their experiences. The group learned a great deal about construction, including different construction
methods adopted in accordance with the geographic environment and how engineers use technology for a range of purposes, from
protecting heritage buildings to constructing pedestrian subways, skyscrapers and the Mid-Levels escalator system. They also learned
how BIM technology has been facilitating efficient construction in recent years.
BREEEHBRB0L2MELRAM—RAESFREERXUNTEARNZEAMRRR, SFEPRAL. RIIEET
On FEERIBITAERPREFLEESRBRMN, WHRRRMNWIEMFEES ) ZMMNEER, BLR T AR
LLI%% HETEMIBRES, RENERRSE ; TREAXXNENBAERMN, EREMINELZRFE,

EMEERERT TIBTARE. ERSEAENEXIAE. URITEFILITARENESHHEFEBRL ; EBBIM
B‘ZW&&D@H@&@EE%W%E%O

By tracing the development of Central and sharing stories of building construction in Hong Kong, the Group hopes to educate the
general public on the finer details of Hong Kong's urban landscape.

BEERNEE RS, AEBFLESNEENTREELEBEEILENNE, BLARM T RIEBHMERE—
FEsEST L, BRI,

Date: 27 June 2018 HEf . —E=2—/\EB_-_+tH
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of South Shore Holdings
Limited (formerly known as The 13 Holdings Limited) (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the

“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associate, joint ventures
and joint operations as at 31 March 2018 are set out in note 48

to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group's business performance
during the reporting period, as well as the principal risks and
uncertainties and future prospects of the Group are set out in
the Chief Executive Officer's Report of the annual report, the

discussions thereof form part of this Directors’ Report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group understands the importance of sound environmental
management practices and sustainable business operations.
The Group has in place environmental policy and is committed
to minimise adverse impact that its operations may have on
the environment. The Group has implemented a number of
environment-friendly measures such as installation of LED
lighting and adoption of electronic internal administrative
processes fo replace the use of paper.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the year ended 31 March 2018, as far as the Company
is aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The sustainable development of the Group depends on the
supports and efforts of all parties concerned inc|uc|ing our
customers, suppliers and contractors, particularly the efforts
and contribution of all our staffs. Accordingly, our senior
management has kepf good communication, prompﬂy
exchanged ideas and shared business updates with them when
appropriate.
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CHANGE OF NAME

Special resolution was passed by the shareholders of the
Company at a specic1| genero| meeting of the Company held on
8 May 2018 to change the name of the Company from "The 13
Holdings Limited” to "South Shore Holdings Limited” and the
Chinese name " EaFESEGR/2F] " has been registered as
the secondary name of the Company in place of * +=&£EH
[E/3F] " The change of name took effect on 9 May 2018.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page
108 of the annual report and in the accompanying notes to the

consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the five largest customers
and the single largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 49% and 17% of the revenue of the Group,
respectively. The aggregate purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group during the year was less than 30%
of the purchases of the Group.

As far as the directors are aware, none of the diredors, their
close associates, within the meaning of the Lis’ring Ru|es, or those
shareholders which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company's share capital have an interest in any
of the five largest customers of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities to
meet its working capital requirements. As at 31 March 2018,
the Group's total bank and other borrowings amounted

to approximately HK$4,143,554,000 with approximately
HK$4,116,054,000 repayable within one year and
approximately HK$27,500,000 repayable more than one
year but not exceeding five years. In addition, the Group
also has outstanding convertible bonds with face value of
HK$2,218,542,350 and liability component as at 31 March
2018 of approximately HK$684,611,000. The convertible
bonds mature in February 2025. Cash, bank balances and
deposits as at 31 March 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$1,188,461,000. The Group's total debts to total assets ratio
was approximately 0.3 as at 31 March 2018.
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FIXED ASSETS

During the year, the Group spent approximo’re|y
HK$101,324,000 on property, plant and equipment and
deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
for the purpose of expanding its business.

In addition, the Group spent approximately HK$446,627,000
for the hotel under development erected on the Cotai Strip of

Macau.

Details of these and other movements in the hotel under
development, property, plant and equipment, deposits paid
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment and prepaid
land lease payments of the Group during the year are set out
in notes 14, 15 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option schemes and details of
movements in the share options of the Company and Falloncroft
Investments Limited ("Falloncroft”) during the year are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2018 comprised the contributed
surplus of approximately HK$1,858,814,000.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year
and up to the date of this report are:

Executive directors

Stephen Hung (Joint Chairman) (resigned on 25 January 2018)
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Chairman)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Deputy Chairman)

Walter Craig Power (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive directors

James Chiu, OBE, JP

Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP
lain Ferguson Bruce

Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny

BlE&EE

TN, REBZYZE. BN RERBEEYZE. Bk
Hlm e DA E] £ F S #97101,324,0008 7T, THAERIET
HZE,

A, REBFSEFRRKE Y RE FREERTEE
B 32 #94446,627,00075 7T,

FA, AEEFRPAEE. Y. BRkRE. 1B
F. B kERimzENETEURBEN T MBEERIEL £
RN Ny B ENFHE 0 B E S RIR & M KM 5L

14, 151217,

AR

FW, ARBEETRAZEHFBHRIINGEH R
K35,

1 g

FEP, AI\E) NFalloncroft Investments Limited
(TFalloncroft)) < FERGIEET B BRI X EREEBNFF B
AR & B PSR R MY EE360

RRF) 2 A R

ATE-N\EFZB=+—0H, AR ARDIRFREZ
IR IE B 2 82401,858,814,0008 710

B=F
RRBNAFERBEARSAPHIZEETOT

WITES

KB (BEFEE) (RZB—/\F—A T+ A HEF
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (/%)

R (EF/F)

Walter Craig Power (77E(#282)

BIIFRMITES
HHE, OBE, JP
ZJ555, GBS, SBS, JP
i

Francis Goutenmacher

ﬁ%%/p\
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company's

Bye-laws, Professor Lee Chack Fan, Mr Francis Goutenmacher
and Mr Chan Kok Chung, Johnny will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. All retiring directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

Non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term of
approximately three years, and they are subject to retirement by

rotation under the Company’s Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with

the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable

by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFQO")), as recorded in
the register of the Company required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
"Model Code") in the Listing Rules were as follows:
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EE (@

BIEANB N E5870) 2871, Zl8 &% .
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FEFAE LHRESE. MEEEEEHAERITER
REE B REEF RS LEEET,

FPTESZEEERNA=F, UFERBEALT R
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EEZRBEK

BRSO BEFAE LEREECES, HE
EEAN B S EAE AP B R B BT SRS IR — AR
EERIEMBAFHEE CEAERERN ZRB S K,

EENRM. HERRMN RESFRBERXE

RIB-N\F=ZRA=+—0H, ARABENETEITH
ABRARBHERERER (E&EREFPEED
(TEEZ RHIEGA) BBXVER) &t HRERMN RESS
A RBESLAEGASEISMERFENRARTE
SR @gEk%e, REEHRAIZ EHRAESE
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(Continued)

Interests in shares and under|ying shares of the Company

Number of shares

EERHE

E= N7

RARB B LA 7 <

Total number
of shares and

HRARM REF 2 ER XA (E)

Name of director Capacity held
EEScEd 51 PR B E
Peter Lee Coker Jr. Beneficial owner 6,376,260
ERHWEA
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom Interest of controlled 90,725,800 (Note 3)
== corporation (Ff$5E3)
RS PEH A B 2 B
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom Beneficial owner -
28R BEREEA
Walter Craig Power Beneficial owner -
BEREEAN
James Chiu Beneficial owner -
b=y BEREBEAN
Lee Chack Fan Beneficial owner -
e EREEA
lain Ferguson Bruce Beneficial owner 89,881
hmEL ERWBEA
Francis Goutenmacher Beneficial owner -
ERWBA
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny Beneficial owner -
RER BEREEAN
Notes: Y EE
1. 2,204,276 share options (adjusted as a result of the Capital 1.
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February 2018 and
the completion of the Rights Issue on 20 March 2018) were
granted fo each of Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr., Mr Lau Ko
Yuen, Tom and Mr Walter Craig Power on 18 September
2015 under the share option scheme adopted on 11 August
2015 (the "2015 Share Option Scheme”) and entitle each of
them to subscribe for Shares upon exercise at an adjusted
exercise price of HK$12.531 per Share. The share options
shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third on 18 Sepfember
2016, as to a further one-third on 18 September 2017 and
as to the final one-third on 18 September 2018. The share
options are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates until
17 September 2019 (both dates inclusive).
/7

Interest in underlying Approximate
underlying shares shares held percentage
PR 7 &

RIERERMD < EE MHERROBE  Sask

9,004,976 (Note 1) 8,580,536 0.85%
(P&t

- 90,725,600 8.96%

2,204,276 (Note 1) 2,204,276 0.22%
(P51

2,204,276 (Note 1) 2,204,276 0.22%
(ML)

195,350 (Note 2) 195,350 0.02%
(yEE2)

195,350 (Note 2) 195,350 0.02%
(Fff5£2)

195,350 (Note 2) 285,231 0.03%
GE)

195,350 (Note 2) 195,350 0.02%
(FyE£2)

195,350 (Note 2) 195,350 0.02%
(fy5E2)

2,204,276 B (AR —F—/\F_F+_H
FHReRAERLNR_E—N\EFE-AZ+HZER
HEEMm#REE) BN 25— Eifﬁjlfﬂ‘Ff\E3$EﬁéﬁA
TE—AFE/\Bt+—HRNe ERESE (T2
—AEEERMESTE)) ) B TPeter Lee Coker Jr. 516
£ RS R E K Walter Craig Powerdt A4, #724&
FARITEESR2SIETITERR T REZA
u/bﬁ%ﬁxfﬁﬁ\z%ﬂ BEBRES=MEE, —HRZ

—NFAA+TN\BEE, BA—HRIE—t
fﬁjlfﬂﬂff\Eﬂﬁ%ng BN _E—/\EHLA
+N\HEB, EREE LARBEHRRZEE_S
—NENB+TCHPEHE BEEEMX) 8 717
EDS
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EERHE

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

2. 195,350 share options (adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February 2018 and
the completion of the Rights Issue on 20 March 2018) were
granted to each of Ir James Chiu, Professor Lee Chack Fan,
Mr lain Ferguson Bruce, Mr Francis Goutenmacher and
Mr Chan Kok Chung, Johnny on 18 September 2015 under
the 2015 Share Option Scheme and entitle each of them to
subscribe for Shares upon exercise at an adjusted exercise
price of HK$12.531 per Share. The share options shall vest
in 3 tranches, as to one-third on 18 September 2016, as to
a further one-third on 18 September 2017 and as to the
final one-third on 18 September 2018. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates until 17
September 2019 (both dates inclusive).

3. These Shares were beneficially owned by Circle Swing
Limited. Circle Swing Limited was a wholly owned
subsidiary of Rally Praise Limited which was in turn a
wholly owned subsidiary of Empire City International
Limited. Empire City International Limited was a wholly
owned subsidiary of Affluent Talent Limited which was in
turn wholly owned by Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom. Mr Lau Ko
Yuen, Tom, the deputy chairman and executive director of
the Company, is also a director of Affluent Talent Limited,
Empire City International Limited, Rally Praise Limited and
Circle Swing Limited respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EENRM. ERRNRESCERKRXE (B)

fysE : (F8)

2, 195350 BRI (AN - —/\FE_B+-84%
WM RABENMN _E—\F=A _+THTRH
RMmAR BER_E—AFNA+\HEBE_E
— L FRERE B TS TIEN. 85
TE\ HELTIE L Francs Goutenmacherst 4 2 [

BE, WEHBITEESRI253BTITEE
ﬁ—?ﬂigﬂ/\uﬁﬁﬁﬁxﬁZEﬂ RS =R
B, —#nR-_s—RENLA+\BEBE, BH—
HRZFE—CtFENLA+/\BHEE, BB 1R
E-\FNAT BB, BREE t1REBEH
PREEZE—NAFNAATTCHHE CEEEM
x) Al F1T1H,

3. It %5 3219 F Circle Swing Limited B 2585 o
Circle Swing LimitedZRally Praise Limited )4 &
MIE /5], MMRally Praise LimitedHl| 23 Empire City
International Limited8Y 4 & B /X 5)o  Empire City
International Limited 23 Affluent Talent Limited 19 £ &
SN E), MAHluent Talent LimitedFH 2 5 R 554
”ﬁﬁo%m@%I%K NEINEIF E R
TEE, JrAAffluent Talent Limited. Empire City
International Limited. Rally Praise Limited \2Circle
Swing Limited? Bl BV ZE =,

REXFIEEN, RIFE—/\F=B=+—H, &1
BEFNEBTBRAEMERAL TN EREEEE
(EERFH LG KRAZEXVED) < Rm. HRERD &
F%$ﬁﬁﬁ% &2 MERERPIESMEBFEER AR
TR EREsuLe, RBRESTRIMES
ﬁﬁA$ VB R EBEAIF 2 FBER BUK B
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERHE

BARMDNERE LB

DEBENTURES

(i) 2005 Share option scheme () —EShAFBRETE
The share option scheme adopted by the Company on ANBIR BB AFNA CHENEREE (T
7 September 2005 (the "2005 Share Option Scheme”) SENTFERESE)), _SELTERETED
expired on 7 September 2015. Details of movements in the R_E—AFNATCHER. BE_S—/\F=A
share options of the Company granted under the 2005 T HIEFEARAIRBE _ESAFERETS
Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March B BRREBE) BT

2018 are as follows:

Number of shares of the Company to be

issued upon exercise of the share options

RN RRA AR ETRNYE

Closing price of
the Company s

shares immediotely

Outstandingat ~ Grantedduring ~~ Adjusted during Lapsed during Oufstanding at Evercie prce before dote
Name of grantee Date of grant 149017 theyear theyear theyear 313016 per share of grant  Exercise period
RIE-1\E ES ) G
RIE-tE =R=t-A KAFRH
REAER btk ME-RiFfE EREH EREEE EREH B {7 BRTER G i
(Note13) HK$ HK$
(Hizhs) B B
Directors E5
Stephen Hung (resigned ~ 12.7.2013 3,600,000 - - (3,600,000 680 645 Notel
on 25 January 2018) “B--EtAt+CH Mzt
Peter Lee Coker Jr. 19.7.9013 3,600,000 - - (3,600,000) 680 645 Notel
CE-TECELCH Mt
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 1279013 5,600,000 - - (3,600,000 680 645 Note|
£l Z3-ZEETIA iz
Walter Craig Power 1279013 3,600,000 - - (3,600,000) 680 645 Nofel
“3-=EtR47A o
Jomes Chiy 1279013 360,000 - - (360,000) 680 645 Note 1
RS Z3-ZELRTIH MiE
Lee Chack Fan 1279013 360,000 - - (360,000) 680 645 Note|
55 “B-ZFtBTCH fis
lain Ferguson Bruce 1279013 360,000 - - (360,000) 6.80 645 Notel
gt “E--ECA+CH WiE
Frandis Goutenmacher ~ 12.7.2013 360,000 - - (360,000) 6.80 645 Nofe|
“E--EEATCA it
Sub-total 15,840,000 - - (15,840,000)
15t
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERHE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BARMNSERE LT (18
DEBENTURES (Continued)
(i) 2005 Share option scheme (Continued) () ZEELFERESTE (8)
Number of shares of the Company to be Closing price of
issued upon exercise of the share options the Company 's
REREENERA TR T RAEE shares immediately
Outstanding ot Granted during Adjusted during Lapsed during Outstanding at Brercie pric before dote
Name of grantee Date of grant 149017 the year the year the year 3130018 per share of grant  Exercise period
RIE-1\E SR A
RIB-tE ZE=1+-A NG
BEAES btz BA-BHXE ERiRH, R AR KR BRiTE LG e
(Note13) HK$ HK$
(Hzt) #n #n

Employees (In aggregate) B (55F)

107903 3,600,000 - - (3600,000) - 680 645 Note
“5--ECAtCH (53]
1279013 400,000 - - 400,000) - 680 645 Note 2
“E=EtAtCR R
1279013 900,000 - - (900,000) - 680 645 Note 3
“Z--EtA+TA W3
1279013 1,010,000 - - (1,010,000) - 680 645 Note 4
“ECEEELTR Hat4
1279013 1150,000 - - (1150,000) - 680 645 Note 5
ZE-EFEHCH Mzt
1279013 460,000 - - (460,000) - 680 645 Note 6
“E--EtA+CH M6
1279013 136,000 - - (138,000) - 680 645 10720M+o
“E--EtA+CH 1172017

“E-iE

309203 688,000 - - (688,000) - 690 689 Note 7
“E--ENA=1A W7
1510013 989,000 - - (289,000) - 810 70 Note 8
“3-ZEtAtER Mzt s
1872014 999,000 - - (299,000) - 680 598 Note 9
TE-RELEHH e
164015 401,000 - - (401,000) - 680 087 Note 10
“E-REMEtRA KE0

Subtotal 9,265,000 - - (9,265,000)

Nt
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERHE

BARMNERE L (]

DEBENTURES (Continued)
(i) 2005 Share option scheme (Continued) () —SETHEERETS (8)
Nurber of shares of the Company to be Closing prce of
issuied upon exercise of the share options the Company 's
R ERA LIRS T RIS shares immediately
Outstandingat ~ Grantedduring ~~ Adjusted during Lapsed during Oufstanding at Evercie prce beforedote
Name of grantee Date of grant 149017 theyear theyeor theyeor 1139018 per share ofgrant  Exercise period
RIE-1\% eSSt sl i
RIE-tE =ZR=t+-A KAFRH
REAR bl MR-RiHFAE EREH FREER EREN BR{T{E BRTRE Wit 188
(Note13) HK$ HK$
(i) A A
Other Participants (In aggregote) EBEE (A3)
1279013 1150,000 (1150,000) 680 645 Note 3
s Wit 3
1272013 450,000 (450,000) - 680 645 Note 4
e Wit4
1279013 260,000 (260,000) - 6.80 645 Note I
“E=EtA+CH KN
283.2014 112,000 (85,188) (26,812) - 3589 827 Note 12
B-ME=A_TI\A Note 3 Hizt1
s

Sub-total gt 1,972,000 (85,188) (1,886,812)

Total 5t 97,077,000 (85168) (26,991819)

Notes: B 5E -

1. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third . BRES-HEE =7 \72%}&*‘%#\ FT—=
on 12 July 2013, as to a further one-third upon topping FLH +— H Eﬁ}%: % A=) — Z?ﬁﬂ_xjf&ﬁ\ BF
out of the hotel under development on the Cotai Strip E%@iéé% R BEEHTE E%Eﬁ%; EE=7 ZE%
of Macau and as to the final one-third upon opening AR QF%E%K?*@EPZ/@W%%B%%E}:O e
of the hotel under development on the Cotai Strip of BEEREESEBCHRE_S—tF A +—
Macau. The share options are exercisable from the HEAR (DIEEEMR) T%TT@%O
dates on which the share options are vested until 11 July
2017 (both dates inclusive).

2. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third 2. BREI=HEB =/ \72%}&*&#\ — ‘:iitg
on 12 July 2014, as to a further one-third on 12 July 2015 FtR + =5 %9* 5 \_Z%Hﬂ& =
and as to the final one-third on 12 July 2016. The share *ﬁéﬁtﬁ THRB, RB=% ZE%HQEEE/\\
options are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates / \%:EE +_HHEB. E%Hﬂ% SHSuY-)
until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive). E Hﬂti =—tFECR+—BHRE (ZEEE

M K) B 1 T@o

3. The share options shall vest in 8 tranches, as to 10%, 3. BEARIED \ILERE, 10%. ]5%\A l5;/: 15%.  10%.
15%, 15%, 15%, 10%, 10%, 15% and 10% on 31 May 2013, 10%. %&10%25%)&% AR =B —=FhF
31 August 2013, 30 September 2013, 1 April 2014, 30 — +— Ho —_F—= fE/\E +—H. i’??_ =
September 2014, 31 January 2016, 31 March 2016 FNA= +E|\ —vv —mHFEMA—H. —%\*@
and 31 December 2016, respectively, subject to the Eﬁjiﬁ :JT E\ - /)i EfJF — =N 77%
fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The share options _/E\rfﬁlﬂ :/TL_ E\]&— E —NF+ A ETL_
are exercisable for 18 months from the dates on which EEW%: '|EE1%J%5ZE$EW%@%¢FO fERE B B
certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but in any event, EF%WWW&%@ZZ HEfCENsE 8 WP 717
exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive). B, MEEmNAN _—_E—tF B +—HZA

(AHFEEEMX) Bl T
8]
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERHE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) 2005 Share option scheme (Continued)

4.

The share options shall vest in 7 tranches, as to 15%,
15%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 15% and 10% on 31 August 2013,

1 April 2014, 31 December 2014, 31 March 2015,

31 January 2016, 31 March 2016 and 31 December
2016, respectively, subject to fulfilment of certain
vesting conditions. The share options are exercisable

for 18 months from the dates on which certain vesting
conditions are Fu|fi||eo|, but in any event, exercisable until
11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 4 tranches, as to 25%,
25%, 25% and 25% on 31 August 2013, 1 April 2014, 31
August 2014 and 31 January 2016, respectively, subject
to fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The share
options are exercisable for 18 months from the dates on
which certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but in any
event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to 30%,
30% and 40% on 31 May 2013, 31 December 2014
and 31 March 2016, respectively, subject to fulfilment
of certain vesting conditions. The share options are
exercisable for 18 months from the dates on which
certain vesting conditions are fu|ﬁ||ed, but in any event,
exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 ’rronches, as to one-third
on 30 September 2014, as to a further one-third on 30
September 2015 and as to the final one-third on 30
September 2016. The share options are exercisable from
the aforesaid vesting dates until 29 September 2017
(both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 ’rronches, as to one-third
on 15 October 2014, as to a further one-third on 15
October 2015 and as to the final one-third on 15
October 2016. The share options are exercisable from
the aforesaid vesting dates until 14 October 2017 (both
dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 ’rronches, as to one-third
on 18 July 2015, as to a further one-third on 18 July 2016
and as to the final one-third on 18 July 2017. The share
options are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 17 July 2018 (both dates inclusive).
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B _—ERAC 4B, —Bpuat

B=F—BEZE—FRF=-B=+—H05H8, ¥
BFERETHBESY. BRERETHEBEMNT
BER w BEFREENSE S AR 1718, MR
ARZE—tFEtE+—Her (BEEEMX)
B FAT1E
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EERHE

BARNDNERE L (8

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) 2005 Share option scheme (Continued)

10. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third
on 16 April 2016, as to a further one-third on 16 April
2017 and as to the final one-third on 16 April 2018. The
share options are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting
dates until 15 April 2019 (both dates inclusive).

1. The share options shall vest in 2 tranches, as to 75%
and 25% on 15 January 2014 and 31 December 2015,
respectively, subject to fulfilment of certain vesting
conditions. The share options are exercisable for
18 months from the dates on which certain vesting
conditions are Fu|fi||eo|, but in any events, exercisable
until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

12. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third
on 28 March 2015, as to a further one-third on 28
March 2016 and as to the final one-third on 28 March
2017. The share options are exercisable from the
aforesaid vesting dates until 27 March 2018 (both dates

inclusive).

13. Adjusted as a result of the Capital Reorganisation and
Rights Issue of the Company which took place during
the year ended 31 March 2018.

No share options of the Company granted under the 2005
Share Option Scheme were exercised or cancelled during

the year.

Particulars of the 2005 Share Option Scheme are set out in
note 36(a)(i) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERHE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BARMDERSE 2 TH (8)

DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) 2015 Share option scheme (i) —_E—RAFERETE
On 11 August 2015, the Company adopted a new share ARNBINIISE—AFN\A+—HFWEREE
option scheme (the "2015 Share Option Scheme”). Details ((CTEBE—hFERETE)) . BEZE—/\F=F
of movements in the share options of the Company granted — T HIEEFEARNBIRE_S—HFERETS

under the 2015 Share Option Scheme during the year
ended 31 March 2018 are as follows:

RECBERESBEHFBNOT

Closing price of
Number of shares of the Company to be the Company s
issued upon exercise of the share options shares
REREETERALTRE T RAHE immediately
Outstanding ~ Granted during Adjusted Reclassified ~ Lapsed during Outstanding Brercise price before date
Narme of grantee Dote of grant at14.2017 theyear  duringtheyear  during the year the year at3132018 per share of grant Exerciseperiod
RIZ-tE RIE-NEF SRR
mA-A =A=t+-H AALERA
REAES bl HA{THE EREE EREEE ERENDE FREN HAE  BROEE Gl frfeEe
HKS$ HK$
BT AT

Directors and their spouses £ K AL

Stephen Hung (resigned on 18.9.2015 9,207,500 - (8,286,750) - (920,750) 30.00 298 Notel
95 Jonuary 2018) “E-LENATAR (Note 3) (Note 3) (Note 3) R

X (RZF—1\F (B3t 3) (W3t 3) (3t 3)

—AZTRARA)
Peter Lee Coker Jr. 18.9.2015 9,207,500 - (7,003,204) - - 2,204,276 12531 298 Note|
“E-nEAATIA (Note 4) (Note ) K
(st 4) (it 4)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 18.9.015 9,207,500 - (7.003,224) - - 2,204,276 12531 298 Nofe
HER “E-REAATAA (Note 4 (Note 4) (53]
(st 4) (s 4)
Walter Craig Power 18.9.2015 9,207,500 - (7.003,224) - B 9,204,976 12531 298 Nofe
“Z-RENRTH (Note 4) (Note 4) liES)
(& 4) (st 4)
James Chiu 18.9.2015 816,000 - (620,650) - R 195,350 12531 298 Note
REE “E2-1EAATAR (Note 4) (Note 4) Wi
(it 4) (it 4)
Lee Chack Fan 18.9.2015 816,000 - (620,650) - R 195,350 12531 298 Notel
2} “E-REARTI (Note ) (Note 4) M
(st 4) (st 4)
lain Ferguson Bruce 18.9.2015 816,000 - (620,650) - . 195,350 12531 298 Nofe
&t “E-RENATNR (Note 4) (Nofe 4) Mg
Bzt 4) (s 4)
Francis Goutenmacher 18.9.2015 816,000 - (620,650) - R 195,350 12531 298 Note
“E-nENATN\R (Note 4) (Note 4) (hEal
(it 4) (iz4)
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny  18.9.2015 816,000 - (620,650) - R 195,350 12531 298 Note |
RER “Z-1FAATAR (Note 4 (Nofe 4 Wiz
(B 4) (Wt 4)

Deborah Alejandra Valdez 15.3.2016 180,000 - (162,000) (18,000) 30.00 2.08 Note
Perez (spouse of Stephen —F—7"E=A+1H (Note 3) (Note 3) liEa)
Hung) (B3t 3) (i3t 3)

Deborah Alejandra Valdez
Perez (AAGAE)

Subtotl 4,090,000 S (ss61670) (18,000) (0750) 7589578

et (Note 3)

(Mzt3)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERHE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES (Continued)
(i) 2015 Share option scheme (Continued)

BARMDNEER 2 (18)

(i) ZS—AFERETE (B)

Number of shares of the Company to be

Closing price of
the Company ‘s

issued upon exercise of the share options shares
REREETERALTRE T RAME immediately
Outstanding ~ Granted during Adjusted Reclassified ~ Lapsed during Outstanding Brercise price before date
Name of rantee Dote of grant at14.2017 theyear  duringtheyear  during the year the year at3132018 per share of grant Exerciseperiod
RIZ—tE RIE-NEF Pelar
mA-H =A=t+-H AIALFRA
REAES b=l HA{TfE FREH FAEEE  EREFNE FRKH AT SRFE it T8
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Employees (In aggregate) S (R51)
18.9.2015 19,200,000 (12,627,478) (Note5) 3,065,277 12531 298 Note|
“E-1ENAHNR (Notes 3 &4) (Kzts) (Note 4) i3
(GRR (M3t 4)
1532016 875,000 (875,000) 300 208 Note|
“E-nEAATER Wi
899016 9100,000 (760,600) (1100,000) 239,400 13104 316 Note 2
“EEAANE (Note 4) (Note 4) Mzt o
(GE2) (b3t 4)
Subotl 275,000 (13,386,078) (Nole) 3304677
It (Notes 3&4) (M3t 6)
(Mi5E3Ra4)
Other participants (In aggregate) E25EE (831)
18.9.2015 1,290,000 (981,174) 308,826 12531 298 Note
“E-RENATNE (Note 4) (Note 4) M
(Wizt4) (Hy4)
153.2016 25,092 18,000 - 43,092 12,531 2.08 Note |
CERE-ATEA (Note 4) (Note 4) BiEE
(GEZ) (R
Sub-total 1,290,000 (956,082) 18,000 - 351,918
It
Total 64,555,000 (46,905,832) (Note7) 11,246,173
it (Notes3&4) ()
(Mi5E3R4)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERHE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) 2015 Share option scheme (Continued)
Notes:

1. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third
on 18 September 2016, as to a further one-third on 18
September 2017 and as to the final one-third on 18
September 2018. The share options are exercisable from
the aforesaid vesting dates until 17 September 2019
(both dates inclusive).

2. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one
third on 8 September 2017, as to a further one-third on
8 September 2018 and as to the final one-third on 8
September 2019. The share options are exercisable from
the aforesaid vesting dates until 7 September 2020
(both dates inclusive).

3. Adjusted as a result of the Capital Reorganisation which
took effect on 12 February 2018.

4. Adjusted as a result of the Capital Reorganisation which
took effect on 12 February 2018 and the completion of
the Rights Issue on 20 March 2018.

5. Comprising (a) 2,694,500 share options, (b) 52,650
share options (adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February 2018)
and (c) 760,095 share options (adjusted as a result
of the Capital Reorganisation which took effect on 12
February 2018 and the completion of the Rights Issue
on 20 March 2018).

6. Comprising (a) 4,669,500 share options, 52,650
share options (adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February 2018)
and (c) 760,095 share options (adjusted as a result
of the Capital Reorganisation which took effect on 12
February 2018 and the completion of the Rights Issue
on 20 March 2018).

7. Comprising (a) 4,669,500 share options, (b) 973,400
share options (adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February 2018)
and (c) 760,095 share options (adjusted as a result
of the Capital Reorganisation which took effect on 12
February 2018 and the completion of the Rights Issue
on 20 March 2018).
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(i) —S—AFERETE (B)
P 5E -
. BRES=HEE =0—<ERER_-ZF—NX

FAE+N\BHE, BA=Dp—<BRENR_S
—tEFNB+/\BHEE, RR=70—<ERER
TE—)\FNLAEtT/\HEB. BERBEEEREE
BECOEE_E—NFNE+tHEE® (21
BEMX) 7] F17H,
0. BREO=ZHERE, = 0—<BRER_=2—t
FHAANEERB, A =9—BEBRER_S
—N\FNBNHEE, TR =-—9 ZERER_
E-NFAAN\OREB. BEREEEREERS
ZHEEZETEFNACHPE (ZEEEM
x) A F1Tf.

3. ARZE—

iFo

NEZB+-HEMZRAEMEMA

4. ARZE—/\FE_BTHEMcRAEELR
TE/\F=ZB = +HEMRzHRMAE,

5. B3E(a)2,694,50010 FE AR HE ; (b)52,65017 I8 Ak 18
(AR —EB—/\E-_B+ - BERRAEZEM
FEE) ;5 Ra(c)760,095(7 FE IR (RfR —F—/\F
TR+ AN CRAERNAN CE—/\E= A
" tHERZHBRmMARE)

6. I1E(a)4,669,50010 EEFRHE ;5 (b)52,65017) HE A 1
(AR =ZE—/\E-_B+-HERCRAEZHEM
FEE) ;5 Ma(c)760,095(7 FERRIE (R —F—/\F
TR+ AN RAERANN CE—/\E= A
" tHERZHBRMARE)

7. 23E(a)4,669,500170 FE R E ; (b)973,40017 I8 A 18
(AR BN\ F A+ _HERZKAEEM
FAEE) 5 N(c)760,095(7 BB R HE (AR — = —/\F
—A+= ETX&ZHXK%‘@&K\:TJ NE=F
T rHERZHBRmMARE)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERHE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) 2015 Share option scheme (Continued)
No share options of the Company granted under the 2015

Share Option Scheme were exercised or cancelled during

the year.

Particulars of the 2015 Share Option Scheme are set out in

note 36(a)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

(iii) Share award scheme

This scheme, which was adopted by the Company on 6
September 2006, allows the Company to make bonus
payments to eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) by way of
the Company’s shares acquired by and held through an
independent trustee until fulfilment of specified conditions
before vesting.

None of the directors of the Company were awarded any of
the Company’s shares under this share award scheme during
the year or as at 31 March 2018.

Particulars of the share award scheme of the Company are
set out in note 37(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

(iv) Share financing plan

This plan, which was adopted by the Company on 6
September 2006, allows eligible persons (including
emp|oyees, direcfors, consuHcm’rs, advisers and agents of

the Group) to borrow funds from the Company or from a
company within the Group to acquire new or old shares

of the Company on a non-recourse basis with the subject
shares pledged to the Company as security subject always
to connected transaction and other relevant provisions under
the listing Rules.

None of the directors of the Company acquired any of the
Company's shares under this share financing plan during the
year or as at 31 March 2018.

BARNDNERE L (]

(i) —F—AFBERIETE (8
FA, BEARFERE _FE-AFERESEEDY
< B T (L B AL 5Ho

—hFRBRESBFBENR M B REMEE
36(0)( )o

(iii) AR 17 22 Eh5TE
1 VERTEFRENANBEMNEBBE, &
REAEERAL (BEFAEECZEES. EF. B
F%\ DDD@)\&{‘&IEA) LXK TZHXT%\E)]H/K/)T/(?%T
i, WERNKE—LBUSHEABARESR, B
EIETEWRB R ERA L.

FRTR-_F-/\F=ZA=1+—H, BELALQTE
EIRBU R0 B B ERARE RN

RRB 2RI ERE B FBEHNF M B IMEMEE
37(a)o

(iv) RIDREESTE
RRBNZBFNFNANAFRNZTEEFHFEE
BALT (BEAERZEES. £ B #BAAR
REN) AARFAAEBAN—B LB ERUEER
REXABEANTHVERD, MILFRMRIER
ﬁQZK NEMEAEMR R, RN E LTHRAERRE

R 5 R B MABRIE S 2 IR Es

FRATNR-_F—/\F=ZA=1+—H, BEAQFTE
ERBILRNBESTEBETAARE RN
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERHE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(v) Share option scheme of Falloncroft

On 5 February 2013, prior to the completion of the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Falloncroft
(as described in a circular of the Company dated 5 January
2013), Falloncroft adopted a share option scheme and
granted options that would, for a subscription and capital
contribution, in cash, of up to HK$600,000,000,

entitle Chief Wise Limited ("Chief Wise"), an aoffiliate of

Mr Stephen Hung (former joint chairman and the executive
director of the Company), to subscribe for 600,000,000
number of the shares of Falloncroft. Chief Wise may assign
these options to the management of Falloncroft as it sees fit.

Holders of the options subscribing for shares of Falloncroft,
on exercise of the options, have the right to require the
Company to purchase their respective holdings of the shares
of Falloncroft in exchange for an allotment and issue of new
ordinary shares of the Company. The said share options of
Falloncroft lapsed during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Particulars of the share option scheme of Falloncroft are set
out in note 36(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the diredors, chief executives or their spouse or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of
the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

None of the directors of the Company are interested in any
businesses apart from the Group's businesses which compete
or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group during the year or as at 31 March 2018.

DIRECTORS MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether direcﬂy or indirecﬂy, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.
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(v) Falloncroftz BERZ #E5T2!
RIE—=F"HAH, NEMUWEFalloncroft2HS
ERITRA GGEALNDRABEAZSE——=F—FAH
ZIBH) I, Falloncrofti¥iA 7 BE AR FEET B % T B A%
T, BRLIREEREE & H & & %600,000,00078 7T
5 F Chief Wise Limited (T Chief Wise) , A&/ 8] 281
BMETFERITEEHKNAECHBE LD 2
600,000,0008%Falloncrofti& 0 2 # 5], Chief Wise ]
HHR B BB ZEERIEIEE TFRalloncroftz E1E
B

B A B A I IE T B RS AR BB Falloncrofti 1) 2 BB AR AE TS
BANBRERANEEERES BT ZFalloncroft
B, DASHRBCEE MBS T AN BT S B, MUk
Falloncroftl iR EEREE —_S—/\F=_A=+—H
IFFERN,

B BiFalloncroft BIR 2 SIS E N IR B M R W 5L
36(b)o

BAXFAREESN, ARNTNEEANBLT, RERN
EAREREZETIIERTH, USARBESEE
BAXREHEREMEBERBE ZRNIEREES (2
mES) MERN, BES. TETBRASHRFZER
RARFw+N\BEZ FREERBARNTES, TENF
AT R R F B

EFENBHR R R BE
FRIN_F—N\F=ZA=+—H, BAREEFEHES,
ARBBEREAERXBERNBEBNRF A E
BAHFERESD, BEHEE TR,

EENEARS. THERGNCERER

ARBEZEZAERRNANETAMBLRANAFERE
HRFERNEAREE ICERRL 5. ZHFREHTEE
B & S E R,
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EERHE

CONNECTED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

(a) Connected Transaction

On 28 June 2017, the Company and The 13 (BVI) Limited
(a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
sale and purchase agreements with each of Precious Year
Limited ("Purchase I") and Tycoon Bliss Limited ("Purchaser
II") pursuant to which The 13 (BVI) Limited has conditionally
agreed to sell 51.76% of the total issued shares in Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited ("PYE") for a total consideration
of HK$300 million (the "Disposal’). Purchase | is a wholly
owned subsidiary of ITC Properties Group Limited ("ITC
Properties’, together with its subsidiaries, the "ITC Properties
Group”) and Purchaser 1l is wholly owned by Mr Chan

Fut Yan. ITC Properties is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and Mr Chan Fut Yan is an executive director

of PYE. Accordingly, Purchaser | and Purchaser Il are
connected persons of the Company, and the Disposal
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the Disposal
were set out in a circular of the Company dated 28 March
2018.

(b) Continuing Connected Transaction

On 12 December 2017, PYE (a subsidiary of the Company)
and ITC Properties Holdings Group Limited ("ITC Properties
Holdings"), (a subsidiary of ITC Properties) entered into

a new business services agreement (the “ITCP Business
Services Agreement”) for the period from 1 April 2017 to

31 March 2018 with the annual cap amount of HK$120
million. The entering into of the ITCP Business Services
Agreement constituted a continuing connected transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of these were set out in the circular of the Company
dated 5 January 2018.
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FHERIER 5

(o) FAERZ

MRIFE—EFESNHT/\H, 205 The13 (BVI)
Limited (A~ B e E M1 & 22 B]) HlPrecious Year Limited
(FE&7711) KzTycoon Bliss Limited (&A1) S EEI I &
BisE, #ELL, The13 (BVI) Limited B IE TR E HER
EREEEBRNE ((RERZ)) 2HEETRMN
Z51.76%, FRHEZ00EE T (HEEE) ., A
AEEMESEGRAND (MEFE], ERAENEB
nE), eRIMEEESRE) c2ENBRE, ME
FIHRBETELEREG, EFMEAANBCE
EivER, MEBELSEARERECHITES,
It, RIE EMIREEBUAE, BEHINE FIBANT
ZEEAT, HEFEBRNARNBCEERZ. B
FHEFE HFBHNARNTBBEAZSE—/\F=
BZ+HN\HZEX.

(b) FHERIER 7

RZE—CHE+ AT ZH, REREE (KRB
J& /2 3]) MITC Properties Holdings Group Limited (MTC
Properties Holdings | , EFEHIE Z &/ F)) 5] LT
(G5B Bz ITCPEBRBHEL) , FHE"E
—CHENA—HEZE—/\G=B=+—HaA1L,
FE FBR©%E4120,000,0005 7T, BiF EHRAIE
14AEE, B]TIITCPEEFSARTS ek 1B Al A Bl 2 Fr i
ERXH. BRAFEHNALNTHHEA S —/\F—
B R HZBHK,
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EERHE

CONNECTED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Continuing Connected Transaction (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group entered

into the following transactions with a subsidiary of ITC

Properties and associates of the ITC Properties Group:

FHERER 5 (18)

(b) FHERERS (1)
BE-B—\E=P=+—BLFERN, FEER
B E T — RN B A T R B A B A
LT IU TR

Name of party Nature of transactions Amount

RBH%HE RHME B

HK$'000

THET

Keen Step Corporation Limited ("Keen Step”) Construction works charged by the Group 2,556
EHRBRLE (T85%)) FEEWENEK TIZE

Empresa De Fomento Industrial E Commercial Concordia, S.A. Construction works charged by the Group 43,130
AEEWNGHWIRE

Best Prosper Investment Limited Construction works charged by the Group 16,934
FEBWEESHNIESE

62,620

Keen Step, Empresa De Fomento Industrial E Commercial
Concordia, S.A. and Best Prosper Investment Limited are
associates, within the meaning of the Listing Rules, of ITC
Properties, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) "Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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ERFEFMECHEALT (TR TR

ARNERBEERBE BN G EMcEEREL
TEZERIZE30005% (IE1EET) B NBRE LM B ERLL
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FHERER 5 (18)

CONNECTED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Continuing Connected Transaction (Continued)

The auditor of the Company has reported his conclusion on
these procedures to the board of directors of the Company.
The independent non-executive directors of the Company

have reviewed and confirmed that the continuing connected

transactions as set out above have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinory and usual course of the business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

On 28 March 2018, PYE and ITC Properties Holdings
entered into a new business services agreement (the "ITCP
New Business Services Agreement”) for the period from 1
April 2018 to 31 March 2019 with the annual cap amount
of HK$1,600 million. The entering into of the ITCP New
Business Services Agreement constituted a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these were set out in the
circular of the circular dated 20 April 2018.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE
SFO

As at 31 March 2018, so far as is known to the directors and the
chief executives of the Company, the interests and short positions
of the substantial shareholders/other persons in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

(b)

RIE

FHERER S (18)

ZNNSIEA LGS SEASY s v =t S IR /NCIE - 4=
HE. ARA2EEIDEFRTESFEER LXXET
Z%%;%% R MR EFERZZ T

() RAEEBER—WREFDENET;

(i) MEFBEHERAEBETET; &

(i) MREEERX 2 mEET, EERAR
B, FERRNEREEEN .

A _E—/\F=ZAZT/\H, ®REEZEXITC
Properties Holdingss ] 17 ¥TZ 7% AR %5t 5% (NITCPH#T
X=BERBwE), FHAR_S—/\FUE—H=E
TE—NF=RA=-t+—HAlL FELRELES
1,600,000,00078 7T, iEH#E EHRRAISEI4AE, 5717
ITCPETZEFS AR IS 1B B A AN Bl  FHERIIE A Fo
BEFBEERNARNBIHAAEZ—/\FHAE Z+H
ZE M,

B RAERGEBMFTFECE L MATCRZE

ERRHMAT 2 BER%EE

RIE—/N\F=ZB=+—8, %4 R T%%&IEﬁEﬁZ
ANBFIH, RIFESFNAEHRMNBESMRFEZAR
ST FERE S HMALTRER TZHxTﬁ&
ERAR M 2 RS RINT
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE

SFO (Continued)

(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the shares and

underlying shares of the Company

Name of shareholder

fRERBE

Global Allocation Fund
("Global Allocation”)

Evolution Capital
Management, LLC
("Evolution”)

Tiger Trust

Lerch Michael

Advance Tech
e

ITC Properties
Management Group

Limited ("ITC Properties

Management”)

ITC Properties
B E

Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles ("Dr Chan”)
PR (MRRiEL) )

Ng Yuen Lan, Macy
(Ms Ng)
fhigesE (TMhzz+))

Capacity

=4

Beneficial owner

BEREBA

Interest of controlled
corporation
NG e v
TS

Interest of controlled
corporation
IZAEREE 2
i

Interest of controlled
corporation
JINEE 2 = v
LS

Beneficial owner

BRFEEAN

Interest of controlled
corporation
NS il v
i

Interest of controlled
corporation
JINEE 2 = v
LS

Beneficial owner &

interest of controlled
corporation

EREE LR
R il el
Interest of spouse

EofBrEs

Long position

0=}
Long position

S

Long position
=)

Long position
e

Long position
e

Long position
[y

Long position
e

Long position
e

Long position
"a

Long position
=)

RIRE S M ERAIEI36MRF B B ECMATEE sk £
ER®E HMWAT2#ER%KE (18)

(o) TERRNARB RN RN < 2

Total number
of shares and

Number of
shares held

underlying
shares held
TR m &
ERER M EE

168,368,300
(Note 1)
(FrEEn)

168,368,300
(Note 1)
(MyEE)

Interest in
underlying shares
RiaRaR %
iR HEE IR

- 168,368,300

- 168,368,300

14,220,000 168,368,300 182,588,300
(Note 2)

(FHE£2)

14,220,000 168,368,300 182,588,300
(Note 2)

(Mf5t2)

106,110,260 - 106,110,260
(Note 3)
(F5E3)

106,110,260
(Note 3)
(Ff5E3)

106,110,260 -

106,110,260 - 106,110,260
(Note 3)

(F5£3)

106,110,260 4,500,000 110,610,260

106,110,260 4,500,000 110,610,260
(Note 3)

(MyEE3)
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Approximate
percentage

BB D

16.62%

16.62%

18.03%

18.03%

10.48%

10.48%

10.48%

10.92%

10.92%
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE
SFO (Continued)

(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. Global Allocation was wholly owned by Evolution which
was in turn wholly owned by Tiger Trust. Mr Michael
Lerch has 100% interest in Tiger Trust. Evolution,

Tiger Trust and Mr Michael Lerch were deemed to be
interested in the underlying shares of the Company held
by Global Allocation.

2. Evo Fund was wholly owned by Evo Feeder Fund
and Evolution Japan Asset Management Co., Ltd.
("Evolution Japan”). Evo Feeder Fund was wholly owned
by Mr Michael Lerch and Evolution Capital Investments
LLC which was in turn wholly owned by Mr Michael
Lerch. Evolution Japan was wholly owned by Tiger Inn
Enterprises Limited (Tiger Inn") which was in turn wholly
owned by Evolution Japan Co. Ltd. Evolution Japan
Co. Ltd, was wholly owned by Evolution Japan Group
Holding Inc., which was in turn wholly owned by, Tiger
Holdings Ltd. Tiger Holdings Ltd was wholly owned by
Tiger Trust. Mr Michael Lerch has 100% interest in Tiger
Trust. Evo Fund, Evo Feeder Fund, Evolution Japan,
Evolution Capital Investments LLC, Tiger Inn, Evolution
Japan Co. Ltd., Evolution Japan Group Holding Inc.,
Tiger Holdings Ltd. Tiger Trust and Mr Michael Lerch
were deemed to be interested in the shares of the

Company held by Evo Fund.

3. Advance Tech was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
ITC Properties Management which was in turn a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Properties. Dr Chan and
Ms Ng (the spouse of Dr Chan) have approximately
27.10% and 24.96% interest in issued shares of ITC
Properties respectively. ITC Properties Management,
ITC Properties, Ms Ng and Dr Chan were deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company held by
Advance Tech.

RiFE S M B GRAIEI6fRF B BTS2 £
ERRHMALZERER KR (8)

(o) EBRRNARNE RN RBRIRN 2 #2 (18)

MEE -

Global AllocationFAEvolution®= & #E S, MEvolution
FTiger Trust2 E# A, Michael Lerch/CEHH
Tiger Trust 100%1Z 25, Evolution. Tiger Trustz
Michael Lerch’t 4 158 2 52 Global AllocationFT#5 A
REIMBRAR M RHEE R,

Evo FundFiEvo Feeder Fund Xz Evolution Japan

Asset Management Co., Ltd. (TEvolution Japan.)
2B, Evo Feeder FundfMichael Lerchi 4
KzEvolution Capital Investments LLCE E 5,

M Evolution Capital Investments LLCE! F5Michael
Lerch/cEE 2 E# B, Evolution JapanM Tiger Inn
Enterprises Limited ([ Tiger InnJ) £ & %5, MTiger
InnBll FHEvolution Japan Co. Ltd. 2 & #EH . Evolution
Japan Co. Ltd. FHEvolution Japan Group Holding Inc.
2E¥EAE, MEvolution Japan Group Holding Inc.Hl
HTiger Holdings Lid2 & # &, Tiger Holdings Ltd
HTiger Trust 2 B Ho Michael Lerchit A Tiger
Trust#E B100%E %50 Evo Fund. Evo Feeder Fund.
Evolution Japan. Evolution Capital Investments LLC.
Tiger Inn.  Evolution Japan Co. Ltd.. Evolution Japan
Group Holding Inc.. Tiger Holdings Ltd. Tiger Trust
NeMichael Lerch4z 24 18 212 Evo FundPT 5 42 &)
R0 RS ko

FLE 21 TC Properties ManagementZ 4 & [ J& 22
5], MITC Properties Management 2 B #E 31 7 7 &
BB B, BEL kAt EELZEE)
DRI BRI AN B RITRM RHEE 27109k
24.96%1# %o ITC Properties Management. 1Z£EH#
E. ARt REELOREANREERFSALE
R 10 RS Ak
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE

SFO (Continued)

(b) Interests of other persons

Name of person

Ht A L%

Omega Advisors, Inc.

Circle Swing Limited

Rally Praise Limited

Empire City Infernational Limited

Affluent Talent Limited

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

AsR

Tiger Partners Trading L. L.C.

Tiger Partners, L.P.

Tiger Partners GP, L.L.C.

Capacity

=4

Investment manager
REFIE

Beneficial owner

BERHEEA

Interest of controlled
corporation
REEHEE e
i
Interest of controlled
corporation
ASERIEE
T

Interest of controlled
corporation
REEEER
ik

Interest of controlled
corporation
NSl
i

Beneficial owner

BERHEEA

Interest of controlled
corporation
NG v
ey

Interest of controlled
corporation
Nl v
o
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RIRE S M ERAIEI36MRF B B ECMATEE sk £
ER®E HMWAT2#ER%KE (18)

(b) Eftt ATz fERt

Number of
shares held

FrERMHER
(Note 1)
(B3 5E1)

74,530,907 (L)

90,725,800 (L)

90,725,800 (L)

90,725,800 (L)

90,725,800 (L)

90,725,800 (L)

54,703,784 (L)

54,703,784 (L)

54,703,784 (L)
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Interest in
underlying
shares
RAEER R
IR

11,760,243

Total number

of shares and
underlying shares
held

PR M &
MERER M EE

86,291,150
(Note 2)
(F15£2)

90,725,800
(Note 3)
(MyEE3)
90,725,800
(Note 3)
(Ffr5E3)

90,725,800
(Note 3)
(B EE3)

90,725,800
(Note 3)
(Ff5E3)

90,725,800
(Note 3)
(B 5E3)

54,703,784
(Note 4)
(Bs5t4)
54,703,784
(Note 4)
(f5E4)

54,703,784
(Note 4)
(B 5E4)

Approximate
percentage

BB D

8.52%

8.96%

8.96%

8.96%

8.96%

8.96%

540%

5.40%

5.40%
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EERHE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL BIEESNPERAENBMEEBEZE LM £
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN BERE T HMWATZERRAR (E)

THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE

SFO (Continued)

(b) Interests of other persons (Continued)

Name of person

Hit AL%8

Tiger Management L.L.C.

Tiger Management Corporation

U. S. Trust Company of Delaware as
Directed Co-Trustee of the Julian H.
Robertson, Jr. Revocable Trust dated
19 December 2005 as amended
(the "Trust")

U.S. Trust Company of Delaware, fEAH

(b) Htt ALz ()

Total number

HATSSRF+_A+NH2 JulianH.

Robertson, Jr. Revocable Trust ((1&27)

(TE2(55E) ) < RIETRHERZEA

Julian Hart Robertson ("Ms. Robertson”)

( TRobertson %4

Interest in of shares and
Number of underlying underlying shares Approximate
Capacity shares held shares held percentage
RAaRAR 15 IR &
=) iR MEE IR HERMIEAS  BNESt
(Note 1)
(MtEE1)
|nvestment 54,703,784 (L) - 54,703,784 5.40%
manager (Note 4)
REKIE (B 5E4)
|nterest of 54,703,784 (L) - 54,703,784 5.40%
controlled (Note 4)
corporation (f15£4)
REEEER
o
Interest of 54,703,784 (L) - 54,703,784 5.40%
controlled (Note 4)
corporation (1 5£4)
NSl v
i
Interest of 54,703,784 (L) - 54,703,784 5.40%
controlled (Note 4)
corporation (Mg EE4)
SR E
ik
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE
SFO (Continued)

(b) Interests of other persons (Continued)
Notes:

1. (L) denotes a long position.

2. Omega Advisors, Inc., as investment adviser of Omega
Capital Investors, L.P., Omega Capital Partners, L.P.,
Omega Equity Investors, L.P., Omega Overseas
Partners, Ltd. and VMT Il, LLC (the "Omega Group”),
was deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by the Omega Group.

3. Circle Swing Limited was a wholly owned subsidiary
of Rally Praise Limited which was in turn a wholly
owned subsidiary of Empire City International Limited.
Empire City International Limited was a wholly owned
subsidiary of Affluent Talent Limited which was in turn
wholly owned by Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom. Mr Lau Ko
Yuen, Tom, the deputy chairman and executive Director
of the Company, is also a director of Affluent Talent
Limited, Empire City International Limited, Rally Praise
Limited and Circle Swing Limited respectively.

4. Tiger Partners Trading L.L.C. was wholly owned by
Tiger Partners, L.P. which was in turn wholly owned by
Tiger Partners GP, L.L.C. Tiger Partners GP, L.L.C. was
wholly owned by the Trust. Ms Robertson has 100%
interest in the Trust. Tiger Partners, L.P., Tiger Partners
GP, L.L.C, the Trust and Ms Robertson were deemed
to be interested in the shares of the Company held by
Tiger Partners Trading L.L.C.

Tiger Management L.L.C. was 89.48%-owned by Tiger
Management Corporation which was in turn wholly
owned by the Trust. Ms Robertson has 100% interest

in the Trust. Tiger Management Corporation, the Trust
and Ms Robertson were deemed to be interested in

the shares of the Company indirectly held by Tiger
Management L.L.C.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Company
has not been notified of any interests or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO.

RIFE S M B RAIEI6MRF B B ICMATEE R £
ERRHMATZERER %R (8)

(b) HE ALz 12 (1)
PYEE

1L (LEIr 2.

2. Omega Advisors, Inc.{FAOmega Capital Investors,
L.P.. Omega Capital Partners, L.P.. Omega Equity
Investors, L.P.. Omega Overseas Partners, Ltd. \&2VMT
Il LLC (TOmegoeE ) BIICERER], WEARN
Omegafs BIFT AN BB A

3. Circle Swing LimitedZRally Praise Limited Y 2 &
Mt/E /N 5], MRally Praise Limited 8| 2 Empire City
International Limited Y 4 & i & /2 5)o  Empire City
International Limited 2 Affluent Talent Limited 39 £ &
/BN E), MAHluent Talent LimitedFH 2 i R 554
LEHR, ERAEARLINEFERN
TEE, JrAAffluent Talent Limited. Empire City
International Limited. Rally Praise Limited A2Circle
Swing Limited? Bl BYZE =,

4. Tiger Partners Trading L.L.C.FHTiger Partners, L.P.Z
EHEE, MTiger Partners, L.P.8JHTiger Partners GP,
LLCE &% B, Tiger Partners GP, L.L.C.HFZIE5TE
#EHo RobertsonZZ TR FZE5T R HEB100%IE 4
Tiger Partners, L.P.. Tiger Partners GP, L.L.C.« 57%5
5t XzRobertsonZZ - #7157 4 ﬁ/\Tiger Partners Trading
LLCPAARN BRI P A R

Tiger Management L.L.C..7 89.48%/% 2% F

Tiger Management Corporationt# 4, M Tiger
Management Corporationfl] HEZE5t 2 E A,
RobertsonZZ TR % E L P HEE100% & 250 Tiger
Management Corporation. %15 5t AzRobertson2z 4=
AR 21 Tiger Management LL.C 12T AN 5
B0 RS AR

R EXFIIEEN, RTE—/\FE=ZB=+—H, BRI
B M A E RGN B336 AN B AT E 2B LA ER,
AREMERNEE EMATHERRE Z RN RIERHT
RN BER KB
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES AND OTHER POST
EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the Group's retirement benefit schemes and
other post employment benefit schemes is set out in note 40 to

the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws of the Company provides that directors of the
Company shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits

of the Compcmy against all actions, costs, chorges, |osses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain in the
execution of their duty in their respective offices, provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
illful negligence, illful default, fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance during the year and as at the date of this
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2018 and has
Gdopfed most of the recommended best practices stated therein.

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 34 to 56
of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date
of this report as required under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations of approximately HK$541,000.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no major subsequent events since the end of the

reporting period and up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. Information on the work of the Audit Committee
and its composition are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of the annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018 have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, who will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of South
Shore Holdings Limited (formerly known as The 13 Holdings
Limited) (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 108 to 268, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of

Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss
of HK$1,570,374,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018

and as of that date, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by HK$3,014,106,000. The Group's total bank
and other borrowings amounted to HK$4,143,554,000, of
which HK$4,116,054,000 were classified as current liabilities.
In addition, the Group had capital commitments contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements of

HK$208,597,000.

At 31 March 2018, the Group had breached certain

covenants in respect of bank borrowings in the amount of
HK$3,041,924,000, as stipulated in the bank loan agreement
which require THE 13 Hotel (the "Hotel) to have the official
opening no later than 31 March 2017 (subsequently extended to
31 July 2017) and to obtain and maintain all authorisations for
the operation of the hotel business. The Group has applied for a
further extension of the hotel opening date to 31 July 2018 due
to the further delay in the hotel opening. However as at the date
of approval of these financial statements, the Group has not
received any written confirmation from the bank that the latest
extension request has been successful. As a result, as at the date
of approval of these financial statements, such bank borrowings
are repayable on demand. The Group also has a senior secured
other bridge borrowing in the amount of HK$220,000,000
which, as at the date of approval of these financial statements,
is also repayable on demand.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that based

on the assumptions that the financing plans and measures

as set forth in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements
can be successfully executed, the Group will have sufficient
Working copifcﬂ to finance its operations and to pay its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
However, the likelihood of the successful imp|emenfqﬁon of
these financing plans and measures could not be determined as
at the date of our report. These events or conditions, along with
other matters as set forth in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key audit matter

RREZEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FEBENTEE P HRES A

Impairment assessment of hotel under oleve/opmer'nL
R E B BTG

We identified the impairment assessment of hotel under
development as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements as a W|'10|e, due to
the management judgements involved in the determination of the
recoverable amounts of the hotel under development based on the
anticipated cash flow generated by these assets.

AR BB TR 38 R AT R E RS R A B R E S
B, MAEREGGHFRSMBRREEMREFER, A
AEBZRFEEEL CRTRSMNEE#HETAE 2O
[Cl& R ATEEEREYE.

Hotel under development of the Group is located in Macau
and carried at HK$6,962 million as at 31 March 2018, which
represents 50% of the Group's total assets. The Group's hotel
under development is stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
impairment. As set out in notes 3 and 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management reviews the carrying amounts of
the hotel under development to determine whether there is any
indication that the assets have suffered impairment loss at the end
of the reporting period. If any such indicator exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). The management of the Group
determined the recoverable amount of the hotel under development
by estimating the anticipated cash flow to be generated by these
assets, which are based on a number of key assumptions, including
average hotel room rate, number of gaming tables, occupancy
rate, net win of gaming tables, growth rate and discount rate for
the hotel under development. The recoverable amount of the hotel
under development as at 31 March 2018 is less than its carrying
amount, an impairment loss of HK$1,203 million is recognised for
the year.

ATE—/\FE=ZA=1T—H, EEERNRFMZERTE
[E769.62EET, 1 EXEEMEE 0% SEEH
BRBEEAAREERRTREYR. SUFRSYHBR
KM RAPTE, MIEHR, BERESRERTASEZ
FREE, WEEEESHEEANRETZFEESRTAE
BB, ETEEM LR, NHibstEE WIS
NEERERBE W8 28, BSEEEERESBMEF
ZEEEEL CESI R AUEEHBTAES 2 ElE
8, MEBZEIERKF/H, ERLEFIESEREE.
MNER, BREE. Bhaifl, BRPBEZIERERA
BR, RIF—/\F=A=+—H, BFRFEE K]
SRENEREE, NFERERMEBRI03EE T,

101

Our procedures in relation to assessing appropriateness of
the impairment assessment of the hotel under development
included:

ARZEENTH I EEERTEE CRENEESSEZ
e altE

Evaluating the reasonableness of the anticipated cash
flow to be generated by the hotel under development

by comparing the valuation technique and the

key assumptions adopted by the management to
entity-specific information and market data or research. In
por‘ricu|or, we ossessed, ona somp|e bosis, the accuracy
of the information underpinning the key assumptions
including average hotel room rate, occupancy rate, net
win of gaming tables, growth rate of hotel and gaming
business, and discount rate for hotel under c|eve|opmen’r
by comparing fo the market data from comparob|e hotel
and gaming operations;

BB REEBRAZGERTS N EEREKR N
ERSBEER AT BB BEUM IR EHETH
EEECERIIRERELGE. LHRE, A%H
BD1TEEE M Al LR E NIRRT 2 B ERE
ITHER, AT S E 2 RERARME R EREL,
SETBEERB. AMTXR BRMA. BEX
BEEBBERRBETAECIRREX

Assessing the total budget costs for the hotel under
development by reviewing the budgets prepared

by the management and making enquiries with the
management for the basis of estimations adopted in the
budgets with reference to the latest development plan
and progress up to date;
BEEREEERMECAEROEEEEHTAE
PR GETER R T MR E R8I NRITE
B, fEmaHa3 R ES 2 BB AR ;

+ Comparing the adjustments made by management in
the future costs to completion to current market data
with reference to the latest construction contracts or
agreements or quotation with suppliers, on a sample
bosis; and
R2EZRMBRSNN HENEAHEF ZRE,
HEREEEHARRT IRAZHBEER TS
FRETIEE ; &

Performing sensitivity cm0|ysis on the key inputs to
evaluate the magnitude of their impacts on the value of
hotel under development.
HEBRABBETHEREDN, DEHEHE
ERHBEEBERE ZEE,
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RREZEE LB TEERTRRIES A

Recoverability of trade debtors and retention receivables

E G BEYRA R fE W RIEIZ < R O] 1%

We identified recoverability of trade debtors and retention Our procedures in relation to recoverability of trade debtors
receivables as a key audit matter due to the significance of the and refention receivables included:

balance to the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and AIZEEN T EH B 5 E W RN FE R E < 2 pT U (o] 14
there is risk that the amount recorded is not fully recoverable. ZIEF OIS

Trade debtors and retention receivables of the Group carried at
HK$1,500 million as at 31 March 2018, which represents 11% of the +  Evaluating the accuracy of the aging report of trade

Group's total assets. debtors and retention receivables, by checking to the
RIZEENTHS B 7 FE W IR FE R E < 2 e] U B4 35 construction contracts for the terms of payment, including
AERELEE, YHRHEEGRNGE B ImRERPE <t the milestone events stipulated in the contracts or the
BHEEERA, BB cZesBrn—EEREWE, R© actual progress of the work pen(ormed, ona sample basis;
TE/\F=ZA=1+—H, S5BZEZBUEIE BEMERERRS ARG, LEEHIET
WARE & 315.00EE 7T, 15 SXEEBEE%. Az ERESHUMBRIT IRECERERE, 1EmsT

8 5 BRI FE U R B & ARl 3R 5 o ZERE S

Agreed payment terms are sometimes extended particularly when

unforeseen delays occur in construction. The Group may be exposed + Making enquiry with management on their assessment
to risk of default in respect of trade and retention receivables. on the recoverability of trade receivables, including
BCENKIARERE, THEEIEHEAIER Y understanding the trade debtors’ credit quality and their
FEER, SEEHORERTE S IEWRI N ERRE ST past payment hisfory and Focusing on |ong—ogeo| trade
Kz B, receivables for which no provision had been made; and
mEEEBERRENEZ BRI AW EIME 2
sHh, 2B TREZEBUERRCEEER BE

B, WEIRHBRATEELARCES
FEMERTR 5 Rz

Evaluating management’s assessment on the
recoverability of trade debtors with significant balances
past due but not impaired by examining the subsequent
settlement from these individual debtors on a sample
bosis, or for those individual debtors without any
subsequent settlement, analysing the Group's business
relationship with them and their credit profile.

BB HERE S E N EWRREREREER,
W HEFHREREE 2 EHEREAMS, B
BO BEEBERSCERNREZEERR,
ML EREHN D RPEEAEBECEAEEE
5 FEWRFZ I [E] 1 2 5FE,
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FEBENTEE P HRES A

Key audit matter

RREZEE

Recognition of revenue and profif from construction contracts and

amounts due from/to customers for contract works
SRIEEREFIMA K@ F R fEW - FETE F &/ TEE

We identified recognition of revenue and profit from construction
contracts and amounts due from/to customers for contract works
as a key audit matter as it is quantitatively significant to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and judgements are required in the determination of

Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue and
profit from construction contracts and amounts due from/to
customers for contract works included:
FRZEENTHEEREROORATRRT R FEW,FER
ERENIIERAZIEFIE !

the total outcome of the construction contracts and stage of
completion. It is also one of the key performance indicators of the
Group.

RIZBEN TR ERR RS HORARRFI N B, FEN & P
BN IIETIERL SMBEREE, DARESENRS
BRELEMEEREEZBER, BRNBEERESK ZRE
%&%I% SEFRTTIEHIET, T SEEEEEIUER

The accounting po|icy for construction contracts is disclosed in note
3 to the consolidated financial statements. Revenue and profit from
construction contracts and costs are recognised when the outcome
of a construction contract can be estimated re|iab|y, by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activities at the end of the
reporting period, measured based on the proportion that contract
revenue for work performed to date relative to the estimated

total contract revenue. Variations in contract work and claims are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured re|io|o|y
and its receipt is considered probable.

BRSNS EERNFEMHRERMEITIRE, W2
RENZERIEEM T LUEET, BIBRESKERA TG
RAETHBE S KRB IR S HIR 2 T A PEER T LUFESR,
ERESNTAHMERREEEfI&LLPIEIT LIFZ SR
MEEHEHIRARE 2 HLAITE, G TIEZ#E KA
RETEFREBIBEMTLUEE, BRI TREZE
R 88 AR AR,

As disclosed in note 6 and note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised segment revenue and segment
profit from construction contracts of HK$6,799 million and HK$118
million for the year ended 31 March 2018 and amounts due from/
to customers for contract work of HK$1,057 million and HK$1,285
million, respectively as at year ended 31 March 2018.
ﬂ@% IR R st e e foEEoo R e, SEENE
TE—N\F=ZA=1T—HIEFEEFRERESNDEUA
&mﬂ@ﬂ ) Al67.9918 T N1 18E AT, MEE —F—/\
FoA=+—HIFERR ENEREHNIEREDH
10,578 78 71 K212.8512 72 TTo
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Assessing the forecast revenue and forecast costs by
making enquiry with the quantity surveyors who are
responsible for the preparation of the budgets of
construction contracts on their basis of estimation of the
budgets, including but not limited to the variations and
claims that included in the budget, and inspecting the
underlying contracts and documents with the employer of
contract works and subcontractors or suppliers;
BEOAESRBRERELHRNERGHNERE 2T
FHRI S &G TR WA RTRR A, TiEE
NERIIARE BB NRE, UREGHIIE
BE A MR 2 BRI EHI ST ;

Evaluating the reasonableness of their estimated profit
margins by taking into account the profit margins

of similar projects on a sample basis, to identify and
investigate if there is any significant difference;

KZ ERRE AN R E G A ERES
BEMETFEEESEERNERER ;

Assessing the reasonableness of the stage of completion
by re-computing the percentage of completion on cost
basis with reference to the total cost incurred in proportion
to the total forecast costs, and compare that with the
percentage of completion on revenue basis with reference
to the total progress bi||ings recognised in proportion to
the total forecast revenue, on a sample basis, to identify
and investigate if there is any significant difference; and
BEAE R E P E R A BRI A 2 A E
NSt ECRAETET AL, W RS 2E BHE
58 LA EE ARG TR A A BB R 2 L AIS 2
WASETT LA EITEE, REmimikatiae T
%Qgéﬁﬁ,uﬁﬁlﬂé%éﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ
|

Checking the accuracy of the amounts due from/to
customers for contract works by agreeing the progress
billing received and actual costs incurred for the year
ended 31 March 2018 to the payment certificates/
invoices, on a scrmp|e basis.
BEZHBEE_ST-NF_A=T—HILEFEE
WITRERRREELERMAE NS HE,
%@%%ﬁé@%/@ﬁ@ﬁéﬁi%ﬁ%iﬁ
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsib|e for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
cmd, in doing SO, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears

to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRS issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Componies Ordinonce, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as

a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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Lth & xR}
ENFEFAHHEMENEES L. HMENIEIMN
FHROVER, EALRBFREMBRER AR S

\

ARZEENTHFE Y BREXFHNERTENEEME
K MAZEENT A & H EthEREE R A IRE

/%\\III Ao

AARBETEXGR SV BRERME, ABENTHE
ERFEBEMER, EMEEREMENESSRESHH
BENARBEITESRERTEENERFEEAT
75, FUFFEERERERD. MERZEETERE
ETH TERAEMER HIREXRERBEN, A%
TRBRSEMEE, B, AREBMITHRELIRS

EENEEEMGFEMBRRAKENTE

NEIEFREERBEEES ﬁ%@%ﬁ%m%%%%
$¢$W&%§ NEMERAIBIREEER, REEBEMALF
WRRERVFREMHRE, NEFETHRERSY
BRERBOEZNERATELR, UEZFREVHRE

7B 7 7E S BT O 5 BR T B0 B ASA R

ARG EHMBREXE, EFRGENE SEERE
EERRES, WIREBREFBEKEAMNER WER) -

MRIFESHT SEEFEIEILEE, JRIzHNIL
EEMBE O TRIE, TR BREBLUIFERKE AER
E)] = E /io

EEEEERE SEENMBRS M

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TRV CliES =

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material iF,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those ris|<s, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The

risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting

from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve co||usion, Forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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R ERR M B RERARENEE

AEBENTTERR S ERENERE M BIRREEM
ENEFEBRNNGFRIERMERNWEAERERL, 3
HEBEARBENTE RSN RSE, WIRR—I/\—
FARER Tﬁ%%%%ﬁm,@ﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁ%,

TMEEMA R, AZEEIITERAR AR SBIRBBER
Hi N TESHAEEAET. GERTEERIX
&, ERBEEEESTEETHNER T ETRERERRE
RERTFENERERERN, 552N P HMEFFiER
EE, REHNBETSERRER TAREERER

BRRE M BREFLACERER, ARESERER
[E9U

ERBEBEFEAETEERET, AREBENTE
FREEYE, REFRIREEE. AREAENTIT !

Hp R EHE RN IEF R EE R ME BRI MK
TEERERFNHER. KT RATESHZR UE

HEFAR, UREBTTEMNBERNETES, /£
AERBENTERAERE. BARGFRIRES R ER.
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o
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content

of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disc|osures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsib|e for the direcfion,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably

be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the |<ey audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in exfreme|y rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Li Man Kei.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018

HHREEREBEENFED, ABENITEE Y AHBR
BHHREANEFTEREENEE, HMBNRREX
F8, AREEMTERBENR S Pt EEFE, RIE
ERIERINFFLARERBEZFEFE, WERHREREAR
BERT, MEEEREARBMTRETEBRSIELS
B EERRBHEENRMAE, AAKEEMITRE
TEERSPEERSE,

HERFUREMRENEFTEREBART RS

e BB G EHETIT
PG

BB, “5—/\FRBZ+tH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

RETE

For the year ended 31 March 2018

BE_E—/\GF=A=1+—HIEFE

R

2018 2017
NOTES —EN\F ey
g HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE7T
Revenue WA 5 6,799,529 6,127,109
Cost of sales HERA (6,500,794) (5,880,358)
Gross profit EH] 298,735 246,751
Other income H s 7 4,518 5,547
Administrative and other expenses THE RN EMFES (478,158) (284,028)
Finance costs AR A A 8 (193,803) (8,609)
Impairment loss on hotel under =% R rh A 18 14 (1,203,000) .
development
Gain on disposal of an associate HERE N\ E ] - 5,247
Share of results of associates B E N EZEE (448) (2,167)
Share of results of joint ventures BhEEPEER 2,116 4,808
Loss before tax FRiQaIE51E (1,570,040) (32,451)
Income tax expense P R & A 10 (334) (7,773)
Loss for the year FEEE )l (1,570,374) (40,224)
(Loss) profit for the year - = 2\ =g -
attributable to: FEiFE (BiR) B8R
Owners of the Company PN/NEIEZZE PN (1,573,795) (44,559)
Non-controlling interests FEIR RS 3,421 4,335
(1,570,374) (40,224)
(restated)
(%)
Loss per share SREIE 13
Basic (HK cents) EHAR GEAL) (630.5) (20.5)
Diluted (HK cents) B8 (A1) (630.5) (20.5)

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

froEm A M E MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_ES—/\FZA=1+—HILEFE

2018 2017
—B—N\& —E—tf
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Loss for the year FERE (1,570,374) (40,224)
Other comprehensive income (expense) EEEMAERE (%)
for the year:
[tems that may be reclassified subsequem‘ly HELJREET 7 IEE
to profit or loss: B A -
Exchange differences arising from MEBNEREEZ 8648 (6,314)
translation of foreign operations FEAERR ’ '
: . _ REEMAL/\N=
Share ?fAfranslohon reserve of an associate %EM%HW = :Aang N 8,367 (4,830)
and joint ventures SEPECESRE
17,015 (,144)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FELEBSEEE (1,553,359) (51,368)
Total comprehensive (expense) income FELFEL2m (D)
for the year attributable to: lrgas iSEEp
Owners of the Company P S/NCIEZ= N (1,564,987) (50,327)
Non-controlling interests FESER R 11,628 (1,041)
(1,553,359) (51,368)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2018
R-_E—N\EF=ZB=+—H

e ST

2018 2017
NOTES —E-N\E “E—tF
BEE HK$'000 HK$'000
TET 5T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS IERBEE
Hotel under development BERAIE 14 6,961,944 7,718,317
Property, plant and equipment M. R 15 328,409 135,261

. . L 419 4
Deposits paid for' acquisition of property, Hyilﬁi#?%\ M%iﬁ% 15 201,698 336,547
plant and equipment Hlaw 2NUE] 2

Deposits for investments -tk 16 110,000 110,000
Prepaid land lease payments A T EFE 17 1,403,121 1,507,712
Goodwill Bk 18 61,646 61,646
Other intangible assets HivEwmip &E 19 8,092 7,627
Interests in joint ventures BEPERER 21 97,510 87,640
9,192,420 9,964,750

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2018
RIE—N\F=ZHA=+—H

e ST

2018 2017
NOTES —E\F “F—tF
FiysE HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Prepaid land lease payments Fa TSRS 17 104,591 104,591
Amounts due from customers for N ——
FEWE R &R ITIENIR 292 1,056,904 1,001,835
contract works
Inventories =78 23 46,998 38,937
Trade and other debfors, deposifs and %%% WEJ*MQTKIE 04 2,115,160 1 683,891
prepayments HEINSEINE s
Amounts due from associates FEU IS N B FIa 25 12,628 15,863
Amounts due from joint ventures el & E P ENTE 25 121,705 158,423
Amounts due frc?m joint oPerohons/ofher FEU S 2.7%%&/ 05 55,077 118,438
partners of joint operations HMB IS
Amounts due from subsidiaries of a FE Il — 42 B B B A S0 96 17,495 04,849
shareholder
Other loans receivable HEWER 27 32,159 35,542
Taxation recoverable EIEEgE] 1,592 -
Pledged bank deposits EIRIERITERN 28 17,020 16,247
Short term bank deposits FEHRSRITIER 28 271,887 36,876
Bank balances and cash WITHEER IR S 28 899,554 323,553
4,752,770 3,559,045
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2018
RIE—N\E=F=+—H

e ST

2018 2017
NOTES “E-N\F “F—tF
{hEzd HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
CURRENT LIABILITIES menafE
AmouEfs due to customers for contract F‘%ﬁ%)ﬁ é%@I%%%}'UE\ 29 1,085,325 863,604
works
i = = XN /2\ =]
Trade and other creditors and accrued 25 §Z/ LM ETFIA N, 99 2,046,098 1.945,760
expenses JEETRESZ
Deposits received BWET& 30 179,000 -
Amount due to a joint venture FEN—BEEEtEIE 25 52 67
Amounts due to joint operations/other FENAEER,/ SEER
partners of joint operations HHBLEIE % °8,263 13,551
Amount due to a subsidiory of a FEN—2 AR e 2 — B E
chareholder NEEUE 2 4710 647
_ A _ SRR/ N\=
Loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder T%EX%Z LY 3] 75,000 32,000
EL
Taxation payable FERTFRIE 2,354 16,287
i - ithi — H|ER 8RBT
Bank and other borrowmgs due within fﬁ@i;ﬂi%ﬁf?& 30 4,116,054 888,070
one year HiER
7,766,876 3,859,986
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaERE (3,014,106) (300,941)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERREAR 6,178,314 9,663,809

LIABILITIES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PR AR ER

At 31 March 2018
RIE—N\E=F=+—H

2018 2017
NOTES —EN\F ey
By 5L HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFAETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREEE
ings - — FE BV ERTT
Bank and other borrowings - due fET%ii;ﬁZfEfT& 39 97.500 3,060,284
after one year HAEzR
Convertible bonds Pl 25 33 684,611 576,707
Ob|igoﬂon in excess of interests in T UL A ) N = s .
. BHEE N BB SE 20 6,836 6,134
associates
718,947 3,643,125
5,459,367 6,020,684
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B Kl
Share capital & 35 202,591 1,841,734
Reserves Tl 4,942,013 3,838,712
Equity attributable to owners of the KNTEE N FE(SHERS 5,144,604 5,680,446
Company
Non-controlling interests FEERR RS
__PEI R/ NS> B )
Share option reserve of a subsidiary %ﬁ BﬂEAEZ%F&j% - 37,103
R
Share of net assets of subsidiaries HENB A S v 2EE 314,763 303,135
314,763 340,238
TOTAL EQUITY fateat 5,459,367 6,020,684
The consolidated financial statements on pages 108 to 268 were HINFEI08E EF W E IR M EImMEZ DN =
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on —N\ERNB - tTtHESSES M ENIZETES, I
27 June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: AT EEREETETERE .
Peter Lee Coker Jr. Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
FER
Chairman (Executive Director) Deputy Chairman (Executive Director)
ZE (BITEE) BIFE (BiTEE)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
froEmEBEx

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_ES—/\FZA=1+—HILEFE

Atbutobl o onners o the Cornpony

Nnn-fonhn”mg inferests

Shores
heldfor
Converble shre Share Share Shoreoptin ~ Shareofnet
Share Shore Contrbuted Spedl bonds avord opfion aword  Trendafon Oher ~ Accumulted resenveof asselsof
copiel premium supls resene fesene Scheme fesene resene fesene resene Joses Sibaool  asbsdoy  subsidries Subotel Total
Bk § 8 et
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS000  HKS 000 HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$000 HKS 000
i F7 #7
(Notei)
At1 Aorl 2016 1841734 2080474 (153761) 179497 (52366) 5408 8316 015 (153 (0599 570936 35953 305,060 M08 6050395
Exchange dff f
it b b LU
Shareofronslfin esee of n Wi Wi Wi
associote ond it vertures ' ' '
(Loss) roft fortheyear (44359) (44559) 43% 435 (40.204)
Totolcomprefiensive . :
ey £E (5768) (#45%9) (50377) (104) (104) (51368)
expense for
Recogniion o eqity-setled share based
payment expenses o he share option schere 1816 16116 16116
ofthe Company (Note 36(a))
Recogriion o cquy-wﬂ\ed sharebosed
paymentexpenses ofthe share option scheme 1150 1150 1150
of Foloncroft (Note 36(5))
Recogriion of eqmﬁy-wﬂe& sharebosed
payment expenses o he hare averd scheme 3950 3950 3950
ofthe Company (Note 37(o)
Shores vested underthe share @ 554 % %
award scheme (Note 37(a)) ' ’
Repayment of confibutions from
684 864 684
nun-fonﬁm”mgmﬁevesh (684) (684) (684
A3 Morch 207 1841734 0280474 (153761) 119497 (46759) 93544 5980 18347 (1539 (5035 5680446 37103 30313 0% 600,664
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
o BB EIR

For the year ended 31 March 2018

BE_E—/\F=A=1+—HLFE

Aitrutableto onnersofthe Company

NDH-(GMYDHMQ interests

Shores
heldfor
Converble shore Share Share Shoreoptin ~ Shareofnet
Share Soe  Contrbuted Special bonds avord opfion avrd  Trondofion Oter ~ Accumuloted resenve of assesof
copiel premium supls reserie reseie sheme resere resere resere resere loses: Sibtoal  asbsdoy  subsdoris Subotel Totol
=
HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$S000 HKS 000
(Hiehi)
EXCh(}"QE d\HEY@"CEX arsing {mm
4 4l 8207 8207 8648
ondation of fcrwgn operafions
Shore of ransion reserve of an .
8361 8361 8361
associote ond joint venfures
(Loss) poft for the year (1573799) (573795 340 340 (15710,374)
Totol comprehensve ncome
4406 S (o8 1628 e s
(expense) forthe year
Captol recucton (1623,31) 18331
Iisue of ngHs isue shores 184174 828,780 1,012,954 1,012,954
Tronsachioncost ofrbutobl fo e
(a109) (a109) (e1102)
ﬂ‘ NQNS Issue SL\GYZS
Recogriion of eqity-etfed shore based
payment expense of he hare option schere m) om) om)
ofthe Company (Note 3o))
Recognifon of equiy- setfled shore-based
payment expenses o he hare averd scheme 1,089 1,089 1,089
ofthe Comoany (Note 37}
Sharesvested under the share )
369 (n089) (139) 1274 1274
award scheme (Note 3(a))
Tronsfer upon apsed of share opfions (65,0%9) 102,002 37103 (3703) (3m03)
At 31 Morch 2016 202591 3068152 1803317 (153761 119497 (13063 21 5980 015 0530 (634m)  Shds04 314763 314763 5459367
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
o BB EIR

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_ES—/\FZA=1+—HILEFE

Notes:

(i) The special reserve of the Group includes the following:

(a) a credit amount of HK$1,000,000 representing
the difference between the cost of acquisition of two
subsidiaries and the nominal amount of their share
capital at the date on which they were acquired by Paul
Y. Management Contracting Group Limited (*"Paul
Y. Management Contracting”), a subsidiary of the
Company, before the reverse acquisition as mentioned
in note (b) below; and

a debit amount of HK$154,767,000 representing

the reserve arising from the reverse acquisition of

Paul Y. Management Contracting and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as "Paul Y. Management
Contracting Group”), net of refund from ex-shareholder
of Paul Y. Management Contracting for the shortfall
in net asset value of Paul Y. Management Contracting
Group upon completion of the acquisition by the
Company from PY| Corporation Limited, the former
ultimate holding company, of the entire equity interest
in, and shareholders’ loan to Paul Y. Management

Contracting Group in January 2005.

(i) The other reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the redemption amount paid and the carrying
amount of the share of net assets attributable to the

non-controlling interest redeemed by Paul Y. Engineering

Group Limited ("PYE").
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
/ﬁﬁt/\ EE/M@J%%

/N

For the year ended 31 March 2018
ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

2018 2017
—EN\E —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RS
Loss before tax FRIZEIESIE (1,570,040) (32,451)
Adjustments for: gAY IEE TR -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M. WM REINE 34,250 37,237
Release of prepaid land lease payments EESTEN T EFUA 52,583 575
= 4 b
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment ﬁ;ﬁﬁgi\)@ﬁgfﬂ& 281 3,369
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets HEHEMBFSECEIE 5 -
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—REBFE N\ T o Wi - (5,247)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of amount FLIEU —2 e 2 — I B _ 935
due from a subsidiory of a shareholder INEIFIEREEE < B E5E
|Impairment loss r nised in respect of trade and BLEL 2 R AMIENEE,
e e 5T R TB Bk 2,867 -
other debtors, deposits and prepay RS
Impairment loss recognised in respect of amounts FHEW S\ BIFIBHES 2 4739 ~
due from associates THERFE ’
Impairment loss recognised in respect of hotel LA R AIEHESS 1,203,000 B
under development FBEEE
Interest income lISvEas (4,518) (5,547)
Finance costs MERA 193,803 8,609
Share of results of associates B(OBE NBEE 448 2,167
Share of results of joint ventures BheEhEES (2,16) (4,808)
Share-based payment expenses DU R AER 2 IS (1,129) 3,579
Operating cash flows before movements in KETE 2B FHI 2
85,834 7,718
working capital %«A%fﬁqﬁimui ( )
17
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

el

VRN

For the year ended 31 March 2018
ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

fz/m@]%%

2018 2017
“E-N\F “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET TETT
) e N =R 218
Chcmges in amounts due from/to customers KH}/H%)E S TAZFUE 351,319 (435,481)
for contract works 1B E)
Increase in inventories =58 (5,005) (38,937)
(|ncreose-) decrease in trade and other debtors, %&;HTJ@F%L&%XIE:\ HE%4 (386,252) 101,511
dep05|’rs and prepayments FENFUA (gn) B
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from associates  FEIEE /N FIFIE (120) B (1,497) 1,708
Decrease in amounts due from joint ventures JEW & & B 2FIT R 44,157 163,503
Decrease in amounts due from joint opero’rions/ofher F‘%H&é%%%/@%%ﬁ% 6564 134
partners of joint operations HEMB IR ’
Decrease in amounts due from subsidiaries of a FEW—3a R BN BIFE 7,354 1,480
shareholder Ve
(Decrease) increase in trade and other creditors B5 N B ERTIE N fEF TR
- 6,088 255,874
and accrued expenses ORI & (©. )
Decrease in amounts due to associates FE(J B E N BIFIE R - (959)
. A - FE—REaghENE (B)
(Decrease) increase in amount due to a joint venture 80 (15) 18
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to joint W&E\ﬁt/\**%%&//\** BHEME 1599 (2,397)
operations/other partners of joint operations HEFIEE G ! '
Increase in amount due to a subsidiory of a [EN—% R —BH B E 58 164
shareholder FIEEN
Cash (used in) from operations (AR KREREELH RS (73,710) 54,336
Hong Kong profits tax paid BENEBFER (2,760) -
Overseas tax paid EAEN RIS (13,125) (24,585)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING (R REREER (89,595) 99 75]
ACTIVITIES REPE ' '

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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/ﬁf‘?/\ EE/M@J%%

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2018 2017
—F—\F =t
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXD
Additions to hotel under development NEEERTAE (192,837) (1,195,397)

. . . C . \;?\;\% g = o
Additions to dep05|fs pcuc| for‘ acquisition NEWIEYZE. BRI (88,597) (204,795)
of property, p|c1nf and equipment [SANEIE
Additions to property, plant and equipment B, BN (11,985) (16,809)
Advances to joint ventures O&EPEERD (7,435) -
Advance of other loans receivable O HMEWETEN (5,000) (21,000)
Additions to other intangible assets NEAMEL&E (470) -
Placement of pledged bank deposits GABIRIFRITER (6) (297)
Deposits received BiET & 179,000 -
Repayment of other loans receivable HMEKEFUR 12,000 36,000
Proceeds from di.sposa| of property, Hji%f@%\ T N 55 2,389 9,919
plant and equipment PSR
Interest received =S 1,230 2,847
Dividends received from a joint venture B —EEaErERE 867 -
Release of pledged bank deposits B D IIRETER 725 204
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ ARIREXFZIREFE (no,n9) (1,396,328)
(1
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

— /\
ﬁ‘vT\ fz Vi L@] %‘E
For the year ended 31 March 2018
BHE_S—/\G-A=+—HIHFE
2018 2017
—E—N\EF —m—tf
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEZE
New bank and other borrowings raised FEE T N EMES 1,853,840 2,199,861
Proceeds from issue of rights issue share BTG PS E IS 1,012,954 -
Loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder — AR E BB ATER 43,000 2,000
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BIRRIT N EMER (1,658,640) (1,272,354)
Interest paid EAIFE (188,773) (11,286)
Transaction costs attributable to issue of rights issue e/ (AT RO FE {7 .
hares BITHRBRNEERZZ A (41,102) -
Loan management fee and transaction costs paid EAEREEE NS A (15,210) (28,705)
Rquymenf of contributions from non-controlling B IE RIS _ (884)
interests
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REME TSR 1,006,069 788,632
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReNERSEEEBIEM 806,355 (577,945)
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R 358 ’ '
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE _
A B S 4 250
CHANGES NBEREFH 2R 4,657 (3,873)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
it 15
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR FNRE MRS FEEE 360,429 949,947
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
& 5iE| 15
END OF THE YEAR FRIENRIRSEEER 1,171,441 360,429
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
IR MEIRS IHEESY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERERESERRIN
Short term bank deposits REASRITIERN 271,887 36,876
Bank balances and cash WITEER N IRS 899,554 323,553
1,171,441 360,429
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—
VN

For the year ended 31 March 2018

ECE—/\F=ZB=+—HLEE

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

South Shore Holdings Limited (formerly known as The

13 Holdings Limited) ("the Company”) is an exempted
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability.

Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information section
of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associate, joint ventures
and joint operations are set out in note 48.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HKS$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that
the Group incurred a net loss of HK$1,570,374,000 for

the year ended 31 March 2018 and as of that date, the
Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$3,014,106,000. In addition, the Group had capital
commitments contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements of HK$208,597,000 as
disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company have performed an
assessment of the Group's future liquidity and cash flows,
taking into account the following relevant matters:
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RIREIR ST FHREE, ERAEEREES
—\F=ZE=+—H EFE#HSFEE570,374,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N Ea i s
For the year ended 31 March 2018

ECE—/\F=ZB=+—HLEE

1.  GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 1.

(i) Likelihood of the successful extension of requirement 0]

—RERRIRRELE (8)
AR EERFVEERBARFERE TER

on opening of the Group's hotel in Macau in certain
loan covenants

The Group had breached certain covenants in respect of
bank borrowings in the amount of HK$3,041,924,000,
as stipulated in the bank loan agreement which require
THE 13 Hotel (the "Hotel”) to have the official opening no
later than 31 March 2017 (subsequently extended to 31
July 2017) and to obtain and maintain all authorisations

LEEZ FTRENE

AEEDE X HAEEIRETEF3041,924,000
BreaTEREFE, ZFROEFEECE
FER+=F8/E CAE) RE—EF=4
—t—HEBREEREE—tEEtA =+—H)
IR MBS IIFE S BEER AR,
AEBLFEMIRHFEE T BERSR

for the operation of hotel business. The Group has R E_SE—tFtHA=+—H, WEFRES
previously successfully applied to extend the hotel's HEHBE—PHRE"S—tF+_HA=4+—

opening date under this covenant to 31 July 2017, and
has applied for a further extension of the opening date
to 31 December 2017, 31 March 2018, 30 April 2018,
30 June 2018 and 31 July 2018, respectively but the

H. ZF—/\F=F=+—H. ZF5—/\FNA
=—+H. " /\GERAB=+THRE—/\EFt
B=+—8, AMmAEEHRKE]RRITEH
EEMERABIRREFENI. HIb, K5 HR

Group has not received any written confirmation from RENEHE, BSRTEFRRERKER

the bank that the extension request has been successful.

As a result, as at the date of approval of these financial

statements, such bank borrowings are repayable on

demand.

Up to the date of approval of these financial statements, BHEMGEMBRRELERR, AEBIFEH

the Group has not been rejected on the application for
extension nor received any written notice from the bank
demanding for immediate repayment of the entire
borrowing. The bank has frequent communications with
the Group on the progress of hotel opening preparation
and also shows the positive support on the Group.
Therefore, the directors of the Company do not expect
the application of further extension will be withheld by
the relevant bank and also do not expect to receive

any request from the bank for immediate repayment
for the entire borrowing of HK$3,042 million, except
for the repayment of HK$456 million as fall due on 15
August 2018, for at least the next twelve months from
the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements. Moreover, based on the current status of the
hotel development and the working capital on hand, the
directors of the Company believe that they could obtain
all the licenses for the operation of hotel business from
the relevant authorities by the end of July 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y PR Ead R
For the year ended 31 March 2018
ECE-N\F—A-+—HIEFE

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 1.

(ii) Likelihood of successful execution of further financing

—RERRIRRELE (8)
(i) IWAITE—SREHRZFIREN

plans

The Group has been actively negotiating with a number
of commercial banks and other financial institutions as
well as certain potential new investors to secure certain
new sources of Funding in the form of debt cmo|, or
equity in the aggregate amount of HK$1,890 million.
The Group has proposed to dispose 51.76% interest

in Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited ("PYE") for
consideration of HK$300 million and has subsequently
obtained the shareholders’ approval on 8 May 2018.
The receipt of the remaining proceeds from the
proposed disposal of HK$121 million is subject to certain
conditions for the completion of transaction.

The Company also appointed a placing agent, Opus
Capital Limited to procure placees to subscribe for the
loan notes with an aggregate principal amount of up
to HK$740 million. The Company further entered into
non-legally binding indicative term sheets with the Opus
Financial Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries ("Opus
Group") in relation to the conditional offer of HK$850
million in the form of debt financing. Up to the date of
report, no definitive loan agreements in relation to the
abovementioned debt financing have been entered
into. Based on the current status of these negotiations,
the directors of the Company are confident that the
Group will secure sufficient funds to support the Group's
Working copi’r0| requirements for the next twelve months
from the date of approval these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

1.  GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(iii) Likelihood of not demand for immediate repayment
of outstanding borrowings
The Group has a senior secured other bridge borrowing
of HK$300 million outstanding as at 31 March 2018
which falls due on 1T April 2018, and subsequent to the
year end date, the Group has recognised a HK$30
million loan facility fee payable to the lender. The Group
received a Notice of Assignment dated 8 May 2018
from the original lender that it assigned and transferred
all its rights, titles, interest and benefits of the HK$300
million senior secured bridge loan to a new lender, of
which HK$110 million has been settled by offsetting
arrangement. In accordance with the Amendment
Letter dated 4 June 2018, the new lender may give
a written nofice to the Group demanding repayment
of the borrowing in full together with interest accrued
and within three business days the Group shall repay
the borrowing in full together with interest accrued. Up
to the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Group has not received any written notice from
the new lender demanding for immediate repayment
of the outstanding borrowings of HK$220 miillion.
The directors of the Company expect that they have
sufficient Working cczpifo| to repay the other borrowings,
subjecf to progress made towards securing the funding

as described in (i) above.

The directors of the Company consider that, taking

into account the above-mentioned financing plans and
measures, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations
for at least the next twelve months from the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements.
According|y the consolidated financial statements have been

prepared on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FERFETIRREST cEBUBREER ((EBIHH
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS REZER))

("HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") for the first time in the

current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12~ Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 "Disclosure Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

In oddi’rion, the amendments also require disclosures on
changes in financial assets if cash flows from those financial
assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash

flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries

or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign
exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other
changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 46. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 46, the application
of these amendments has had no impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018

ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs and interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments!

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments'

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration'

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions!
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” with HKFRS 4

“Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement?

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle'

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle?
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FERFETIRREST cEBUBREER ((EBIHH

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2021.

HKFRS 9 "Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial |i0bi|ifies,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are as follows:

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objecﬁve is to collect the contractual cash ﬂows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end

of subsequent accounting periods. Debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective

is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and se||ing financial assets, and that have contractual
terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income. All
other financial assets are measured at their fair value
at subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election

to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss; and
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue but

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

+ in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 "Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement”. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2018, the directors of

the Company anticipate the following potential impact on
initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables and
carried at amortised cost as disclosed in note 39: these are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding. Accordingly, these
financial assets will continue to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost upon the application of HKFRS 9.

Impairment:

In genero|, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9
will result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets measured
at amortised costs and other items that are subject to the
impairment provisions upon the application of HKFRS 9 by
the Group.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)
Impairment: (Continued)

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company,
if the expected credit loss model were to be applied by

the Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss to
be recognised by the Group as at 1 April 2018 would be
slightly increased as compared to the accumulated amount
recognised under HKAS 39. Such further impairment
recognised under the expected credit loss model would
increase the accumulated losses as at 1 April 2018.

HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue’, HKAS 11 "Construction
Contracts” and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled

in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,

the standard introduces a 5-step opprooch to revenue

recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
con’rrocf(s)

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract(s)

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furfhermore, extensive disclosures are

required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

As regards the construction contracts, the directors of the
Company specifically consider HKFRS 15's guidance on
contract combinq’rions, contract modifications arising from
variation orders, variable consideroﬂon, and the assessment
of whether there is significant financing component in the
contracts, particularly taking into account the reason for

the difference in timing between the transfer of control

of goods and services to customers and timing of relate
payments. The directors of the Company have assessed that
as performance obligation is satisfied over time therefore
revenue from these construction contracts should be
recognised over time during the course of construction by the
Group.

The directors of the Company intend to apply the limited
retrospective method with cumulative impact of the
adoption, if any, will be recognised in accumulated losses
as at 1 April 2018 and comparative figures will not be
restated. Apart from providing more extensive disclosure on
the Group's consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 will have a significant impact on the timing and
amounts of revenue recognised in the respective reporting
periods under the current method used to measure contract
progress as adopted by the Group.

The directors of the Company are assessing the
appropriateness of alternative methods for measuring
contract progress that depict its performance under
contracts under HKFRS 15 for the incomplete contracts

as at 1 April 2018, and any change may result in either a
deferral or acceleration of revenue and profit compared to
the current method.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FERFETIRREST cEBUBREER ((EBIHH

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 "Leases’

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 "Leases” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on

the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by

a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,

except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value

of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash ﬂows, the
Group curren’r|y presents upfront prepoid lease payments

as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for own
use while other operating lease payments as operating cash
flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease |iobi|ify will be allocated into a principo| and
an interest portion which will be both presented as financing

cash flows by the Group.

131

WEER) (8

EREMERERHFT REETT BB HREER
R2iE (18)

EEMBRSENE R MHE)

BB HREERIE6H5 | A —EiR SR LU
AIBEZ B HBAREB A C B5HEE, 85%F
B EER B ENE, KIS EG5T2ER
L5k (MBS ) AR .

ERMBREERBGRELHAEERSRER
ERIBEEREDHESHWRRFB G FREMHAE
ENBEEEEMREN, BABEAGSRESE &
SHERMEREZRDEERBER, WHS—ER
A, BRI ERAEANESRBEHEERES
ENREERE,

ERBEEVSRMAFTE, WHEERMUMAE (EET
BISMERERIN) BRI E R ERBRTE, Ll
EaEETMERTEMFLAR. HEAEHEHRE
ENRGFERXM 2 REVS SR, Bk, HE
BE/FZME. HENRUREEGRRIEST PIELE
TEFLAR, BReRNEMmE, 2EERE
RMEBMERAEL M ABRAMEERE I RIRE
EHBREMN, LRHHMOKEEEMREN SIS
BRE M. NEMEBYBRSERBTR, £&

7, ELUREEHREREN.

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018

ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 "Leases” (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately

or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group as lessee has
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$83,090,000 as disclosed in note 43. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently consider refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$13,074,000 as rights and obligations
under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits
are not payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits
may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments
are considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments
to refundable rental deposits paid would be included in the

carrying amount of right-of-use assets.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material effect on the Group's

consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing

the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for

gOOdS ond services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid fo transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or |i0bi|i’ry at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases’, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair v0|ue, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 "Impairment of Assets’.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are cctfegorised into Level 1,20r3 based

on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are

described as follows:

Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement dofe;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has righfs, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, odjusfmen’rs are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 "Employee Benefits”

respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
rep|c1ce share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at

the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

Oﬁd

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “"Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)

over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired

and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess

is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised

amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at
fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made

on a fransaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business
When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
the assets which are subsequently measured under fair value
model and financial assets and financial liabilities at the
respective fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase
price is then allocated to the other individual identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values
at the date of purchase. Such transaction does not give rise
to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried

at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any, and is presenfed sepctro’re|y in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generoﬁng units (or groups

of cosh-generofing units) that is expecfed to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the

lowest level at which the goodwi” is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating

segment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) o which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of
cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal

(or any of the cash-generating unit with group of
cash-generating units in which the Group monitors goodwill).

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement Whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have righfs to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures

used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under

the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
Changes in net assets of an associate or a joint venture other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any |ong-ferm interests H’]o’r, in subs’ronce, form
part of the Group's net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred |egc1| or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or

joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of

the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediofe|y

in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate or a joint
venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with

a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial

asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate

or joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previous|y
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had direcﬂy
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or

joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to

fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related

assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from

the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture

that are not related to the Group.

140

FEGFEE (8
REERBNGEERZRE ()
EXAREIBH—EMELIEEEATE N —
BloE b EHES HREGRE, BARYSHER
WEF z eEbfga, MELZWHNBERIERT
SR, MASERENFMENDNEGELE R
mEZRERRAE BT ERBIOMARELE
MEE, BFAEEENZARLTEFEREED,
MEZ N FERR SR T ERER 2 N FE. BEX
ANEERENRIERARREAE 0 2REERET
AREBERENMEERENTNEELEERRR
EAPABNIBELNFERCERE, SFtAFEEHE
ZHMERAWGELECBB. LN, AEEES
SR AWM E N B G E bR
BB, EERZMENTNGELXE
BEHELMEENSEMTEEMER. AL, M
BERTHEGELEAMENRAMEEIREESE 2
BE, aRNLERREENEEREMDEEEL.
FEEENHE o HERMRE DR GED
ERREERREEFTNEEER (FREFHEH

o

ERBE AR RERRR LT RERRNE
BOEY REBNNIENE Y REN, AEER
BRI, RILSHE RS B RBEH
B RATE

MAEERRENBELNT NG E DK B ER
BMAERRERAREE EERBEBENHE
HREENEERENHDETRLE, MAEEER
TR EREM e EmR SR EE RS EER AR
BB D EF 0B E B,

M—EEERRAEECHERNTNEELER
7, BEHMENTNEELRRGAELE ZEN R
B8, EEEERMELRNGE MR IBEEAR
EREMNBRT, HEEAERRFRSMBREE

=9
o

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to

the assets, and ob|igcﬁons for the |iobi|i’ries, re|caﬁng to the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint
operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in
relation to its interest in a joint operation:

its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
joinf|y;

its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising
from the joint operation;

its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, |ic1bi|iﬂes, revenues
and expenses relating to ifs interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, |ic1bi|iﬁes, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale

or contribution of cussefs), the Group is considered to be
conducting the transaction with the other parties to the
joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the
transactions are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of other parties’
interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase
of assets), the Group does not recognise its share of the
gains and losses until it resells those assets to a third party.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than hotel under
development are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than hotel under
development less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Hotel under development

Properties in the course of construction for hotel operation
are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
The relevant costs include acquisition costs, development
expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised and other direct
costs attributable to such properties. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Deprecioﬂon of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are reody for
their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Prepaid land lease payments

The up-front payments to acquire leasehold interest in land
are accounted for as operating leases and are stated initially
at cost and released over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. The released prepaid land lease payments in respect
of a parcel of land in Macau is capitalised into hotel under
development during the construction period and recognised
as expenses subsequent to the completion of the hotel

property.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
Ocquired seporcfe|y are carried at cost less any subsequen’r
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible
assets, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is

derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews

the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable

amount of an asset individuo”y, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs

of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been Gdjusfed.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-genera’ring
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)

is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less cost of disposcﬂ (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can

be estimated re|iob|y, contract revenue and costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of

the contract activity at the end of the reporting period,
measured based on the proportion that contract revenue
for work performed to date relative to the estimated total
contract revenue. Variations in contract work and claims are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured

reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated re|iab|y, contfract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probab|e will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in which fhey are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expecfed loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
shown as amounts due from customers for contract works.
For contracts where progress bi”ings exceed contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is shown as amounts due to customers for
contract works. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position, as a liability, as advance receipts from
customers. Amounts billed for work performecl but not

yet paid by the customer are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under trade and other

debtors, deposits and prepayments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018

ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a firsf—in,
first-out basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated cost of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as

described below.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the value of work performed during the year.

Development management, project management and
facilities and asset management services income are

recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time

to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to

the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the femporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which fhey are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
ECE -\ F =B =+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement benefit and other post employment benefit
costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes, the Mondofory Provident Fund Scheme and
other post employment benefit schemes are recognised
as expenses or capitalised in contracts in progress or hotel
under development, where appropriate, when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the

benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or subsfon’rive|y enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are genera”y recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to

the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where

the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(crnd tax |aws) that have been enacted or subsion’riveiy
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when ’rney relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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3. FEEFEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised af the rates of exchanges prevailing on the

dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting

period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchonge differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are inifiq”y measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on

initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating

the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received

that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)

fhrough the expecfed life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. subsequenf to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other debtors, amounts
due from associates, joint ventures, joint opera’rions/

other partners of joint operations and subsidiaries of a
shareholder, other loans receivable, pledged bank deposits,
short term bank deposits and bank balances and cash)

are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
fhof, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of debtors
could include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the credit periods ranging from 60

to 90 days and observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on debtors.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a debtor is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in

a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profif or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
financial assets at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had

the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity

are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity

in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting alll
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Where the shares of the Company are acquired under the
share award schemes by the share award scheme trust,
the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presen’red as “shares held for share
award” and deducted from total equity.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating

the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)

through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, o the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds contain liability and equity components
Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain
mainly the liability and conversion option components

are classified separately info respective items on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s

own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The difference

between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible

bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability component,

representing the conversion option for the holder to convert
the convertible bonds into equity, is included in equity
(convertible bonds reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using

the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible bonds reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
bonds reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible bonds reserve will be released
to the accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs
re|oﬁng to the equity component are chorged direcﬂy to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion
and amortised over the period of the convertible bonds

using the effective interest method.
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ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (inc|uo|ing trade and other credifors,
amounts due to a joint venture, joint operations/

other partners of joint operations and a subsidiary of a
shareholder, loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder and
bank and other borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 "Provisions,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and

the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecogniﬁon of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of

the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees and advisers
providing similar services as employees

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments

at the date of grant without taking into consideration alll
non-market vesting conditions is expensed or capitalised in
hotel under development on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises

its estimates of the number of equity instruments that

are expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss or capitalised in hotel under
development such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
option reserve. For share options that vest immediofe|y at
the date of grant, the fair value of the share options granted
is expensed immediately to profit or loss or capitalised in
hotel undevelopment.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to accumulated losses.
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ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Awarded shares granted to employees, consultants and
advisers providing similar services as employees

The fair value of service received determined by reference
to the fair value of awarded shares granted at the date of
grant is expensed or capitalised in hotel under development
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share award reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises

its estimates of the number of awarded shares that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss or capitalised in hotel under
development such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
award reserve.

When awarded shares are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share award reserve and the amount of the
relevant treasury shares (presented under the shares held
for share award scheme) will be transferred to accumulated
losses or capitalised in hotel under development.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
itis probob|e that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision, is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the ob|igczﬁon4 When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present ob|igoﬂon, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).
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ECE—/\F=ZB=+—HLEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4. FHEEMFTEERR

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

(a) Construction contracts
The Group recognises contract revenue and profit of a
construction contract according to the management’s
estimation of the total outcome of the project as well
as the percentage of completion of construction works.
Notwithstanding that management reviews and revises
the estimates of both contract revenue and costs for
the construction contract as the contract progresses,
the actual outcome of the contract in terms of its total
revenue and costs may be higher or lower than the
estimates and this will affect the revenue and profit

recognised.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(b) Trade debtors and retention held by customers

4. FEEEMFT 2 EB2RIR ()

b) BZEEHEREFFEZRES
EEEHEBERTHRNEBER, *EERNE
ERMAFIARKREERE. BESESRREE
FREERGARRREESARE FSEHERELEZ
HREEBR) REeREERTEE RN X (7]
BERMESE B BRI BRI CREBCE
T8, MEBRARKRRSREDINEH, e
EEERHEBE. R-F—\F=A="+—

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future

cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have

not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s

original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expecfed, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2018,

, EREUEIREEFRECRET K
B8535 £1,006,560,00078 70 (ZF—H 4 !
598,527,0007870) £2493,689,0005 70 (—F—C
5 1 477,365,000 7T) o

the carrying amounts of trade debtors and retention
held by customers are HK$1,006,560,000 (2017:
HK$598,527,000) and HK$493,689,000 (2017:
HK$477,365,000) respectively.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment, hotel under

4. FEEEMFT 2 EB2RIR ()

(c) 3. HMNERE. BERPEEUREMN 1A

development and prepaid land lease payments

The Group assesses regularly whether property, plant
and equipment, hotel under development and prepaid
land lease payments have any indication of impairment
in accordance with its accounting policy. The Group
determines the recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment, hotel under development and
prepaid land lease payments based on the estimation
of the economic benefits generated from these assets.
Except for the hotel under deve|opmen’r, management
is confident that the carrying amount of these items will
be recovered in full based on the results of assessment
of the estimates of anticipated cash flow generated

by these assets. The anticipated cash flow generated
from gaming operation is based on the memorandum
of understanding dated 16 April 2008 entered

into between a subsidiary of the Company and an

B

AEEIRBE ST BERTERGME. BmALE
s BRPEEULBEN THBERBRESEHE
RENR. AEEREREZSEECKEN &

{hat, BEWZE. Bl ERPEEMUL
A T EFIE 2 D] WO 5R, FREERE RIS
o, BN REZEEECHFRESREMTZ
SHMEMER, BEEEEL, ZFEECREER
T£%W@oﬁ%%$F$2%ﬁﬁémﬁﬁ%
KNBE—RENE A EEEKEE BN BT
MIEPIEE RSB + = B/EE] L HER S
TEIFNFUB+NHRBE R SR KEERE
BYBERAHEER, LERRHIREE(ERER
BINREETRE, RF—/\F=-A=+—
H, %% %m&ﬂw BRPBEMUNTEN LT
A &S FUE BREE 9 B 7328,409,0007%2 7T
(4;;—tﬁa1%2&po&%ﬂﬁ\69&9Mpoo

aoffiliate of the gaming operator regarding the gaming BEro (B —14 1 7,718,317,0005 1) (FHFREET
operation at THE 13 Hotel, located on the Cotai Strip JBE 41,203,000,0008 70 (ZE—+HF 1 #)) &
of Macau. The situation will be closely monitored 1,507,712,00078 71 (—F—t 4 ©1,612,303,0005
by the Group, and adjustments for impairment 7o) o

will be made in future periods in which there is an
indication of such adjustments are appropriate. As
at 31 March 2018, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment, hotel under development and
prepaid land lease payments are HK$328,409,000
(2017: HK$135,261,000), HK$6,961,944,000
(2017: HK$7,718,317,000) (net of accumulated
impairment of HK$1,203,000,000 (2017: nil)) and
HK$1,507,712,000 (2017: HK$1,612,303,000)

respectively.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(d) Deferred tax asset

As at 31 March 2018, a deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of unused tax losses amounted

to HK$53,007,000 (2017: HK$70,105,000) in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to
the remaining unused tax losses of HK$1,084,566,000
(2017: HK$716,215,000) in the consolidated statement
of financial position due to the unpredictability of future
profif streams (see note 34)4 The reo|iso|oi|ify of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will

be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future taxable profits generated are less or more than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
result in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a
material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax
asset may arise, which would be recognised in profit

or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.

(e) Share-based payment expenses

()

The recognition of share-based payment expenses
requires the estimation of the number of options and
awards that will u|ﬁmq’re|y vest at the end of each
reporting period The impact of the revision of the
estimates during the vesting period is recognised in
profit or loss or capitalised in hotel under development

whenever a revision arises.

Goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires

an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of goodwill is
HK$61,646,000 (2017: HK$61,646,000). Details of
the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note

18.
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5. REVENUE

5 A

Revenue of the Group represents the total value of contract
work performed, the gross proceeds received and receivable
from development management and project management
services in connection with contract work and income from
facilities and asset management services during the year
and is analysed as follows:

FEBWRAEFRETZENTERE, SESK
TR ME R EIE N IA R B 12 AR #5 M W R S FE U EY
ZFURIRER, LUNZRB RN E E SRR 2 W,
DA

2018 2017
—E-N\EF “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Revenue from construction contracts fe=ats SN 6,799,126 6,123,924
Revenue from deve|opmenf management, éé)ﬁ%fﬁ\ IEH %:EELX&
project management and facilities and RN EEEBIRFBWA 403 3,185
asset management services
6,799,529 6,127,109
. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEER

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers,
is organised info divisions for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment focusing on
the types of services provided. Specifically, the Group's
reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8
"Operating Segments” are as follows:

Management - building construction and

contracting civil engineering

Property development development management,

management project management
and facilities and asset

management services

Property investment - investment in properties
through investment in a

joint venture

Hotel development - hotel operation with ancillary

facilities

F?K VERITESR (TBEERRE) ERAFER
NEERFFRFE2ER, EPUFARHRFEE

RE N, ERME, AEBRBEEBUHRSE

RZBest IEE DB 2 PR S RIS E D BT

EEEE - BFRENEIATIIE

MEEREE - RREHE BEEEHE
MR N & E
BIERTS

ERE - RERYE BBREN
—Begtx)

BER R - BEIEEE, ER#E
EE3i

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DERER} (1)

The Group had invested in an operating segment of the
hotel operation in Macau with provision of ancillary facilities
which are under development. The remaining segments

are held under a major subsidiary of the Group, Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited ("PYE").

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3.

Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned or loss
incurred, by each reportable and operating segment without
allocation of corporate income, central administrative

costs, certain finance costs and gain on disposal of an
associate. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision makers for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

The assets of the Group are allocated to reportable and
operating segments except for pledged bank deposits, short
term bank deposifs, bank balances and cash and other
unallocated assets.

The liabilities of the Group are allocated to reportable and
operating segments except for certain bank borrowings and
other unallocated liabilities.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates
or at terms determined and agreed by both parties, where
no market price was available.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

6. DEPERL ()

DUR B AEBEIWARERR OIS M E D827

results by reportable and operating segments. Mo
For the year ended 31 March 2018 BHE_E—/\E=B=1+—HLEEE
Property
Management  development Property Hofel Segment

confracting  management investment PYEtotal  development totl  Eliminations  Consalidated

REEE MERREE  ERE RERXES BERE OB B e

HK$000 HK§000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TERL TER TERL TEL TER TERL TEn TEn
SEGMENT REVENUE PEA
External soles Hi\EE 6,799,126 403 6,799,529 6,799,529 6,799,529
Segment revenue PRI 6,799,126 403 6,799,529 6,799,529 6,799,529
Segment profi (oss) PEER (8 117,775 (6.812) 9,398 113,361 (1,531761)  (1,418,400) (55)  (1418,455)
Corporate income rENR 4518
Centrol administrative costs ~ FPARTEI AL (144,516)
Finance costs RERA (1,587)
Loss before fax BhRags (1570,040)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DERER} ()
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and UTAAREEEENEBBIZIRS MEENE 27D
liabilities by reportable and operating segments. Mo
At 31 March 2018 RZB—/N\F=B=+—H
Property
Management ~ development Property Hotel Segment

confracfing ~ management investment PYEtotl  development fofal Eliminations Eliminations

EEER YEEEEE NERE REEXE BIERE TEvRE i e

HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

TER TER TER TAL thn o ThEn TER
ASSETS BE
Segment asses PHEE 3,887,574 15,260 103,641 4,006,495 9,315,013 13,321,508 (628,906) 12,692,602
Pledged bank deposits BERBETER 17,020
Short term bank deposits RHRTES 71,887
Bank balances and cash RIEEES 899,554
Other uncllocated assets EknEEE 64,127
Consolidated assets GREE 13,945,190
LIABILITIES L
Seqment libilties PHEE 3,160,048 6,298 15 3,166,361 5,065,022 6,231,383 (807,109) 7424981
Bank borrowings BT 749130
Other unallocated liabilties Ehknkes 319,412
Consolidated liabilifies GREE 8,485,823
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e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018

ECE—/\F=ZB=+—HLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's other information

by reportable and operating segments.

For the year ended 31 March 2018

OTHER INFORMATION

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit (loss) or segment assets:

HihEH

e
FENSEH 8 17 BBEFIELLE.

Additions o hotel under

development

Additions to property,
plant and equipment

Additions to deposits paid for
acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Additions to other intangjble assets

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Finance costs

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of other
intangible assets

Release of prepaid land lease
payments

Impairment loss on hotel

under development
Iferests in joint ventures

Share of results of associates

and joint ventures

HERRTESE

NEME. Bk

REWENZ. HHLRE
A HE

REHMEFVEE
NE BRLRENE
EEHE

HEMR. BRRRRER

BERITIEETE

RRMEEAESS

aELzE
BUBELTRAELERE

Management
contracting
HEEE
HK$ 000
TEL

9,571

7,494

19

575

1309

(645)

6. DEPERL ()

R BB EMERLZ AR E iKE

I~ —

E_E-N\FZA=+—HLEFE

Property
development Property
management investment

NEEREE  WXRE REE

HK$'000 HK$ 000
TR TER

|
96,201
(16 2,429

Amounts regularly provided fo the chief operating decision makers but not included in the measure of segment profit (loss):

FE

TR FIEEE
Share of revenue of associates

and joint ventures

EXAREOTABRTENEaR (B8 228 -

ReaghziA

AEHE0T

435,743

80 6,042
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PYE total
Rt
HK$'000
TEL

9571

97,495

19

575

97510

1,668

441,865

Hotel
development
BEEE
HK$000
TERL

446,697

90,287

1,870

182,216

52,008

1,203,000

Unallocated
FOE
HK$000
7

1,466

410

4,885

11,587

162

UH

Z AN
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=i
o

Consolidated

VAN
ﬁ/l/TE

HK$000
57

446,607

1,037

90,267

410

34950

193,803

281

52,583

1,203,000

97510

1,668

441,865



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_ES—/\FZA=1+—HILEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and
results by reportable and operating segments.

For the year ended 31 March 2017

6. DEPERL ()

DUR B AEBEIWARERR OIS M E D827

o

BE_F—tF=ZA=1+—HLEFE

Property
Management  development Property PYE Hofel Segment
confracting  management investment totdl  development fotal Eliminations ~ Consolidated
REEE MERREE  ERE RERXES BERE OB apic ma
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TER TERL TEL TER TERL TEn TEn
SEGMENT REVENUE PHBRA
External soles HHAHE 6,123,924 3185 6,127,109 - 6127109 6197109
Inter-segment sales PHERE 826,719 826,719 - 806,719 (826,719)
Segment revenue PEUA 6,950,643 3185 6,953,828 - 6,953,628 (826,719) 6107109
Segment profit (oss) PERT (BB 195,281 (1,839) 5,265 198,714 - 108,714 (35,343) 9337
Corporate income =gy 5,547
Centrol administrative costs ~ FRARITEU LA (128,007)
Finance costs BERA (8,609)
Gain on disposal of an HEMENF L
i o 5247
associate e
Loss before tax BRaEE (30,431)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

N Ea i s

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and

liabilities by reportable and operating segments.

At 31 March 2017

6. DEPERL ()

R-ZF—tHF=RB=+—H

U BAEEEEEREEROIRE MIEE
o

Property
Management ~ development Property PYE Hotel Segment

contracting management investment fofal development fofal Eliminations

EEER YEEEEE NERE REERS BEER par: it 58

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000

TEn TiEn TEn TER Thn B TEn
ASSETS BE
Segment assefs PHEE 3521360 20,612 85,304 5,621,216 10,084,640 13,712,116 (638,109)
Pledged bank deposits BEAENER
Short term bank deposits RESHER
Bank balances ond cash FERES
Other unallocated assefs EfkAELEE
Consolidated assets HoBE
LIABILITIES L
Seqment libilies PHEE 9,800,534 5976 15 9,806,525 4738178 7,544,703 (707559)
Bank borrowings RITER
Other unallocated liobiliies ~ EMRAEEE
Consolidated liabilties FeBE
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2y

UH‘
N
3

Consolidated

= A
=

HK$ 000
i

13,074,007

16,247

36,876

323,553

73112

13,523,795

6,837,144

576,070

87,697

75031



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEPERL ()
The following is an analysis of the Group's other information TN AREBHME IR H S MK E DB DT
by reportable and operating segments.
For the year ended 31 March 2017 BHE_E—tFE=B=1+—HLEEE
Property
Management  development Property Hotel
confracting  management investment PYEtotll  development  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
HEEE MEEREE  NERE RERXNS EEER Kk e

HKS000  HK$000 ~ HK$000 ~ HK$000 ~ HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER

OTHER INFORMATION EftE&H

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit (loss) or segment assets:
FAENEEN (B A HEEFEELLE .

Additions o hotel under

FERETEE - R ; ; 1,578,947 - 1,578,947
development
Additions to property, S R
RENE. BRLEE 11,144 - - 11,144 2011 41568 17513

plant and equipment

Additions to deposits paid for REWEYE BRTDE
INEAXRE TR 1R axX i

acquisition of Propeﬁy, S04 - - - - 209,893 - 909,893
plant and equipment
Depreciation of property, A
_ M. BARRENE 98,594 10 - 98,604 - 8,633 31931
p|c|n‘r and equipment
Loss (gain) on disposal of w IR
HEME. BRLRE
pro;l)erfy, plant and E2 () (3,375 - - (3375) - 6 (3,369)
equipment
Release of prepaid land lease - =S
BEROTUHENR 575 - - 575 - - 575
payments
Inferests in joint venfures BELERER 9,336 - 85,304 87,640 - - 67,640
Share of results of associates BB pAL LLE 031) (536) 5990 9,641 B B 9641

and joint ventures

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision makers but not included in the measure of segment profit (oss):
EHEEF T EEE R EZ O IR T E AT (B 225

AEATTEIR T L SL// R oINGTE

Share of f ossociat o e
O:ﬂj;ﬂf::;jrism B BEBELRRALCENN  40m - 6,068 43346 i . 43346

The Group's operations are mainly located in Hong AEBECEBRFTZMRES. BN, PEARHEM
Kong, Macau, the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC") (TFREL) (BB REPIBRSN) KN K 52K A as,
(excluding Hong Kong and Macau), and Singapore and

Malaysia.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue based
on geographical location where construction works or other

services are provided:

DESERL (1)

RN IE 2 794

DR BAEERARREHEBR TR HEMRES 2

2018 2017

—E—-\&F S—1H 5

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Hong Kong =5 5,436,397 5,068,846
Macau P 1,215,582 694,687
The PRC s 128,835 244,872
Singapore and Malaysia Fn N B2k Fa ER 18,715 118,704
6,799,529 6,127,109

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of

U mIERSEERAEREEMTMEMLEZD

non-current assets based on the geographical location of the A
assets:

2018 2017
—E-N\EF “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHT FET
Hong Kong E575 184,371 204,098
Macau AP 8,908,220 9,670,419
The PRC as 97,892 87,406
Singapore and Malaysia FONR N 2k Fa 1,937 2,827
9,192,420 9,964,750
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from customers contributing more than 10% of the
total revenue of the Group are as follows:

. DEER ()

WA BBMEAEBBUIABIBIORNZ 0T !

2018 2017

—E—-\&F = —t5

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET 57T

Customer A ZEA 1,160,032 Noteff 5%
Customer B =FB 707,365 667,462
Customer C =ZAC Noteffi 5% 2,042,615
Note: This customer contributed less than 10% of total BEE - EZ%)E' ZWAEREAEREE_Z—N\FxK

revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2017.

All these customers are under the management contracting

—tF=A=+—H thﬁfgfﬁ%&)\“\ﬁﬁ

10%o

HEERYEAZEEIEDHES,

segment.
7. OTHER INCOME H ks
2018 2017
—E-N\F “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FETT
Bank interest income RITH B WS 803 1,867
Interest income on other loans receivable HMEW SR v H] BN ZE 3,668 3,783
W —EEaEh B
Interest income on amount due from a joint venture fi% E\Eﬁﬁﬁ BERRZ 4 -
Others Hith 46 38
4,521 5,688
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel under 78 © #7523 E P AIEE AR 3) (141)
deve|opmenf e
4,518 5,547
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BEMA
2018 2017
—E-\F “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMER R 270,457 170,706
Effective interest on convertible bonds AR ES BB 107,904 90,872
378,361 261,578
. . . . :a‘ 5 AN >
Less: Amount cagfchsed in respect of B BRTEREANIREER (21,830) (17.319)
contracts in progress o |
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel B EBRERPEIENRYE.
under development and property, KRR EER (162,728) (235,650)
plant and equipment %8
193,803 8,609
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on funds RAEFERNCEM O BENAKREEAERS
borrowed specifically for construction contracts, hotel under W, BROAENRYE. BELFREEAZCE S,

development and property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

BE_E—/\GF=A=1+—HIEFE

9. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND FIVE

N Ea i s

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight
directors and one former director (2017: nine directors)

which include the chief executive officer are as follows:

Salaries

and other  Discretionary

Retirement
benefit
scheme

(o) EZERETEITHAEMSE
ENHECS N \LEER—LIES (T
F 1 NG) (SIETERRE) S AZBEmT

Share-based

9. EENRFETHAEBNAURSFHFIMASHE

Bt

Fees benefits bonus  contributions payments Total
i Kz RIRFEF] DD 2

Name of director/former director we HAER BETEAT RS BN IANE N 1R85t
and chief executive HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B2/ HESNTETHAEEY FET FET TR FAET TET FET
2018
—EN\EF
Executive Directors
HITES
Stephen Hung (Notes i & iii)
St (B i) 23 ) - - o (R
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Note i)
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Bff5Ei) 347 6,981 ) 310 Lotz 8,655
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Note i)

i - 579 6,981 5,000 - 1,017 13,577
s E (MEH) ’ ’ ' ’
Walter Craig Power (Note i)

Walter Craig Power (B 5Fi) 47 8,268 ) 43 Lo 10,045
Independent non-executive Directors
BIFATES
James Chiu (Note ii)
N - 1,366 - - - 90 1,456
FEHEE (M 5Ei)
Lee Chack Fan (Note ii)
. - 1,162 - - - 90 1,252
)55 (M EEi)
lain Ferguson Bruce (Note ii)
- 1,246 - - - 90 1,336
mEt (i)
Francis Goutenmacher (Note i)
Francis Goutenmacher (Ff 5Fii) 1343 ) } ) o0 1433
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny (Note ii)
' - 441 - - - 90 531
PR R (MEh)
7,114 22,230 5,000 723 (597) 34,470
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BE_ES—/\FZA=1+—HILEFE

9. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND FIVE 9. EERFETHRAEBRAMUSEEHFMAEME ()
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments () EERTEFTHASIHES ()
(Continued)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme  Share-based
Fees benefits  contributions payments Total
iR BIRER DB 7
BE HaH| STEMHEFN BRI fEst
Name of director and chief executive HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEENFEITHRAEHS FET FET 7T TET BT
2017
—E—+tF
Executive Directors
WITES
Stephen Hung (Notes i & iii)
SEES (5 B Ri) 47 ] ] 3737 064
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Note i)
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Pt £ 347 6,981 310 2,587 10,225
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Note i)
L - 579 6,981 3 2,587 10,150
s E (MEH)
Walter Craig Power (Note i)
Walter Craig Power (FfI5£i) 347 8268 43 2,087 et
Independent non-executive Directors
B IERITES
James Chiu (Note ii)
N = 1,366 - - 2392 1,598
AR (T 5E)
Lee Chack Fan (Note ii)
i - 1,162 - - 232 1,394
=) 55 (B EEi)
lain Ferguson Bruce (Note ii)
- 1,246 - - 232 1,478
mE L (e ‘ ,
Francis Goutenmacher (Note ii)
Francis Goutenmacher ([ 55ii) 1343 B ) 232 1575
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny (Nofte ii)
B - 44] - - 207 648
fe & 8 (B akii)
7,178 292,230 726 12,633 49,767
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BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

9. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND FIVE 9. EENFEFTBRAENANESHFMAEME (B
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments (o) EERFETBRAEMNS (8
(Continued)
Notes: B5E -
(i) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above () EXFirziTEEZEME HIBERNE N
were for their services in connection with the AEECEHBRERBMES,
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.
(i) The independent non-executive directors’ (if) iYﬁﬁ?ZﬁjiE%ﬁﬁﬁim‘\%E?)ﬁﬁ&ﬁ&
emoluments shown above were for their service as NEIEFBRMERBMES,

directors of the Company.

(iii) Resigned on 25 January 2018. (i) R-F—/N\F—H _+HH& T,

Mr Walter Craig Power is also the chief executive officer Walter Craig Power /e 42 T8 A AN Bl 2 AT EUHREL, AR
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above IR T TR E N M EEE R N TEHR R
included those for services rendered by him as the chief PR AR < Bl

executive officer for both years.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts RAFERE BN FEREREE, AN E T
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company EAARBEENETEZNBEREEE AR L
was a party and in which a director of the Company BEERH. BHREK,

had a material interest, whether direcﬂy or indirecﬂy,
subsisted at the end of both years or at any time during

both years.

Discretionary bonus was determined with reference to MEMAIDEREBKESEGE. BEAXRBENO LR
the Group's operating results, individual performance MBMETHFEMETE. BMEALNBCEFNEET
and comparable market statistics. Neither the directors BN BNEZMEFE o E A 2.

nor the chief executive of the Company waived any
emoluments for both years.
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BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

9. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid individuals in the Group for

the year included three (2017: four) directors of the
Company whose emoluments are disclosed above in

note 9(a). The aggregate emoluments of the remaining

two (2017: one) highest paid individuals who are neither

a director of the Company nor chief executive of the

Group are as follows:

9. EERFEBTHAENAUESFMASME ()

(b) EEM =

FEERAFELURSHFMAELE=2FR

SEE (CE—CF  OLERTESR), HilE

BB LX) R TmH (25— th

*%) BT RNBDEZIAREEIETRABL
SEFMAS 2RI EHINT

2018 2017
—EF-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Salaries and other benefits AN N M EF 7,591 6,886
Discretionary bonus BIE TERL 25,425 -
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BIREFIETEIHE 36 18
Share-based payment expenses DR AER ZNFES - 2,587
33,052 9,491
The emoluments were within the fo||owing bands: WEMEPTEEEL T
2018 2017
—E-N\EF “E—tF
Number of Number of
employee employee
BEAZ BEAH
9,000,001 BTE
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 9,500,000 71 - 1
13,000,001 708
HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 13,500,000 % 7t 1 _
19,500,001/ 752
HK$19,500,001 to HK$20,000,000 20,000,000 7T 1 -
2 1

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group

to the five highest paid individuals, including directors
of the Company and chief executive of the Group, as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

REMEERN, AEETEQLUSSFIAE (2

BARDEERAEBETETHAE) Z(ITB S UF
AIMAFREETNMAAEBE R 22/, L8

BE,
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BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

N Ea i s

10. FRIEIRER

2018 2017
—E\&F “F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT TET
Hong Kong =5
Current tax AHEARRIA 1,390 1,096
Overprovision in prior year W FE B (20) -
1,370 1,096
Macau and other jurisdictions PSRN Hfh B A g R
Current tax AHAHRIE 373 6,194
(Over) underprovision in prior years BFFE (85 ~2iE (1,409) 483
(1,036) 6,677
334 7,773
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% EAFERIBFRLETERR AT 2165% (5
(2017:16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. —14F 1165%) 5 &,
Taxation arising in Macau and other jurisdictions is RN AEMBEERER EE 2 IRIBTVRBRAERE S
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. HEEBITZRERFTE,
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BE_ES—/\FZA=1+—HILEFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FRSIRER (1)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to AEE S RE R RF S8R FRIREE
the loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit BoHERNT

or |OSS as FO”OWS:

2018 2017
—F-N\F “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT TET
Loss before tax IR B8 (1,570,040) (32,451)
BAMIFREN65% (—F—14F .
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) &iij{é?%gﬁ(ﬁlﬁ F (259,056) (5,355)
Tax effect of share of results of associates M E N NAEPE (275) (436)
and joint ventures ERCRBRE
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax E*}iﬂi’%gﬁxam B2 201,438 0349
purpose MBETE
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose Ei;;;;gﬂ RS2 (1,319) (1,286)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences RER AR ERER
) ~ 24y 5 48 184 5,068
not recognised MBzE
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible temporary SN Sl R SR A B s
| 4 4 i (27) %
differences previously not recognised ERECRBRE
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FEDRBEEIECRHZE 75,718 20,812
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously BB SLEI AR 2 IRTBEEIE
~ . 12,395 13,427
not recognised LR E ( ) ( )
Ha s S NEIFRER
Tax effect of different tax rates in other jurisdictions ~ \ﬁg? jg 82 FERELZ (2,505) (428)
M E
(Over) underprovision in prior years BEFFE (B 285 (1,429) 483
Income tax expense for the year FECHESRER 334 7,775
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 34. EAERR IS 2 FFIE &Y PR 5340
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR
Loss for the year has been arrived FEBEDIOR
at after charging (crediting): GrA) :
Auditor’s remuneration ELEMEN &=

Contract costs recognised as expense ERAREICENRAE

Depreciation of property, plant and MIZE. TR 5% 1
equipment ZITE

Loss on disposo| of property, p|cmf and HEYIZE. B
equipment 1~ E518

Loss on disposal of other intangible assets HEHMEEEE

pd ki
Legal and professional fees EELEEXEER
Net exchange gain PE R EA %8

Impairment loss recognised in respect of:  FELA N ZIBHEFE 2

BEEE
other debtor H el zIa
amount due from an associate FEW — Bt N )
I8
amount due from a subsidiory ofa U —A iR EE —FE]
shareholder B BIFIE
Operating lease rentals KEREHRS

Release of prepaid land lease payments e TR EHIE

Staff costs ETHAR

n. FEBE

Notes
BEE

(a)

(b)

(d)

2018

—E-N\EF

HK$'000
TET

4,839

6,501,159

34,250

281

40,789

(2,541)

2,867

4,732

40,185

52,583

246,163

2017
—EF—tF
HK$' 000

TET

4,762

5,877,240

37,237

3,369

26,531

(59)

235

26,513

575

167,494
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i

For the year ended 31 March 2018
ECE -\ F =B =+—HIFE

SRFIRERMTEE

1. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued) N FEFE ()
Notes: P 5E -
2018 2017
—F-N\F “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment: (a) M. BHANRBITE
Owned assets HBEEE 39,658 52,547
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BREEREANITRE
g - 2,135 3,247
contracts in progress BARCEHE ( ) ( )
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BREEPAL
5 - 3,273 12,063
hotel under development BARCEH ( ) ( )
34,250 37,237
(b) Operating lease rentals: (b) MEHERS !
Premises LIES 56,382 62,101
Plant and machinery T N 1 35 91,777 85,120
148,159 147,221
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BREREN TR
g " 96,776 87,835
contracts in progress BARZEHE ( ) ( )
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BRERPBLE
" 11,198 392,873
hotel under development A &5 ( ) ( )
40,185 26,513
(c) Release of prepaid land lease payments: (c) BEETR T T HIIEE RIS -
Release of prepaid land lease payments HEESTE T IAE SR8 104,591 104,591
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BREERALL
\ . 52,008 104,016
hotel under development BAR e ( ) ( )
52,583 575
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BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

1. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued) N FEFE ()
Notes: (Continued) MHEE : (18)
2018 2017
—E-N\E “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE R
(d) Staff costs: (d) ET A :
Directors’ emoluments (Note 9) FZ=ME (HEE9) 34,470 42,767
Other staff costs: HMETAA :
Salaries, discretionary bonus and other N, METEAL
_ 861,295 846,346
benefits HinEx
Retirement benefit scheme and other post BAREFET 8N E A B
employment schemes contributions, net of BREFETEMERR, 0k
forfeited contributions of HK$4,209,000 B (HFN4,209,00078 71 22,315 27,470
(2017: HK$882,000) (ZF—t4 882,000
7BIT)
Equity-settled share-based payment LIRS E LR AER
= 1,735 6,449
expenses Zfﬁﬁkﬁﬂﬁ ( )
916,345 923,032
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BREEANIE
580,236 473,266
contracts in progress BER e ( ! ) 47, )
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BRERPBIENR
hotel under development and YiZE. B (89,946) (282,272)
property, plant and equipment RiEEA LB
246,163 167,494
12. DISTRIBUTIONS 12. 2R
No dividend was recognised as distributions to owners of the R EEE, MEEROANANTHEE A IEE,.
Company during both years.
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend BEfEBRRVEE_S—/\E=-B=+—H1%
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: nil). EvERE(CE—t4 . MH),
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e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE

13. SREE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Loss

FREHEENEESRER RSB IBIIRET
PRt R ¢

518

2018 2017
—E-\F “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted loss STREEREANEESER
per share: ZE5IE
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the KNEEE N FE(EEEEIE (1,573,795) (44,559)
Company
Number of shares e E
Number of Number of
shares shares
RiZEE R E
(resfofed)
(E5)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for STEESREARNETEEE
the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share < EZBE IR EE (YR 249,618,851 217,695,193
(Note)

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares
adopted in the calculation of basic and diluted

loss per share for both years have been adjusted
retrospectively to reflect the impact of capital
reorganisation and issue of rights issue shares as
disclosed in note 35 and have been arrived at after
deducting the shares held in trust for the Company

by an independent trustee.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 does not assume the
exercises of convertible bonds and the unvested shares
awarded outstanding for the years ended 31 March 2018
and 2017 since assumed such exercises would result in a
decrease in loss per share. In addition, the computation

of diluted loss per share for years ended 31 March 2018

and 2017 does not assume the exercises of exchange right
granted to option holders under a subsidiary’s share option
scheme and the Company's share options outstanding
during the year because the adjusted exercise prices of those
exchange rights and options were higher than the average
market price of the shares and assumed such exercises would
result in a decrease in loss per share during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

14. HOTEL UNDER DEVELOPMENT 14, ZEREFIEE

The movements of the hotel under deve|opmen’r for the BHE_E—/\GEN_ES—tEF=-"A=+—HILFE
years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 are set out below: BERIAE B ‘@)ﬁ%@ﬂ [o( N

HK$'000

FAET
COST BN
At 1 April 2016 NIIE—RFEAE—H 6,139,370
Additions NE 1,578,947
At 31 March 2017 RIE—CtF=A=1+—Hd 7,718,317
Additions B 446,627
At 31 March 2018 ACE—N\F=ZA=+—H 8,164,944
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT REEE
AN — - —
At1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 ﬁ\;;_gigg EJEEE }
Impairment loss recognised B SRR ERE 1,203,000
At 31 March 2018 AE—N\F=H=+—H 1,203,000
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 March 2018 R_E—/N\F=ZA=+—H 6,961,944
At 31 March 2017 A_E—tEF=H=+—H 7,718,317
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Y PR Ead R
For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_ZE—/\F-B=+—HIFE

14. HOTEL UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued) 14. BRAVEE (1)

The hotel under development is erected on a piece of

land on the Cotai Strip of Macau which is held under a
medium-term lease. The amounts capitalised in the hotel
under development mainly represent the release of prepaid
land lease payments, depreciation of property, plant and
equipment, effective interest of convertible bonds and bank
and other borrowings, share-based payment expenses and
share award expenses, directors and key management's
emo|umenfs, other staff costs, direct construction costs as
well as other professional fees including design fee and
consultancy fees. The capitalised share-based payments,
share award expenses, directors and key management's
emoluments are based on the roles and functions of each
individuals and their relevant time spent in relation to the
hotel under development project during the year.

The recoverable amount of the above hotel under
development has been determined based on the estimates
of anticipated cash flow generated by the assets, which
prepared by the management and was valued by Greater
China Appraisal Limited, an independent professional
valuer. The value in use calculations are calculated based
on the underlying assumption of successfully obtaining all
relevant license of the gaming operation at THE 13 Hoftel,
located on the Cotai Strip of Macau, which taken into
consideration of a memorandum of understanding dated
16 April 2008 entered into between a subsidiary of the
Company and an affiliate of the gaming operator.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

14. HOTEL UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

The value of THE 13 Hotel project (the "Project") of
approximately HK$8,988,000,000 is based on
the followings valuation approach, inputs, basis and
assumptions:

(a) Valuation approach
Income approach and use of discounted cash flow
method is applied for the valuation because:

The value of the Project is determined by its
potential ability to generate a stream of benefits
in the fufure;

For valuation, the Project is at pre-opening
stage with approximately 90% of the entire
development of the Project completed.
According to the Company’s business plan,

it is understood that the Project will generate
economic benefit in two stages. The first
stage is to commence the hotel operations
and the second stage is to cooperate with the
concessionaire for gaming operations to be
operated by the concessionaire (subject to
government approval). Income approach can
reflect the specific stages of development of the
Project; and

Economic benefit streams of the Project can
be identified based on projected cash flows
prepared by the management of the Company.

(b) Revenue
In accordance with the business plan of the Project,
there are five revenue streams to be earned which are
gaming revenue, hotel revenue, food and beverage
revenue, retail revenue and other revenue.

Gaming revenue represents the revenue earned from
casino operation and has been projected by player
segments of mass fob|e, cash ro||ing, slot and junket.
The valuation assumes that the concessionaire/
sub-concessionaire will secure the right to locate a total
of 66 gaming tables in the hotel, being the maximum
number contemplated between a subsidiary of the
Company and the concessionaire/sub-concessionaire.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N Ea i s
For the year ended 31 March 2018

ECE—/\F=ZB=+—HLEE

14. HOTEL UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
(b) Revenue (Continued)

14. B RPAEE (18)
(b) Uik (18)

The revenue growth in the first 5 years of operation was
assumed to be approximately 5% per annum for mass
table, cash rolling and junket, 3% per annum for slot
machine and then slow down to 2.8% per annum for all
of these player segments, which reflects the long-term
inflation forecast of Macau by the International
Monetary Fund.

Hotel revenue has been projected by taking into
account the total number rooms, average daily rates
and occupancy rates. Different occupancy rates and
average daily rates have been applied to different room

types.

The occupancy rate of the hotel rooms would be
approximately 50% only in the first year of operation

i.e. FY2019. With the commencement of the casino,

the demand for hotel rooms would increase to indusfry
level. Based on the obove, it has been projec’red that the
assumed overall average occupancy rate would increase
from 50% in FY2019 to 80% in FY2023. The annual
growth rate of the hotel revenue after FY2023 was
assumed to be 2.8% per annum.

Food and beverage revenue represents the revenue
generofed by restaurants and bars operdfed by the
Company. It has been projected by taking into account
the average cover per day and average check. The
management of the Compcmy expecfed that the
business of food and beverage would ramp up to
stabilised operations in FY2023, which is consistent with
the growfh trend of hotel revenue. The annual growfh
rate of the food and beverage revenue after FY2023

was assumed fo be 2.8% per annum.

Retail revenue represents rental and management
income of retail shops located in THE 13 Hotel. Other
revenue are ancillary room charges like laundry,
fe|ephone, business centre, etfc.

After FY2025, it was assumed the revenue would
be increased by 2.8% per annum which reflects
the long-term inflation forecast of Macau by the
International Monetary Fund.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
ECE -\ F =B =+—HIFE

14. HOTEL UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Contfinued)

(c) Cost of Revenue

The cost of gaming revenue consists of the following

major elements:

TR E G

*Licenses Fee - % of Revenue

BER— a0 %

Gaming Tax - % of Revenue

‘Gaming Premium - HK$ "BEREE-ET

g — 158 %

Commission - % of Revenue

Tourism Tax on Complimentary
Expenses - % of Complimentary
Expenses

BB H SR
o iR —E BB X%

ReBREE

Cash Gaming Promotion

Tourism Tax on Player Development f B% % B5 2% B9 < 14 i bt
Expenses - % of Player (5B R R E Sy,

Development Expenses

The rate of License fee paid to the
Concessionaire is based on the MOU

Fixed gaming premium is assumed to be subject
to annual increment of 2.8%

Cash gaming promotion represents promotional
events e.g. tournaments, VIP dinners and marketing
expenses to stimulate casino play. In addition, the
Company has estimated that 80% of hotel revenue
and 45% of revenue from food and beverage will be
the complimentary expenses and player development

expenses allocated to different player types.

The cost of food and beverage revenue and other
revenue were assumed fo be approximately 30% and
2.7% of the respective revenue. There was no direct cost
of revenue assumed for hotel and retail revenue.
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14. B RPAEE (18)

(c) WERAA
ERMRAARL T ERTERMEMN

Mass Table Slot Cash Rolling Junket
HISHER ATH ReEBER BERNAER
5.00% 5.00% 3.00% 3.00%
39.00% 39.00% 39.00% 39.00%
145,631 97 291,262 291,262

NA NA 25.00% 38.00%

5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
0.83% 0.60% NA NA
5.00% NA 5.00% 5.00%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

14. HOTEL UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
(d) Operating expenses

(e)

(f)

The operating expenses are related to gaming
operation, hotel operation, food and beverage
operation and general operation of the whole Project.
It includes staff costs, operating supp|ies, uﬂ|iﬁes, renfct|,
insurance and depreciation expenses. It is assumed that
the operating expenses would be increased by to 2.8%
per annum affer FY2023.

Duration of the Project

The land use rights were granted for a 25-year period
up to 31 October 2032 renewable in accordance with
the relevant law in Macau. According to the Macau
land law, the renewal period will not be more than 10
years. The duration of the Project is extended to 31
October 2042 i.e. the end of the extended lease term.

Discount rate

We considered market and industry data to develop
the weighted average cost of capital for this valuation
assessment. The rate used to discount the forecast cash
flows is 13%.

Since the recoverable amount of the hotel under

development as at 31 March 2018 is less than its carry

amount, an impairment loss of HK$1,203,000,000 (2017:

nil) is recognised for the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

BE_FS—/\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/DEPOSITS
PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT

AND EQUIPMENT

(a) Property, plant and equipment

15. W%, HEmMNERE B, BIRkREZEN

B

(o) W3, BN ER R

Plant, Furniture,
mochinery fixtures
Leasehold and Motor and office
improvement equipment vehicles equipmem Total
FE. LB
M. %28 P8 /NS
HEEE & A B4 st
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FET FHET FAET FAET FAT
cosT 3%
At1 April 2016 i NEMA—H 36,944 976,768 45,390 98,838 457170
Translation adjustments fE R R - 9) (361) (150) (520)
Additions NE - 7,580 3,540 6,393 17,513
Disposals HE - (12,185) (4,483) (1,325) (17,993)
At 31 March 2017 RIE—tHE=ZA=+—H 36,244 979,154 44,016 103,756 456,170
Translation adjustments b 2 FR R - 22 562 914 798
Transfer B - - 159,343 64,937 994,280
Additions B - 1,679 1,808 7,550 11,037
Disposals HE (433) (7,885) (4,634) (7,269) (20,214)
At 31 March 2018 A\ B /\E=A=+—H 35,811 965,970 901,095 169,195 672,071
DEPRECIATION e
A1 April 2016 RIE—RENA—H 23,401 150,267 99,593 77,164 980,495
Translation adjustments [ER AR - ) (224) (127) (358)
Provided for the year AEERE 11,477 95,629 5,548 9,893 59,547
Eliminated on disposals HEREH - (6,71) (3,772) 1,229) (11,705)
At 31 March 2017 RIB—tFE=A=+—8H 34,878 169,178 31,145 85,708 390,909
Translation adjustments PE B - 20 436 183 639
Provided for the year AEEER 1,329 25,934 4,759 8,336 39,658
Eliminated on disposals HEREH (41) (5,869) (4,207) (7,057) (17,544)
At 31 March 2018 A ZE-\F=ZA=+—H 35,796 188,563 39,133 87,170 343,662
CARRYING VALUE fREE
At 31 March 2018 A\ ZE-/\F=A=+—H 15 77,407 168,962 82,025 398,409
At 31 March 2017 R_E—tHF=A=+—H 1,366 102,976 12,871 18,048 135,261
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/DEPOSITS
PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(a) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

Leasehold

improvement

Over the shorter of the term

of the lease or 3 years
Plant, machinery and

A v 10% - 33/ %
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture, fixtures and

20% - 33/ %

office equipment

(b

~

Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has deposits of
HK$221,698,000 (2017: HK$336,547,000) paid to
independent third parties for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment.

16. DEPOSITS FOR INVESTMENTS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has a refundable earnest
money of HK$50,000,000 (2017: HK$50,000,000)
paid to an independent third party as deposit to secure an
investment right in production of a movie. Also included in
deposifs for investments, is refundable earnest money of
HK$60,000,000 (2017: HK$60,000,000) paid to an
independent third party in respect of a potential property

investment.

The Group has a senior secured other bridge borrowing of
HK$300 million outstanding as at 31 March 2018 which
falls due on 1 April 2018, and subsequent to the year end
date, the Group has recognised a HK$30 million loan
facility fee payable to the lender. The Group received a
Notice of Assignment dated 8 May 2018 from the original
lender that it assigned and transferred all its rights, titles,
interest and benefits of the HK$300 million senior secured
bridge loan to a new lender, of which HK$110 million has

been settled by offsetting arrangement with the deposits for

investments.

15.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17. TS tFEEFIE

Analysed for reporting purposes as follows:

EREBIMOFAT

2018 2017

—E—N\F “E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Non-current assets IERENEE 1,403,121 1,507,712
Current assets MEEE 104,591 104,591
1,507,712 1,612,303

The Group's prepaid land lease payments comprise

leasehold interest in land situated in:

FAEBCENIMESENBEIRURU TG Z+
wHERR

2018 2017
—E-\F —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH Fan
Hong Kong =55 16,811 17,386
Macau (Note) 2P (fF5E) 1,490,901 1,594,917
1,507,712 1,612,303
Note: New Concordia Hotel Limited ("New Concordia”), MEE : ST BEERAD (FiE), ANBze

a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
been granted an irrecoverable and exclusive power
of attorney ("POA") in respect of interest in a parcel
of land situated on the Cotai Strip of Macau

(the "Land”). Taken into consideration of a legal
opinion, POA is considered to be a legal instrument
commonly used in Macau to grant, assign or
transfer rights, interest and powers on or relating to

the Land.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

18. GOODWILL 18. BE
HK$'000
FET
COST RA
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 2018 RTE—RNFOUBE—H. ZF—TtFK 64419
—EFE-/\FE=A=+—H '
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT REHRE
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 2018 RTE—RNFOEB—H. ZF—TtFK (2,766)
—E-/\F=ZA=+—H '
CARRYING VALUE BRmEE
At 31 March 2017 and 2018 R_E—tEN_ES—N\EFE=HA=+—H 61,646

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount
of goodwill has been allocated to the cash-generating unit

DETRRTIIECELTREBL

of building construction in the management contracting

segment.

The recoverable amount of the above cosh-genero’ring unit
has been determined based on value in use calculations. The
Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the management

for the next two years (2017: two years) and extrapolates
cash flows for the following five years (2017: five years) with

u%ﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬁ,

ﬁtﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁi,ﬁ%%E%E%A%@%@

uiéiﬁA“MZTW@%ﬁﬁﬁKH@%E@
B, AEERBEEBAHERKENE (TF
FIWE) B LM HRERELIRERER, U
—CF 5% WEHRLOF (T
—tF ! 1H) 2RERE. AURRBRARSR
Zibﬁwiw%tfﬁ TF 1 9%) o BRBEHIRE

a steady growth rate of 5% (2017: 5%). The rate used to BEMNXREE, MBEEENXRBIRZEM BER

discount the forecast cash flows is 9% (2017: 9%). The value

BREEEH T HEREIHEMEE.

in use is calculated based on the budgeted gross margin,

which is determined using the unit’s past performance

and the management’s expectations for the market

development.

The management believes that any reasonably possible

change in any of these assumptions would not cause the TN EENREREBREN W28,

aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate

recoverab|e amount.

191

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEERS, ULEARERZERGIER K



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE
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BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

9. Hth R EE

2018 2017
—EF-\&F S5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH Fit

Other intangible assets comprise: HMEEEEDIE
Club membership in Hong Kong, at cost EBCEEE, LA 7,000 7,000
Motor vehicles registration marks, at cost EERNE AN, R 1,092 627
8,092 7,627

The above intangible assets have indefinite useful lives. The

ikﬂﬁééiﬁm@@%¢%0%$wﬂ%§%

directors are of the opinion that the club membership and HHBERERA, BiENBEWMEELHECEE
motor vehicles registration marks are worth at least their ESVE %ﬁ/\\ﬁaﬁﬁfﬁo
carrying amounts by reference to latest market prices.
20. OBLIGATIONS IN EXCESS OF INTERESTS IN 20. BHBE NESZEE
ASSOCIATES
2018 2017
—E-N\E “F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT
Cost of unlisted investments in associates WERIELMHE LB 2
1,561 1,561
B AR
Share of post-acquisition losses and other B ER C BIE N EAM (8,397) (7,695)
comprehensive expenses, net of dividends received LHBES, HREWRBEE ' '
(6,836) (6,134)

SOUTH SHORE
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20. OBLIGATIONS IN EXCESS OF INTERESTS IN
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material:

20. BHEE N B2 BT ()

BRI 3F £ B B & N B ERHRIE

2018 2017

—E\&F “F—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHR Fan

The Group's share of loss AEE#(LEIE (448) (2167)

The Group's share of other comprehensive AEE#HEMEE (254) 138

(expense) income (Fi=) Wi

The Group's share of total comprehensive expense 752 B # (4 4 [E BE =% {248 (702) (2,029)

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEEBHBENBER (6.836) (6,134)
obligation in excess of inferests in associates SECRERE ’ ’

Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31 March
2018 and 2017 are set out in note 48(c).
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21 BEPEMER
2018 2017
—E\&F “F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR Fan
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures KRERIELTEERE
e 51,773 51,773
Share of post-acquisition profits and other LW EE R e R EA 45.737 35867
comprehensive income, net of dividends received SEWE, HIREWEEE ' '
97,510 87,640
The summarised financial information in respect of the BEAERTEGELENIEZEHEBEGREL
Group's material joint venture, 41, TSEBHESRBIRNF] HeBNB BTN ASR AR ERA 7251%73
and its wholly-owned subsidiary, /71N C &A1 B2 AR BRI EHT] T UTHHBERBEZENREESS
28] is set out below. The summarised financial information S AR M S P BREFT 2
below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's £ %8,
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
Financial position of the joint venture as at 31 March: BETLER =B =1+—HB<HBRR
2018 2017
—E-N\F  —EtE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TE7T
Non-current assets FERBNEE 232,251 211,862
Current assets REEE 7,061 5,326
Current liabilities mEEE (22,105) (23,987)
Non-current liabilities ERFEE (24,805) (22,593)
Net assets of the joint venture EEPESESRE 192,402 170,608
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 21 BEEREL (1)
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the TREENESBESRACE NIEIE
following:

2018 2017
—E-\F “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Cash and cash equivalents BehHEIEeEFEEE 6,868 4,625
Current financial liabilities (exc|uding trade and mEeEaE (FaEEESEN 16 930
other payables and provisions) EABE FIE N B ) '
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying amount of the S S EEDBENEEREmME CHE
interest in the joint venture:
2018 2017
ZEN\EF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TETT
Net assets of the joint venture EEPECEEFE 192,402 170,608
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEELEEPEEGE 50% 50v
interest in the joint venture ey sdi]l 0 ’
. ;o AN TN
Ca'rrylng‘a‘mounf of the Group's interest FEENREErERTC 96,201 85,304
in the joint venture IREE
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 2l BERRELR ()
Results of the joint venture for the year ended 31 March: AEPEHE AT+ —HIEFECEE
2018 2017
TE-N\E “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT TET
Revenue N 12,084 12,136
Profit for the year FERF] 4,858 10,580
Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year FE Ef £ E % (Fis2) 16,936 (9,772)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EmKGIELEE 21,794 808
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not BALIEEEcEEREELHEE
individually material:
2018 2017
—E\&F “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT TETT
The Group's share of loss AEE (L EE (313) (482)
The Group's share of other comprehensive AEBE#GEMEME 153 (82)
income (expense) Wi (BE2)
The Group's share of total comprehensive expense 752 B # (5 4 [E BE 52 {248 (160) (564)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEBREGELERLD
A o . 1,309 9,336
inferests in joint ventures BE EAEE
Particulars of the Group's principal joint ventures as at 31 AEBTELSLEPER =B\ EN_E—FFE—
March 2018 and 2017 are set out in note 48(d). B=+—8 25855 R aE48(d)o
196

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
ECE -\ F =B =+—HIFE

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR 22 fEI I B P BN TIENIEA
CONTRACT WORKS
2018 2017
—EF-\&F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT TET
Contracts in progress at the end of the reporting A0 A AL o .
period:
Contract costs incurred EEEZERNAR 78,697,169 72,500,214
Recognised profits less recognised losses TS RN RS iR S 18 2,070,038 1,842,024
80,767,207 74,342,238
Less: Progress billings B EER (80,995,628) (74,204,007)
(228,421) 138,231
Analysed for reporting purposes as: LERENMNTA
Amounts due from customers for contract works [EWE R &M TIEIE 1,056,904 1,001,835
Amounts due to customers for contract works ERER &N IIENRIE (1,285,325) (863,604)
(228,421) 138,231
In response to the lead contamination of drinking water HEETENTIEBKINKEHE, ANBIEENE
in certain contract works, the directors of the Company T T EIHEAR G S EREEFELE T IR B

consider that the provision made for the costs of remedial

works in the consolidated financial statements is adequate.
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23. INVENTORIES

24.

The inventories were carried at cost and represent principally
food, beverages and operating supplies which are to be
utilised in the ordinary course of operations.

TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

23. 7E&

Z B RmMEEYE,

24. B RHEMEKRIA. FTERBNRIE

FERUFIER, TEEFNABEBBERETEHE

2018 2017
—E-\F “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T
Trade debtors B 5 eI EIE 1,006,560 598,527
Retention held by customers expected to be settled: HRFERBEENR T
BIFE B2 REIE
ik L SR EASRASE
within N‘/elve monfhs from the end of the WERAFREFNEAR 978713 346,954
reporting period
B SR Ak HRS 1
aofter fw.e|ve m?nfhs from the end of the HwEHREFNEB & 914,976 131
reporting period
493,689 477,365
Advance payments to sub-contractors AP HE N < BN RIB 155,154 165,242
' i YIRS RS
Consfruchc?n and material purchase (W) fJPiﬁSEﬁ\LZLL& 308,999 036,594
costs paid on behalf of sub-contractors MR BE Bl A
HiEWFIE, 5]
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments /\;gggigé g 130,758 206,163
2,115,160 1,683,891

Trade debtors mainly arise from management contracting
business. The Group's credit terms for its management
contracting business are negotiated at terms determined
and agreed with its trade customers. The credit periods are

ranging from 60 to 90 days.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
The aged analysis of trade debtors, net of allowance for
doubtful debfs, presenfed based on the invoice date at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

24. B 5 N HEMFEWRIA, 5T RFBEMRIEA ()

RI|BEHR, UHTEHASEESRICHBRER
BlRRcEZ BB RO T

2018 2017

—F-N\F “E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within 90 days 90H M 939,419 544,654
More than 90 days and within 180 days BaEo0H{EF180H N 1,256 2,309
More than 180 days BiE180H 72,885 51,564
1,006,560 598,527

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the
credit quality of the trade customers. The collection is closely
monitored to minimise any credit risk associated with these
trade debtors.

The aged anadlysis presented based on the invoice date of
the trade debtors which are past due but not impaired is as
follows:

AEEETHREEBRLFIHERERZEEER
2, WATIEHEBVIRENRERBEEMEZES
ZEWSEAER < EE AR,

EBRRERBECEZBIGREURZEAAESE
S5 ZRREBOTIOT

2018 2017

—EF-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F Fi

More than 90 days and within 180 days BiEo0HE180H Y 1,256 2,309
More than 180 days 818180 H 72,885 51,564
74,141 53,873

The directors of the Company consider that there has not
been a significant change in credit quality of the trade
debtors and there is no recent history of default, therefore
the amounts are considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

Maijority of the trade debtors that are neither past due nor
impaired have no default payment history.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 24. B REMEWNRIA, 5TEKRFANRIEA (1)
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
Movement in allowance for doubtful debts of individually RER, ERIEREEZEWTIE 2 REEREE
impaired trade debtors during the year is as follows: BRanT :
2018 2017
—E-N\EF “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Balance at beginning and end of the year FE N FARIEER 3,833 3,833
The Group's trade and other debtors that are denominated NEF DV HBEEEEIhaEESE N v Bk A B
in currencies other than the functional currency of the B NEMEWRIBEBE S 0T

relevant group entities are set out below:

2018 2017
—E-N\F TE—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Macau Pataca (‘MOP") JRPFEE (TTRPIHE ) 109 194
Renminbi (‘'RMB") ARE TARE]) 36,734 35,386
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/ 25. FEIL (IS NE]RE R SEER BEX
JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER BHMBARIE
PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS
(a) Amounts due from/to associates/joint ventures (o) FEW (HEEENTE) /&b o NIE
(i) Amounts due from associates: () FEWEHE NBIFUE :
2018 2017
—E—-\&F =t
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiE7T
Trade and other balances 85 M EMiEeR
Retention held by an associate expecfed to —ERE N EE TEH
be settled within twelve months from the AR S HATR S A2 129 129
end of the reporting period BAE RSB FRE
Other balance Hths ek 12,499 15,734
12,628 15,863
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/

JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER
PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Amounts due from/to associates/joint ventures

(Continued)

(i) Amounts due from joint ventures:

(o) FEMR IEHERTE, &

() EREERENE:

By

25. FEUR IBHENE R EE BEXEE SEX
BHMBHRIE (8)

I ()

2018 2017
—E-N\EF “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TETT
Trade and other balances 85 Mk EMiEeR
Trade balances B HEER 97,926 133,873
Retention held by a joint venture —BaErEFERIER
expected to be settled within twelve R ERAFREFNEA
ths from the end of th ti fEECIREE
moh s from the end of the reporting 88 2 RE 16,339 94,550
period
Other balance HAibhser 5 -
Non-trade balance IEE S SR 7,435 -
121,705 158,423

The trade balances due from joint ventures which
have a credit period of 90 days on average are
aged within 90 days based on the invoice date at

BREELRZEZ e THEERA90H, m
RIMEARUEZ AR E KRB AR08 N,

the end of the reporting period.

(iii) Amount due fo a joint venture:

TF'GOIQ Oﬂd ofher bq|cmce

Other balance

H 5 R EMAGER

HAthigeR

(i) B —EEaEhENIE .

2018 2017
—E-\&F =5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

52 67
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/ 25. FEW IEE NE]l B X EEE REXE

JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER BHMBARIE (1)

PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) Amounts due from/to joint operations/other partners (b) FEUR HEEET SEEFHMBYCHE
of joint operations
Amounts represent balances due from and to joint TIBREWNENEEER (REABHEES S
operations, which are deemed to be borne by other EEFEMBHRE) MEEEBEMBH S
partners of such joint operations, and other partners Ero ENEEEBT O EEBHMBIE ZIGER
of joint operations. The balances due from joint 77 5l #1,021,00078 71 (Z&F—L4F 7,585,000
operations and other partners of joint operations 71) N254,056,00078 71, (—F— 14 1 110,853,000
are HK$1,021,000 (2017: HK$7,585,000) and BT . BNEEXEBREEEBAMBMH
HK$54,056,000 (2017: HK$110,853,000), 2 KSR 1) 754,056,000 7T (ZF—/54F
respectively. The balances due to joint operations and 110,853,00078 7T) 124,227,0008 7 (Z&F— 4
other partners of joint operations are HK$54,056,000 2,698,000 7T) o

(2017: HK$110,853,000) and HK$4,227,000 (2017:
HK$2,698,000), respectively.

(i) Amounts due from joint operqfions/ofher partners of (i) f’%u&é%%%/é%%7%ﬁm%f¥2%ﬁﬁ

joint operations:

2018 2017
—EF-N\F “F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH7T FHT
Trade and other balances B 5 N EMiEER
Trade balance H 5 iEeR 389 87
Retention held by a joint operation expected —EEEEETE
to be settled within twelve months from the %EHHH/\$§iHHEE _ 7900
end of the reporting period ECENE S WSS '
ZIRE®
Hibider
Other balance HAubiges 639 2908
Non-trade balances JEE GiEeR 54,056 110,853
55,077 118,438
203

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/
JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER
PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) Amounts due from/to joint operations/other partners

25. FEUR IBHENE R EE BEXEE SEX
BHMBHRIE (8)

(b) FEY S EEEY AEEFHEHMBH ZNE

of joint operations (Continued) (18)
(i) Amounts due from joint operations/other partners of () BREEER,SEXFEMBH IFIE
joint operations: (Continued) (18

The trade balance due from a joint operation has
a credit period of 90 days and the aged analysis

ER—EEEXHcBS G EERHA0
H, MRIREPRURZAHA/ELEZ R

presenfed based on the invoice date at the end of E’Ebzi/\ W:@ZD—F
the reporting period is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-\&F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TETT
Within 90 days 90H M 213 87
More than 180 days EBiE180 H 169 -
382 87

EHARER IR0 H 2 FEER BB HI B RIRE. AN T%
SRAROEEBEEERLEENEL, B
%Iﬁ?@ﬁﬁ,&m%&%&ﬁﬂT%W@o

The above balance aged over 90 days is past due
but not impaired. The directors of the Company
consider that there has not been a significant
change in credit quality of the joint operation and
there is no recent hisfory of defouH, fherefore, the

amount is considered recoverable.
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/ 925 R IBHE NE] BE R AEER BEE
JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER HEHMBHRIE (E)
PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)
(b) Amounts due from/to joint operations/other partners (b) FEUR HEEET SEEFHMBYCHE
of joint operations (Continued) (18)
(i) Amounts due to joint operations/other partners of (i) BNEEER/SEEHAMBHINIE !

joint operations:

2018 2017
—E—-\&F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FE%
Trade and other balances B 5 N EHMEEER
Trade balance =87k =3 621 -
Other balances Hitiser 3,606 2,698
Non-trade balances IEE S iEER 54,056 110,853
58,283 113,551
The trade balance due to a joint operation/other EN—RaE R S8 HEMB N E
partner of a joint operation which has a credit SIS EEEIA0H, MIRNIREHAKRLLE
period of 90 days is aged more than 90 days and TSHERAEE R ABIB90HERI80H A,
within 180 days based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period.
Other balances and non-trade balances due from/to FEWG FENERE NT) AL/ S8EK B8
associates/joint ventures/joint operations/other partners EREHMBA  EMEer N IEE 5 S A mIg i,
of joint operations are unsecured, interest-free and BENBRERER, HEK—EaEPEIE
repayable on demand except for non-trade balance B Z 558874350005 7T (CEBE—tF &) RETEFE
due from a joint venture of HK$7,435,000 (2017 nil) HKewzt BB —ERNEZERR o

which is interest bearing at a fixed rate of 6% per annum

and is repayable within one year.
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26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES OF A
SHAREHOLDER

26. FEUR,/J — R BRER I B X B FRIE

(i)  Amounts due from subsidiaries of a shareholder () BR—%ERECHELSNIE
2018 2017
—E—-\&F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT TET

Trade and other balances 85 Mk EMiEeR

Trade balances B 5158k 328 307
Other balance HAth#5ER 17,67 24,5492
17,495 24,849

The trade balances due from subsidiaries of a
shareholder have a credit period of 90 days on aver,

age

are aged over 180 days based on the invoice date at

the end of the reporting period. The balances are past

due but not impaired. The directors of the Company

consider that there has not been a significant change

in credit quality of the subsidiaries of a shareholder

and there is no recent hisfory of default. Therefore, the

amounts are considered recoverable.

(i) Amount due to a subsidiary of a shareholder

Trcide Oﬁd ofher bOlOﬂCQ

Other balance

B 5 RHEME

HAAEER

Bl —aREZNBLREZE G FIEEHR
#90H, MIWEHR, UREAMAERECIRIE
BI80H, EERABEEMERRBE. ARNAESRS
FZRERRIMNBLARCEEERTESREWL, B

ITHANE BN RACHER, BUES A% E AR B T W [El,

(i) FEN—RET BB NRRUE
2018 2017
—E—-\&F S5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
4,710 647

Other balances due from/to subsidiaries of a

shareholder are unsecured, interest-free and repoyﬂb|e

on demﬂnd.
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27

28.

. OTHER LOANS RECEIVABLE

The other loans receivable are unsecured, interest beoring

at floating rates at the best lending rate in Hong Kong plus
6% per annum and are repayable within one year except for
an amount of HK$7,000,000 as at 31 March 2017 which
was interest bearing at a fixed rate of 8% per annum. The
balances are advanced to independent third parties.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM BANK
DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
with maturity within one year from the end of the reporting
period and are therefore classified as current assets.

The pledged bank deposits and short term bank deposits
with maturity date of less than three months carry prevailing
market rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.65% (2017: 0.01%

to 2.40%) per annum. The bank balances carry prevailing
market rates ranging from 0% to 0.5% (2017: 0% to 0.5%)

per annum.

The Group's pledged bank deposits, short term bank
deposifs and bank balances and cash that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

27.

28.

Ht R E =R

HMEWER T A IR, REERESHENF
Béw FEF X ENRBANR—FRNER, ER_H
—tEF=HB=+—H—%%%47000,000ETZ
FUEZE E T EKewsT BRI EERIEABRRTE
TE=H

BERRITER. EPRRITERRBITREGRRS

EERPIRTEIIEAEEAER T AREHRES
—FRIPZRTREMARTERZEFN, #D
BARBEE,

BEEBRTERTNR DR =B 2 B2 RERIT T
A E 2 FH0.01%292.65% (ZF— L5 | 0.01%=
2.40%) 2 RITHHEF R, WITHEERN S ESHO%E
05% (CE—HF  0%E05%) < IRITHIHHE,

AEBUERERERREER N BB R E
Z BHIRIRITEN. BRRITHERIRITHEER IR
HIUWT :

2018 2017

—E-\F “E—tF

HK$ 000 HK$'000

FET FET

MOP el 3,435 2,397

RMB AR 601 1,969

United States dollars ("USD") it (MEt)) 3,612 18
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29. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED 29. B 5 N E {thFE(S FRIE R FEFT B 52
EXPENSES
2018 2017
—EF-\&F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
i E S EN IS
Trade creditors =0 AN/ O] 590,687 563,857
Retention held by the Group expecfed to be settled: AEERFEFEEAN 5 EHRE
B RE S
Cith — B = B
within fw'e|ve m?nfhs from the end of the WERAREFNEAW 672,030 550,533
reporting period
_ — A = EP=K:
after fw§|ve mo.nfhs from the end of the HEHREFE A % 164,545 973,038
reporting period
836,575 823,77
Advance receipts from customers FEEL ZFEWIIE 114,637 128,996
Other creditors and accrued expenses HME IS ESTR S 504,199 499,136
2,046,098 1,945,760
The average credit period on trade creditors is 90 days. The B ENTIBCFIEERAOH, A£ERES
Group has financial risk management policies in place to AEREIENE, BERTEENNESEEERE
ensure that all payables are within the credit time frame. Mo
The aged analysis of trade creditors presented based on the REIEHR, URBEAPRAEES R EFENLTR
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BRI
2018 2017
—E-N\E Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Within 90 days 90H W 499,772 546,624
More than 90 days and within 180 days BiEo0HE180H 2,046 2,291
More than 180 days BaiEs0H 88,869 14,949
590,687 563,857
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29

30.

31

. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED

EXPENSES (Continued)

The Group's trade and other creditors that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

29. B 5 N EthFE(I IR R FEFT RSz ()

FEBELEREEBEIEEELNCEE HEBL
B 5 NEMEIRIEFRSMNT

2018 2017

—E—-\&F TE—H4F

HK$ 000 HK$'000

FET FET

MOP pdanlizt 3,906 7,201
DEPOSITS RECEIVED .BYET&

On 28 June 2017, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into sale and purchase agreements in respect of the disposal
of its 51.76% interests in PYE, an indirect subsidiary of

the Company, to Precious Year Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of ITC Properties Group Limited ("ITCP"), a listed
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 199), and Tycoon Bliss Limited, a company
wholly owned by Mr Chan Fut Yan, the deputy chairman
and executive director of PYE and also the managing
director and executive director of ITCP, for a total
consideration of HK$300,000,000 (the "Disposal”).

As at 31 March 2018, deposits of HK$179,000,000
(2017: nil) were received pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreements. The Disposal was approved by the Company's
independent shareholders at a special general meeting held
on 8 May 2018, in which the completion of the disposal is
conditional upon the fulfilment of certain conditions as set
out in the circular of the Company dated 28 March 2018.

LOAN FROM A SUBSIDIARY OF A SHAREHOLDER

The loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder is unsecured,
interest beoring ata ﬂooﬁng rate at the best |ending rate
in Hong Kong plus 2% per annum and is repayable on
demand.
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RTE—tHFSNAZTNH, AREWEBREE L
BEaE, WAR M Precious Year Limited (1B 4EH#Y
EEEERLNE (EFtE)) , ALHRE, ER
MTABEAZ P BT (AR 1199) v 2B M BN ED)
KNeTycoon Bliss Limited ((REEZ B FFE N HITES
REFMEESREKELNTE=SRHRLELE
WA CNE) HEA RS cEEH B B RERZE
S1.76% 8%, #214E#4300,000,000%E T (MHES
Hlo

ATE—/\F-A=-+—H, BREBEEEHENE
#179,000,0008 70 (ZF—LF  #) , HEZE
ERZE—/N\FABNHETZRERRAS LB
RNBVBI R E, HESBARSE TIHREE

g A ST, FIBEHRARNBERBEAZS—/\F
=B+ \HZBX,

- KRRz —HEME R BER

e AEER, HEER
TR, WARER

—BREZ BB
BENEFINFER2% FEFE
RHEE,

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 32, SR1TREMAEMR
2018 2017
—EF-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE5 i
Bank borrowings RITER 3,828,554 3,648,354
Other borrowing HiES 315,000 300,000
4,143,554 3,948,354
Bank and other borrowings WIT N HAMES
Secured BIER 3,998,554 3,908,354
Unsecured A 145,000 40,000
4,143,554 3,948,354
The bank and other borrowings are repayable as follows: BRIT R E A fE R BRI T
2018 2017
—E-\&F =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
On demand or within one year HBHMEEN —FNEH 4,116,054 888,070
More than one year, but not exceeding two years 88—, B B8 M F 10,000 463,418
More than two years, but not exceeding five years BEmE, BABBAE 17,500 2,596,866
4,143,554 3,948,354
Less: Amount due within one year shown under B —FERBIER S E R B
current liabilities BB oIE (4116,054) (888,070)
Amount due after one year shown under —FB BT EIERE
non-current liabilities BEHIE 27,500 3,060,284
At 31 March 2018, carrying amount of bank borrowings that /\\:f NE=B=+—H, WEARENKRKE
contain a repayment on demand clause and are repayable EBIERNEBEENIEZ BT = kﬂﬂ E]j/\ ==
within one year based on scheduled repayment dates of NE= EE@{@%764 130 OOO/t—éTE (CE—+HF:
the loan agreements amounting to HK$764,130,000 578,070,000 70) Z $R1 7182 \iéﬁjm@]g\fgo
(2017: HK$578,070,000) have been classified as current
liabilities.
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32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Group's bank borrowings carry interests at floating rates
ranging from the banks’ cost of funds plus 2.10% to Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR") plus 3.50% (2017:
banks' cost of funds plus 1.75% to HIBOR plus 3.50%), with
effective interest rate ranging from 2.81% to 4.86% (2017:
2.36% to 4.77%) per annum. The Group's other borrowings
carry interest at fixed rates of 18% to 25% per annum (2017
25%).

As at 31 March 2018, the secured bank and other
borrowings and the bonking facilities gronfed to the Group
are secured by the Group's certain hotel under deve|opmenf,
property, plant and equipment/deposits paid for acquisition
of property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments situated in Macau, inventories and bank deposits
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$6,219,849,000
(2017: HK$7,718,317,000), HK$159,348,000 (2017:
HK$158,135,000), HK$1,490,901,000 (2017:
HK$1,594,917,000), HK$30,604,000 (2017
HK$30,445,000) and HK$17,020,000 (2017:
HK$16,247,000), respectively, and charges over the
Group's benefits from certain construction contracts and the

Group's interests over certain subsidiaries.

Certain bank and other borrowings of the Group are
subject to covenant clauses, whereby the subsidiaries are
required to meet certain stipulated financial ratios. As at 31
March 2018 and up to the date of the approval of these
consolidated financial statements, certain loan covenants of
the Group's bank borrowing of approximately HK$3,042
million outstanding as at 31 March 2018, which require the
opening of the Group's hotel in Macau to be no later than
31 March 2017 and all authorisations for the operation of
hotel business to be obtained. The Group has previously
successfully applied to extend this date to 31 July 2017, and
has applied for a further extension of the opening date

to 31 December 2017, 31 March 2018, 30 April 2018, 30
June 2018 and 31 July 2018, respectively but the Group

has not received any written confirmation from the bank
that the extension request has been successful. As such, an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$2,586 million,
which had original contractual repayment dates beyond

31 March 2019, is reclassified as a current liability as at the
end of the reporting period. Other than disclosed above, the
subsidiaries has fulfilled these financial ratios and did not
break any bank covenants. The Group will closely monitor its
financial position to ensure the compliance with the relevant
financial covenants and undertaking requirements at the
end of the reporting period.

32, IRTT R H MR (1)

AEBILZIHFRFTEZBITEN, EFBF)EH
IRTE & A NN210%ZE R E BIRTR iR BHX
(MFEARITRIZERENIZE)) FhN350% (ZB—E4 !
FIZIETT E S M A NN 75% 2 R E BIRTE =R A
ZK%BMSO%%#_,,\Wﬁﬁwii«¥2m%iﬂa@%ﬁ,
— L F I 236%E4T77%) o AL EMENILE
Eiﬂxw?wmﬂwﬁﬁu:%—tizﬁwo

ATE-N\FZA=+—H, BRFERTEREME
ﬁ&ﬁ%l#&%tﬁﬁﬁ ST AL BEmEE
75 456,219,849,0007E5 ¢ (—F—14 © 7,718,317,000
A7) . 159,348,0008 70 (= —14F 158,135,000
EIT) . 1,490,901,0008 77 (ZE—+H4F ¢
1,594,917,000/57T) . 30,604,000 7 (—&F—+4F !
30,445,00075 71,) M17,020,0005 75 (—E—+H 4 .
mmnm%%ﬂi%¥%%$@f Mz, B
=l WEEYZE. ML REL EIE] . AR
WZ%ﬁimﬂfﬁﬂ FENBITEHU N AE
BEETERENESE AR NAEERETHER
B 2 TR (E IR 3,

REEETRITREMERT ZEERFTRS,
Bit, WBARBRAEE TREVKLER RZIE
—\E=ZB =+ —HBREERETHREENES
H, "EER _E—/N\E=ZF=+—HHEKREER
1T1ERNHKI3,042,000,000/8 71,2 & TEREEEZ K
AEBRFBEN _S—tE-A=-+—HeBE
RESKEBEER CITEHItE, REBILFIER
WEREERE _E—tFEA=+—H, WEERH
BEERRE—SIEgRE S —tF+_H=+—
 _BFE-N\E=B=+—H. ZF—/\FENUA
=+H. Z &S "\FEAA=1THEK_EF—/\FtAH
—+—H, AMAEEERKEIRRITEL ZE@
FEBBEERBNT. Bit, REHEFART
E—/\FIE =+ HENEEE1Y2,586,000,0007E 7T
ERREHERENDEARBEOE, R LEXPTIRE
259, WEBLABEREZEMKLE, AUHER
AARITERN, AEBSEYERETFINT,
RN HHIRE P AE R B 22 M B GE 2 FR o
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(i) Convertible bonds issued on 5 February 2013 (the

33, ATHRPR(ES
() RZBE—=F_RAaARTeaEREsx (=

“February 2013 Convertible Bonds")

The Company issued 1,202,000,000 February

2013 Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rate at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.68 each (subject to
antidilutive adjustments) on 5 February 2013 for a total
proceed of HK$1,202,000,000 (the principal amount).
The maturity date is the twelfth anniversary of the date
of issue of the February 2013 Convertible Bonds (the
"Maturity Date”). The February 2013 Convertible Bonds
entitle the holders to convert them into ordinary shares
of the Company at any time commencing on the date
of issue of the February 2013 Convertible Bonds and

up to the close of business on a day no later than seven
days prior to the Maturity Date (both days inclusive). If
the convertible bonds have not been converted, they will
be redeemed on the Maturity Date at the face value of
February 2013 Convertible Bonds. The Company, from
the fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the February
2013 Convertible Bonds, may redeem the convertible
bonds in whole or in part, at principal and interest of 5%
per annum accrued for the remaining period from early
redemption date to the maturity date. The proceeds of
the February 2013 Convertible Bonds were allocated
into two components, debt and equity elements on initial
recognition. The fair value of the equity component

is HK$1,029,614,000 and the fair value of the debt
component which is determined using the effective
interest rate of the debt component at approximately

18.1% per annum is HK$172,386,000.

At 31 March 2017, the conversion price of the February
2013 Convertible Bonds was HK$6.55 per share. With
effect from 12 February 2018, the conversion price was
adjusted to HK$65.50 per share as a result of the Share
Consolidation (as defined in note 35). Upon completion
of the Rights Issue on 20 March 2018 (as defined in
note 35), the conversion price was further adjusted to

HK$13.18 per share.

Details of adjustments to the conversion price as a result
of the Share Consolidation and the Rights Issue are set
out in announcement dated 19 March 2018.

On initial recognition, the transaction costs

incurred for the issuance of the convertible bonds
totalling HK$60,395,000 were allocated into

the debt component and the equity component of
HK$8,662,000 and HK$51,733,000, respectively, in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
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—=F T Aa#RES)

RNBIR _EBE—=F" BARBRJPTIERE.68
Bro (e EH R #ETEE) 25171,202,000,000
RELE"E-—F " BrBiRES, FrEHE
#E4E41,202,000,0008 70 (A54E) , FHIE A
TE-—E ArBRESRTHPE AT
BEZH (REBEEH) ., _S—=F_Ho[#HRE
EEFHFEAIR _E—=F_H o/ ESE
THEBELERRSHA R tEE2H (2
EEEMO) EXFEER BB ANERSG &
AR NE) 2 B Mol RES RIESR,

BRBBER _E— = _ A BRESECE

EERD, B-S—=F B 0HRESRTAE
BRBFRE, ANEEEEEEE =R
LR T BRI A SRR M A K5y w RETF) BB

B2 e E D el ERES, _E—=F_Fo/k
I E 2 2 FR B s IBE R ) HEsR B 0 Bl E M (B AR

I D-BEMRAI D BRI DZ N TFES

1,029,614,00078 7T, MEHID /A FETHEZE
TSER D BIRERN|ZKN8I%EE, 172,386,000
%FEO

RIE—LEF=-B=+—H, Z&8—=F"H7H
TR ELSCIRRBATRSSET. HIVETR
et (EEREMES), B -_S—/\E_F+=
Hi, B ERAEEER65508 1. IN_E—/\
FZAZ+HTAMEE (&R0 %, B

BE—FABREER318E T,

HR M &R HRNERECHE ZFE, SN
BERAZE—/\FE=B+NBHZLMHN.

R HEERRs, AT RRESELE X ZH

B 5T 460,395000/8 7T, HIEGPTENIEEEE
DELLE DR D EEE S ER D MRAE S, Bla
7l %58,662,0007 7t N251,733,00075 7o
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33. AIIRRR1E % (18)
(i) RZIBE—=FE+"_A+ BT HRES

33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
(i) Convertible bonds issued on 16 December 2013 (the

"December 2013 Convertible Bonds")

The Company issued 299,942,350 December 2013
Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rate at an

initial conversion price of HK$8.23 each (subject to
anti-dilutive adjustments) on 16 December 2013 for

a total proceed of HK$299,942,350 (the principal
amount). The maturity date is on 5 February 2025. The
December 2013 Convertible Bonds entitle the holders
to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time commencing on the date of issue of the
December 2013 Convertible Bonds and up to the close
of business on a day no later than seven days prior to 5
February 2025 (both days inclusive). If the December
2013 Convertible Bonds have not been converted,

they will be redeemed on 5 February 2025 at the face
value of the December 2013 Convertible Bonds. The
Company, from 5 February 2018, may redeem the
December 2013 Convertible Bonds in whole or in part,
at principal and interest of 5% per annum accrued for
the remaining period from eor|y redempﬁon date to 5
February 2025. The proceeds of the December 2013
Convertible Bonds were allocated into two components,
debt and equity elements on initial recognition. The
equity element is presented in equity heading convertible
bonds reserve. The December 2013 Convertible Bonds
have been valued as at 16 December 2013 on the basis
carried out at that date by Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group. The fair value of the equity component
is HK$252,551,000 and the fair value of the debt
component which is determined using the effective
interest rate of the debt component at cpproximofdy
18.5% per annum is HK$47,391,000.

At 31 March 2017, the conversion price of the December
2013 Convertible Bonds was HK$8.23 per share. With
effect from 12 February 2018, the conversion price was
adjusted to HK$82.30 per share as a result of the Share
Consolidation (as defined in note 35). Upon completion
of the Rights Issue on 20 March 2018 (as defined in
note 35), the conversion price was further adjusted to
HK$16.56 per share.

Details of adjustments to the conversion price as a result
of the Share Consolidation and the Rights Issue are set
out in announcement dated 19 March 2018.

On initial recognition, the transaction costs

incurred for the issuance of the convertible bonds
totalling HK$12,408,000 were allocated into the
debt component and the equity component of
HK$1,960,000 and HK$10,448,000, respectively, in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
(iii) Convertible bonds issued on 8 January 2015 (the

33, AJ ARG B S5 (18)
(i) RZFB—HFE—B/N\BRETIHERES ((ZF

“January 2015 Convertible Bonds")

The Company issued 755,300,000 January 2015
Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rate at an

initial conversion price of HK$3.00 each (subject to
anti-dilutive adjustments) on 8 January 2015 for a

total proceed of HK$755,300,000 (the principal
amount). The maturity date is on 5 February 2025.
The January 2015 Convertible Bonds entitle the holders
to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time commencing on the date of issue of the
January 2015 Convertible Bonds and up to the close

of business on a day no later than seven days prior to
5 February 2025 (both days inclusive). If the January
2015 Convertible Bonds have not been converted,

they will be redeemed on 5 February 2025 at the face
value of the January 2015 Convertible Bonds. The
Company, from 5 February 2018, may redeem the
January 2015 Convertible Bonds in whole or in part,

at principal and interest of 5% per annum accrued for
the remaining period from eor|y redempﬁon date to

5 February 2025. The proceeds of the January 2015
Convertible Bonds were allocated into two components,
debt and equity elements on initial recognition. The
equity element is presented in equity heading convertible
bonds reserve. The January 2015 Convertible Bonds
have been valued as at 8 January 2015 on the basis
carried out at that date by Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group. The fair value of the equity component
is HK$629,747,000 and the fair value of the debt
component which is determined using the effective
interest rate of the debt component at cpproximcﬁe|y
19.9% per annum is HK$125,553,000.

At 31 March 2017, the conversion price of the January
2015 Convertible Bonds was HK$3.00 per share. With
effect from 12 February 2018, the conversion price
was adjusted to HK$30.00 per share as a result of
the Share Consolidation (as defined in note 35). Upon
completion of the Rights Issue on 20 March 2018 (as
defined in note 35), the conversion price was further
adjusted to HK$6.03 per share.

Details of adjustments to the conversion price as a result
of the Share Consolidation and the Rights Issue are set
out in announcement dated 19 March 2018.

On initial recognition, the transaction costs

incurred for the issuance of the convertible bonds
totalling HK$27,915,000 were allocated into the

debt component and the equity component of
HK$4,640,000 and HK$23,275,000, respectively, in

proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

33. _Hﬁﬁ’“ﬁ# (€)

The movements of the debt component of the February HE_F—tF-"FB=-+—HEE—/\F=43
2013 Convertible Bonds, the December 2013 Convertible =—+— B thﬁﬁ TE-—H_A0mikEs. =
Bonds and the January 2015 Convertible Bonds for the —=F+"AH —Hﬁ‘ﬂxfi#& E—FHE—F o
years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 are set out BECERE D 2 BEE N .
below:
February 2013 December 2013 January 2015
Convertible Convertible Convertible
Bonds Bonds Bonds Total
“E—= = CEF-AF
AR +tAUEKR —BoSk
&% &5 Bz 185t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET TET
At 1 April 2016 RIS— FHE—H 267,622 66,987 151,226 485,835
Effective interest expense for the bz < 3
PERF &
year capitalised in the hotel under ?X;Jﬁ%;;gﬁii%iiz 48,354 12,369 30,149 90,872
deve|opmenf
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tHF=A=1+—H 315,976 79,356 181,375 576,707
Effective interest expense for the year FREBRNEMES 57,092 14,652 36,160 107,904
At 31 March 2018 N\ ZF—-/\FE=A=1+—H 373,068 94,008 917,535 684,611
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION 34, RERIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) RAEAEERNTFECHSETEBRLREESE (B
recognised and movements thereon during the current and E) LU EBRE ST
prior years:
Accelerated tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
MBINRITE HIBEE HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET
At 1 April 2016 RIZE—RNEME—H 12,788 (12,788) .
(Credit) charge to profit or loss PEx GTA) % (1,221) 1,291 -
At 31 March 2017 \ZE—tF=RA=1—H 1,567 (1,567) -
(Credit) charge to profit or loss REBR GTA) kR (2,821) 2,821 -
At 31 March 2018 R_E-N\F=ZA=1+—H 8,746 (8,746) -

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, the above deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$1,137,573,000 (2017: HK$786,320,000) available
for offsetting against future taxable profits. A deferred

tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses of
HK$53,007,000 (2017: HK$70,105,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
tax losses of HK$1,084,566,000 (2017: HK$716,215,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has deductible temporary
difference of HK$257,263,000 (2017: HK$256,329,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation

to such temporary difference as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised.

In addition, there are no undistributed earnings of the PRC
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

PRSI ENRZAIMmE, ERRIERIEEE
MaEe Tk,

RIE—N\F=ZB=1+—H, AEEEXPERE
[85181,137,573,0008 71 (S — 1 F 786,320,000
B7T) Tﬁﬁu?ﬁﬁﬂikﬂ%ﬂmﬂo gt R ESIE
53,007,00078 7t (—F—L£4 1 70,1050007870) &
SRR IEE &, EElﬁAi?E ETETE R A2 F] 2R,
A 2 5t T BR AR TE B 181,084,566,0005 7T, (—F—1
& 1 716,215,000/ 70) HEFS A RN IBE E, K5 FE
MIEEIE ] T IR ARG &5,

ATE—N\FZE=+—H, A&EEE257,263000
BT (CE—1LF | 956,329,00087T) o] 1R E =
o N T AT AERR AT HEINRERE
BRI A, I ERZE IR E R 48T
ARIERIEEE,

R R lﬁﬁ% NBZ R D EET
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35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. IR A&
Number of ordinary shares
Elelti= Amount
atHK$200 ot HK$20.00 at HK$0.20 Gt
Notes per share per share per share HK$'000
M BReooET BRe000ET  BR020ET TER
Authorised: AEE
At1April 2016 and 31 March 2017 R 25— FHE—HLE 9,500,000,000 - 5,000,000
“E—tH=fA=1—H
Share consolidation et (@) (2500,000,000) 250,000,000 -
Sub-division of every share of ERBHER000ET (a) - (250,000,000) 25,000,000,000 -
HK$20.00 each to HK$0.20 each  #7il A& /0202 T
At 31 March 2018 A ZE-NEZA=+—H - - 95,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITMEE .
AT April 2016 and 31 March 2017 R - E— N EME—HK 990,867,010 1,841,734
“$tE=p={-B

Share consolidation RiafH (a) (920,867,010) 92,086,701 -
Capital reduction BB A (a) - (92,086,701) 92,086,701 (1,823,317)
Issue of rights issue shares BTG (b) - 990,867,010 184,174
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=R=1+—H - 1,012,953,711 202,591
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes:

(a) Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 9 February

2018, the Company undertook a capital reorganisation
(the "Capital Reorganisation”) which comprised:

(i) a share consolidation on the basis of every fen
existing shares of HK$2.00 each in the issued and
unissued share capital of the Company into one
consolidated share of HK$20.00 in the issued and
unissued share capital of the Company (the “Share
Consolidation”);

(i) o capital reduction involving reduction of the issued
share capital of the Company through cancelling
the paid-up capital to the extent of HK$19.80,
resulting in the reduction in the nominal value of
each issued share from HK$20.00 to HK$0.20,
and crediting an amount of approximately
HK$1,823,317,000 to the contributed surplus
account of the Company; and

(iii) a share subdivision that every authorised but
unissued share of HK$20.00 each was subdivided
into HK$0.20 each.

The Capital Reorganisation took effect on 12 February
2018.

On 20 March 2018, the Company issued 920,867,010

rights issue shares at a subscription price of HK$1.10
per rights issue share on the basis of ten rights issue
shares for every one share held (the "Rights Issue”).
The proceeds from the Rights Issue will be used for
the pre-opening expenses of THE 13 Hotel and general
working capital. These rights issue shares were issued
under an ordinary resolution passed in the special
general meeting of the Company held on 9 February
2018. Details of the completion of the Rights Issue are
set out in an announcement of the Company dated 19

March 2018.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company during

the year ranked pari passu with the then existing shares of

the Company in all respects.

35. BRA (48)
PREE -

(@ BBER-_FE—/\F_BNBBBZFAIRES,

FRBBETRAEME (RAEHE), EF
&

() BARBERITRAFTRADSORSK
H{E2008THIRERNEHA/ELE D
T RARFTRAPR SR EE20.00757THY
BHRMETRNEH (RMDEH) ;

(i) BN HIBA RN EEETRAZ AT,
FEEEEBRATEREZRTEHERN
19.8078 7T, BESREETEHKRMCEE
1 F120.0078 TR E0.2078 7T, IS8
1,823,317,00078 7050 A AN B BB ERER AT 5
M

(i) SR EE20.008 7T 2 /AE BRETEHR
RS R E E0.20E T ET R M il

RAEBHNR_FT—N\EFE_B+-HER

b) RZB—N\F=B-+H, ARAREHE—K

R 17 1 8% + BB B o EE LIGR BB B SRR it

% B& 17311078 70 3817920,867, 010 (A% B 173 (T
1) o HERFTERIES BT+ —SBEZHER
Y N—REBEER, ZEHEREBOEREARD
BN -E—/\E_ANHRTCRERIATE
B TR RBERMET. BRATAHRZEFE,

EREANTIHEAE-N\E_ATABEZA
o

RRBNERNBTZAAENEBERES SEEAR
BER B RN ZERFHMAL
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(a) Share option schemes of the Company
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme

36. FERRHEET &I
(o) ANFEIBRRIESTE]
() —SEHAFEERETE

On 7 September 2005, the Company adopted

a share option scheme (the "2005 Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentive or
reward to any employees, executives or officers,
directors of the Group or any invested entity and
any consultant, adviser or agent of any member

of the Group or any invested entity, who have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any invested entity (the
“Eligible Person”). The Scheme will remain in force

for a period of ten years from that date.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company
may at their discretion grant options to any Eligible
Person to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Consideration to be paid on each grant of option

is HK$1.00. The directors of the Company may at
their discretion determine the specific exercise period
which should expire in any event no later than ten
years from date of adoption of the Scheme. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company and will be at least the higher of: (i) the
subscription price as is permissible under Listing
Rules from time to time; and (ii) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company.

All the then outstanding share options granted
under the 2005 Share Option Scheme continue
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
terms of the 2005 Share Option Scheme.
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RATERERAFNALH, AREHEWN—1EE
REsta (CESLFBERIESTED) , YA
W GHAEE N ERARERBIFLER
ZAEBHEAREREZERNRE. TH
AETSRBE. EFNERAREMBLA
EBREFNERFHERRERIE 2B/,
FAHAE ((BER AL BHERIR
Blo 5TEI5i% B2 B BIEEERT B 1+

RiEstE, ARAESINBERTHNGER
ANETHEHBRE SHHENRINZERES
X N.00BTTZ B, ARNBEEERIKIEE
EfEEme BRITEYE, HETEEBER T
FERET 8RN H BT 5. 1TREBRE
REERLUTIESEMERE  EVR0)R
B EHRATE LT 2R E ; MiALNF)
B0z BB

BE - EFLFBREFEIREMNERH
RITEZFEBRESEEE ML AIRE —
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 36. BRRTEETE (1)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) ZNFIEERRESTE (18)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () Z=EERFBERESD B
Details of movements in the share options of the BHE_ S N\GF=—B=+—HIEFEAXRLT
Company granted under the 2005 Share Option BB ST A EERET R H CERIES
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2018 are B
as follows:
Closing
Number of shares of the Company to be price of the
issued upon exercise of the share options Compcny's
Name of grantee ESIN = REREETFRANTRETRNEE shares
Qutstanding Granted Adjusted Lapsed  Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Date at during during during of price  before date Exercise
of grant 142017 the year the year the year 3139018 per share of grant period
. i
- —RNE TEBUR
mE-8 ZR=t+- SR BHALT
FHEH HRTE  EARH FACEE FAKYM BEXTE IFEE RHkHE 18
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Directors B2
Stephen Hung (resigned on 72k E5 (RZE—/1 127.2013 3,600,000 - - (3600,000) - 6.80 645 Note|
25 January 2018) E-AZ+RE#D “5-=& fiyzh
tA+ZH
Peter Lee Coker Jr. Peter Lee Coker Jr. 12.7.013 3,600,000 - - (3,600,000) - 6.80 6.45 Notel
3-=F fizh
tA+ZH
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 3sR 1279013 3,600,000 - - (3,600,000) - 680 645 Note |
“ECF Hizh
tA+ZH
Walter Craig Power Walter Craig Power ~ 12.7.2013 3,600,000 - - (3,600,000) - 6.80 6.45 Notel
ey Kz
tA+TZH
Jomes Chiy ek 12.7.9013 360,000 - - (360,000) - 680 645 Nofe
-5 izt
tA+-H
Lee Chack Fan Fen 1272013 360,000 - - (360,000) - 6.80 6.45 Note
~F-2F iz
tE+CH
lain Ferguson Bruce HET 1279013 360,000 - - (360,000) - 6.80 645 Notel
E-E Mz
tA+-AH
Francis Goutenmacher Francis Goutenmacher  12.7.2013 360,000 - - (360,000) - 6.80 6.45 Note 1
- 3 Pz
tA+ZH
Sub-total NGt 15,840,000 - - (15840,000)
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BE_FS—/\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

36. BERIESTEI ()

(o) AREEAREFTE (18)
() —EFhEBEREFS (18

Details of movements in the share options of the BHE_ S N\GF=—B=+—HIEFEAXRLT
Company granted under the 2005 Share Option BB ST A EERET R H CERIES
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2018 are Ellva==d ¢l NG
as follows: (Continued)
Closing
Number of shares of the Company to be price of the
issued upon exercise of the share opﬂons Company's
Name of grantee EENEL REREETERANTRBTRNEE shares
Qutstanding Granfed Adjusted Lapsed  Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Date of during during during at price  before date Exercise
of gront 142017 the year the year the year 313.2018 per share of grant period
S
-t -\ REEHE
mE—H =A=1+- Bk HEALE
FEBEH BATE  ERRL EREEE EREN BEXTE T8 RHUHE [
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Employees (Inaggregate) 88 (851) 12.7.9013 3,600,000 - - (3,600,000) 680 645 Note |
2-r liEd
tA+IH
1272013 400,000 - - (400,000) 680 645 Note 2
—5-=F ()
tA+ZH
1272013 900,000 - - (900,000) 680 645 Note 3
—F-=k Bizt3
tA+ZH
1272013 1,010,000 - - (1,010,000) 680 645 Note 4
B =2t
tATZH
1272013 150,000 - - (1150,000) 680 645 Note 5
e B}
“E-CF Hizts
tATZH
1272013 460,000 - - (460,000) 6.80 645 Note 6
s )
- fizte
tBA+ZH
1272013 138,000 - - (138,000) 6.80 645 127201410
5 =& 117.9017
tE+ZHE Z5-mE
tA+ZEE
“E—tF
tA+-H
50.9.2013 688,000 - - (688,000) 690 689 Note 7
R e
NE=TH
1510.9013 289,000 - - (289,000) 810 793 Note 8
=F-=% iz
+A+1H
18.7.2014 299,000 - - (299,000) 6.80 598 Note 9
=30+ Fizt
tA+NE
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of movements in the share options of the %Z EE
Company granted under the 2005 Share Option $E}E§i £=
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2018 are E o FEWNT

as follows: (Continued)

N Ea i s

36. BERIESTEI ()

(o) RREIERESE (F8)

() —FSEnFERERETE (B
—N\F=ZRB=+—HLEFEARRT
hFRRES IR L CBERES

Closing
Number of shares of the Company to be price of the
issued upon exercise of the share opﬂons Company's
Name of grantee REREETERANTRBTRNEE shares
Qutstanding Granfed Adjusted Lapsed Exercise  immediately
Date of during during during price  before date Exercise
of grant 142017 the year the year the year per share of grant period
R
“E-tE FERILA
MA—H 8k HEALT
jetl=Fi AT FRRL FALEE  FARN TRE RHUHE T
HK$ HKS
AT AT
1642015 401,000 - - (401,000) 6.80 287 Note 10
~#-nk E
mE+75H
Sub-total 9,265,000 - - (9,2¢5,000)
Other Participants 1272013 150,000 - - (1150,000) 680 645 Note 3
—&m__— -
(In aggregate) —F=F Hizts
tA+ZH
1272013 450,000 - - (450,000) 680 645 Note 4
—=-=F Wita
tATZH
1272013 260,000 - - (260,000) 680 645 Note 11
—%F-=k iz
thA+tZH
2632014 112,000 - (85188)  (26819) 3589 897 Nofe 12
=R (Note 3) (Note 3) sk
e () ()
Sub-total 1,972,000 - (85188)  (1,886,812)
Total 97,077,000 - (85188)  (26,991,812)
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ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Details of movements in the share options of the
Company granted under the 2005 Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2017 are

as FO”OWS:

36. BERIESTEI ()

D=t

— T S

(o) AREEAREFTE (18)
T ERERESE (8)

BHE_B—tHE=B=1T—HLFEARHT

BBE_EE
B

hFRRES IR L CBERES

Closing
Number of shares of the Company to be price of the
issued upon exercise of the share options Compcny's
Name of grantee ERNES RERBETHERANIRETRNEE shares
Qutstanding Granted Lapsed  Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Dafe of during during of price  before date Exercise
of gront 149016 the year theyear 3139017 pershare of grant period
2 R
“2-4 —R-tR EEELE
mA-8 =R=1- BR HEALT
B8 HATE ERELE  ERXY BERGE TRB RHOUHE 78
HK$ HKS
BT o
Directors S
Stephen Hung KB 1279013 3,600,000 3,600,000 6.80 645 Note
_3-=f Mt
tE+ZH
Peter Lee Coker Jr. Pefer Lee Coker Jr. 1272013 5,600,000 3,600,000 6.80 645 Note 1
: ]
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom AsR 3,600,000 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
(6]
Walter Craig Power Walter Croig Power 12.7.9013 3,600,000 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note |
—2c=f izt
tA+IH
James Chiu BES 1279013 360,000 360,000 680 645 Notel
—3-=% i)
tA+IH
Lee Chack Fan =85 12.7.2013 360,000 360,000 6.80 645 Note
E-CF Hizh
tB+ZH
lain Ferguson Bruce it =N 1279013 360,000 360,000 6.80 645 Note 1
2-=F i
tB+ZH
Francis Goutenmacher Francis Goutenmacher 1279013 360,000 360,000 6.80 645 Notel
2K HiEh
tAt"H
Subtotal ihat 15,840,000 15,840,000
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Details of movements in the share options of the
Company granted under the 2005 Share Option

Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2017 are
as follows: (Continued)

Name of grantee EEANES
Date
of grant

RHBH

&8 (83) 179013
Z5--F
tE+2H
179013

.
tE+2H
1272013

~3-zf
tE+oH
1272013

Z—-F
tE+-H
1272013

3-cf
tA+ZAH
1272013

tB+IH
1272013

St
tA+IH

Employees (In aggregate)

3099013
—2-F
NA=+H
1510.2013

“F-=F
+A+58

36. BERIESTEI ()

(o) AREEAREFTE (18)

TE—tF=ZR=1+T—HLFEAXRT

() —ESEHFERERESTS (8
BE
124
g osEEWT L (18
Number of shares of the Company fo be
issued upon exercise of the share options
REREETREALTHE T RNYE
Qutstanding Granted Lapsed  Outstanding Exercise
at during during at price
142016 the year theyear 3132017 pershare
—EA “EtE
mA-g =Rt SR
HATE  EREE ERERY BERGE TBE
HK$
T
2L
3,600,000 3,600,000 6.80
400,000 400,000 6.80
900,000 900,000 6.80
1,160,000 (150,000) 1,010,000 6.80
1,150,000 1,150,000 6.80
460,000 460,000 6.80
138,000 138,000 6.80
688,000 688,000 690
289,000 289,000 810

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Closing
price of the
Company's

shares
immediately
before date
of grant

SRR

HRIALT

LG E]
HKS
AT
6.45

6.45

6.45

6.45

6.45

6.45

6.45

6.89

725

gfﬂiﬁiﬁ%@%%ﬁﬁZ%%@%

Exercise

period

I

Note |
fizh

Note 2
Hizto

Note 3
e

Note 4
izt

Note 5
ists

Note 6
Hizts

1279014 o
1179017
it
tA+IRE
B e
tA+—H
Note 7

G

Note 8
Histe
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BE_FS—/\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of movements in the share options of the

36. FERRESTEI (F8)

() —%%

— T S

(a) RNEEERRMESTE (18)
AERERRESTE (18

HE_B—tE=P=+—HIEEALT

Company granted under the 2005 Share Option R ST EERE R CERIESR
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2017 are BosrBaT L (fE)
as follows: (Continued)
Closing
Number of shares of the Company to be price of the
issued upon exercise of the share options Company’s
Name of grantee ERANES REREETHEARALNTBRTRNEE shares
Qutstanding Granted Lapsed  Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Dafe of during during of price before date Exercise
of grant 142016 the year theyear 3139017 pershare of grant period
i ®
—E —F-tf S
mE—A ZAEt- SR EHALT
RiHAE HRIE  ERRE ERKN BEXTE e RAuHE b3
HKS HKS
B BT
18.7.2014 929,000 999,000 6.80 598 Note 9
o fito
tA+NE
16.42015 401,000 401,000 6.80 287 Note 10
—5-F T
-% %i ftzt0
mE+E
Sub-total NGt 9,415,000 (150,000) 9,265,000
Other Parficipants (In aggregate) Hit2HE (A3 1272013 150,000 150,000 680 645 Note 3
—F-cE WEts
tB+ZH
1272013 450,000 450,000 6.80 645 Note 4
—¥-=x 5]
tB+-H
1272013 260,000 260,000 6.80 645 Nofe
2K i)
tB+-H
2859014 112,000 112,000 8592 897 Note 12
“Z- i B fitzhg
=A~+/\H
Sub-total NGt 1,972,000 1,972,000
Total 5t 97,997,000 (150,000) 27,077,000
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes:

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as

to one-third on 12 July 2013, as to a further
one-third upon topping out of the hotel under
development on the Cotai Strip of Macau and
as to the final one-third upon opening of the
hotel under development on the Cotai Strip of
Macau. The share options are exercisable from
the dates on which the share options are vested
until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as

to one-third on 12 Ju|y 2014, as to a further
one-third on 12 July 2015 and as to the final
one-third on 12 July 2016. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 8 tranches, as to
10%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 10%, 10%, 15% and 10% on
31 May 2013, 31 August 2013, 30 September
2013, 1 April 2014, 30 September 2014, 31
January 2016, 31 March 2016 and 31 December
2016, respectively, subject to the fulfilment of
certain vesting conditions. The share options

are exercisable for 18 months from the dates on
which certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but
in any event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both

dates inclusive).

. The share options shall vest in 7 tranches, as

to 15%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 15% and 10% on 31
August 2013, 1 April 2014, 31 December 2014,
31 March 2015, 31 January 2016, 31 March 2016
and 31 December 2016, respectively, subject

to fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The
share options are exercisable for 18 months from
the dates on which certain vesting conditions are
fulfilled, but in any event, exercisable until 11 July

2017 (both dates inclusive).
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36. BERIESTEI ()

(@) AR

MEE -

\EIfE RS (1)
() —EFhEBEREFS (18
BRES=HEBE =0— Z%Hﬂ%ﬁ(\:

1.

E—=-—FtRAT_HRE ZN=90—x
BERER QF%E%L%‘%@EPZ/EﬁiTIEEﬁiﬁ
B, RR=r—<ERENREMBKER
RRBERBRERE. BREBEREE
mEsHEE"S—tFtHA+—HEE
(ZEERMX) Al F17E,

ERE)=MEE, —n—zBRER_
E-MOFELHA+-HBE, 4 =790— Z
BRER_S-—LhFtAT_BRE, =
B=0— Z%Hy$§7§§:%§—/\fﬁtﬁ+f
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—tHF A+ —HBE (GEEEMRX)
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EENsE A e F1TfeE, MEERNAEIR
E—tEELA+—HzH (BEEEMX)
A F1T71F,
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—=fF \A=+—H. ZEF—MUEMA
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

5.

The share options shall vest in 4 tranches, as to
25%, 25%, 25% and 25% on 31 August 2013,

1 April 2014, 31 August 2014 and 31 January
2016, respectively, subject to fulfilment of
certain vesting conditions. The share options
are exercisable for 18 months from the dates on
which certain vesting conditions are fu|Fi||eo|, but
in any event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both
dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches,

as to 30%, 30% and 40% on 31 May 2013,

31 December 2014 and 31 March 2016,
respectively, subject to fulfilment of certain
vesting conditions. The share options are
exercisable for 18 months from the dates on
which certain vesting conditions are Fu|Fi||ed, but
in any event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both

dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to
one-third on 30 September 2014, as to a further
one-third on 30 September 2015 and as to the
final one-third on 30 September 2016. The
share options are exercisable from the aforesaid
vesting dates until 29 September 2017 (both

dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to
one-third on 15 October 2014, as to a further
one-third on 15 October 2015 and as to the final
one-third on 15 October 2016. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates

until 14 October 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as

to one-third on 18 July 2015, as to a further
one-third on 18 July 2016 and as to the final
one-third on 18 July 2017. The share options are
exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates

until 17 July 2018 (both dates inclusive).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

10. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as

to one-third on 16 April 2016, as to a further
one-third on 16 April 2017 and as to the final
one-third on 16 April 2018. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 15 April 2019 (both dates inclusive).

. The share options shall vest in 2 tranches,

as to 75% and 25% on 15 January 2014 and

31 December 2015, respectively, subject to
fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The
share options are exercisable for 18 months from
the dates on which certain vesting conditions are

fulfilled, but in any events, exercisable until 11
July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as

to one-third on 28 March 2015, as to a further
one-third on 28 March 2016 and as to the final
one-third on 28 March 2017. The share options

are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 27 March 2018 (both dates inclusive).

. Adjusted as a result of the Capital

Reorganisation and Rights Issue of the
Company which took place during the year
ended 31 March 2018.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 36. FERRIESTEI (1)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (a) =R 1 E%H”’*E 58 (&)
(ii) 2015 Share Option Scheme (i) —S—AFEERETE

On 11 August 2015 (the "Adoption Date”), the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
2015 Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentive or reward to the Eligible Person.
The 2015 Share Option Scheme will remain in force
for a period of ten years from the Adoption Date.

Under the 2015 Share Option Scheme, the directors
of the Company may at their discretion grant
options to any Eligible Person to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Consideration to be paid on each
grant of option is HK$1.00. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company and
will be at least the higher of: (i) the subscription price
as is permissible under Listing Rules from time to
time; and (i) the nominal value of the shares of the

Company.

Any options granted pursuant to the 2015 Share
Option Scheme will be exercised over a period
of not more than 10 years from the date of grant
of the relevant options (subject to the provisions
for early termination contained in the 2015 Share
Option Scheme).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(ii) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

36. BERARESTEI (18)
(a) AR Tﬁﬁﬂ“@u‘l‘%ﬂ (18
(i) ZE—AFEBIREE (@)

The maximum number of shares that may initially
be issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2015 Share Option Scheme

and any other share option scheme(s) adopted

by the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at its Adoption Date, i.e. 92,086,701
shares of the Company. Subject to the approval

of the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting, the limit may be refreshed to 10% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as
at the date of 0pprovo| by the shareholders of the
Company in gener<:1| meeting. Nofwifhs’randing the
forgoing, the maximum number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2015 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue from time to
time. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at
the Company's special general meeting held on 8
May 2018, the 10% scheme limit was refreshed to
101,295,371, representing 10% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company as at the date of such

meeting.

The maximum number of shares of the Company

in respect of which options may be granted to

each Eligible Person under the 2015 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company (including both exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares

of the Company in issue from time to time unless
such grant has been duly approved by shareholders
of the Company in general meeting at which the
Eligible Person and his associate (as defined in

the Listing Rules) abstained from voting. Options
granted to a substantial shareholder and/or an
independent non-executive director of the Company
or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) in any 12-month period in excess
of 0.1% of the total number of the Company in issue
and have an aggregate value exceeding HK$5
million must be approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting in advance.
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e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 36. FERRIEETE (18)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) ZNFIEERRESTE (18)
(ii) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) ZE—AFERETE (8B)

Details of movements in the share options of the HE_E—\GFE=B=+—HIEEXLT

Company granted under the 2015 Share Option BB _E— L FERETIRE CERES

Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2018 are B

as FO”OWSZ

Closing

Number of shares of the Company to be price of the

issued upon exercise of the share options Compqny's

Name of grantee ERNEL REREETFEALIRFT RAAE shares

Qutstonding Granted Adjusted  Redlassified Lopsed  Outstanding Brercise  immediately
Dote at during during during during at price  before date Exercise
of grant 149017 the year the year the year theyear 3132018 pershare of grant period

R R’ SR

“EtE :?—;’\E B &g

LE-H R =t- [ S VNG|
RERSE  HAOE  FARE FAEEE BFI0E EAKN Bﬁnt\m T BHWHE  TEE

HKS HKS$

BT BT

Directors and their spouses BELHER
Stephen Hung (resigned on 189.2015 9,207,500 - (8,286,750) (920,750) - 30.00 298 Nofe
25 January 2018) “Z-hE (Nofe 3) (Note 3) firzh
NE+NE (I3£3) (z53)

Peter Lee Coker Jr. Peter Lee Coker Jr. 18.9.2015 9,207,500 - (7003,204) 9,204,976 12531 298 Nofel
-1k (Note 4) (Note 4) ]
NA+NE (Fista) (zE4)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom ABR 18.9.2015 9,207,500 - (7003,204) 2904976 12531 298 Note
Z2-1E (Note 4) (Note 4) LR
pR=RAN=! (H54) (F324)

Walter Craig Power Walter Craig Power 18.9.2015 9,207,500 - (7003,204) 2,204,276 12531 298 Nofe
“E-1F (Note 4) (Note 4) Mz
NETNR (izt4) (Tizt4)

James Chiu it S 18.9.2015 816,000 - (620,650) - 195,350 12531 298 Note|
“5-1% (Note 4) (Note 4) R
NE+NE (IfEa) (&4)

Lee Chack Fan a5 18.9.2015 816,000 - (620,650) 195,350 12531 298 Note
“5-1 (Note 4) (Note 4) ]
NE+NE (MiEE4) (GED)

lain Ferguson Bruce Vit 18.9.2015 816,000 - (620,650) 195,350 12531 298 Note |
“Z-hE (Note 4) (Note 4) fitzh
NBTNR (fzt4) (F524)

Francis Goutenmacher Francis Goutenmacher 18.9.015 816,000 - (620,650) 195,350 12531 298 Nofe
“Z-fE& (Note 4) (Note 4) i)
NATNE (Fista) GED)

Chon Kok Chung, Johnny RER 1699015 816,000 - (620,650) 195,350 12531 298 Note|
-1k (Note 4) (Note 4) )
NA+NE GED) (z4)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of movements in the share options of the %Z

36. BERYREST B (18)
(o) AN EIRER ST (18)
(i) —F— £¢E§E“$E.:+§'J (#8)
E—N\F=A=FT—HILLFEEEXRH

Company granted under the 2015 Share Option $E]%%—% AFEBRE R E CERES
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2018 are HZEEBWN L (B
as follows:(Continued)
Closing
Number of shares of the Company to be price of the
issued upon exercise of the share options Compqny's
Name of grantee EBAEL REREETRAANERET RN shares
Qutstonding Granted Adjusted  Redlassified Lopsed Outstanding Brercise  immediately
Dote of during during during during of price  before date Exercise
of grant 149017 the year the year the year theyear 3132018 pershare of grant period
R R’ SRR
“EtE :?—;’\E B &gl
m5-B £ - sk ®
RERSE  HRO0E  FARL FAEEE BEF0E EAKH Eﬁﬁﬂ T BWHE  TEE
HKS HKS$
AT En
Deborah Alejandra Valdez Perez  Deborah Alejondra Valdez — 15.3.2016 180,000 (162,000) (18,000) 30.00 208 Note|
(spouse of Stephen Hung) Perez IRk (Note 3) (Note 3) Mz
(RXEER) =A+1H (&) (E53)
Suboal gt £,090,000 (056167 (8000)  (920750) 7589578
(Note 3)
(W)
Employees (In aggregate) B8 (R3f) 169.9015 19,200,000 (19,627,478) (NoteS)  3,065977 12531 298 Note|
1% (Notes 3&4) (fEs) (Note 4) Hzh
METNB (I5E3Ne4) (5k4)
15.3.2016 875,000 - - (875,000) - 300 208 Note |
2R Hizh
—ftHH
89.9016 2,100,000 (760,600) (1100,000) 939,400 13124 316 Note 2
ER Jf (Note 4) (Note 4) Kzt
REN (fi5E4) (GEZ)
Sub-total NGt 92,175,000 (13,386,078) (Note 6) 3,304,677
(Notes 3 & 4) (Hi5e)
(HEE3R4)
Other parficipants (In AftiBE% (A3) 1892015 1,290,000 (981,174) 308,606 12531 298 Note
aggregate) _E-1E (Note 4) (Note 4) i)
NBTNB (fzt4) (F324)
153.2016 25,092 18,000 43,092 12,531 208 Note 1
-Sv:d (Note 4) (Note 4) iG]
SRl (GED) (GED)
Sub-otal NGt 1290,000 (956,082) 18,000 351918
Total 5 64,555,000 - (4690583%) (Note?) ~ 1,246175
(Notes 3 & 4) (fz)
(I3 T4)
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ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 36. BERARESTEI (18)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) AT BBRRFEETEI (1B)
(ii) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) —S—AFERETE (8)
Details of movements in the share options of the BE_E—tF=_H=t—HIFFEEXRNT
Company granted under the 2015 Share Option $E}F7§§—££EE§HQ&2§%§U BHERES
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2017 are E o FEWNT
as follows:

Number of shares of the Company to be Closing
issued upon exercise of the share options zrice of fh‘e
i = ok ompany’s
Name of grantee EE N\ ﬁ/\\%&$¥§§ﬁ@§$@a Fs)huryes
HETZRNEE
Exercise  immediately
Date Outstanding Granted  Outstanding orice  before date Erercise
of grant of during of per share of grant period
142016 the year 31.3.2017
N S REED
TERE “E—tF =EEE]
MA—H =A=+— EN/NSIlS)
BEHA®  HRTE  ERRE BEATR SRITRE B T
HKS HK$
BT BT
Directors and their spouses & E N E B
Stephen Hung Ak 1892015 9,207,500 - 9,207,500 3.00 2.98 Note 1
“E-0EF b=
NA+/\H
Peter Lee Coker Jr. Peter Lee Coker Jr. 18.9.2015 9,207,500 - 9,207,500 3.00 298 Note 1
“T-8F b4
SLE+NH
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom A5R 18.9.2015 9,207,500 - 9,207,500 3.00 298 Note 1
“T-hF =2l
NA+N\H
Walter Craig Power Walter Craig Power 18.9.2015 9,207,500 - 9,207,500 3.00 298 Note 1
—hE {2l
NB+NH
James Chiu ks 18.9.2015 816,000 - 816,000 3.00 2.28 Note |
—hE MEh
NA+NH
Lee Chack Fan Fl25 18.9.2015 816,000 - 816,000 3.00 2.8 Note 1
—hHE MEh
NA+N\H
lain Ferguson Bruce mELT 18.9.2015 816,000 - 816,000 3.00 298 Note 1
—hfF FEh
LB+N\H
Francis Goutenmacher Francis 18.9.2015 816,000 - 816,000 3.00 2.98 Note 1
Goutenmacher ~—Z—H1E M5
LB+N\H
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Details of movements in the share options of the
Company granted under the 2015 Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2017 are

as follows: (Continued)

36. BERIESTEI ()
(o) AREEAREFTE (18)

(i) —F—hFERE

#BE

Eopprdeed =1

sHE (@)

TE—tF=ZR=1+T—HLFEAXRT
@%‘%ff hFRRES IR L CBERES

(#8)

Number of shares of the Company to be Closing
issued upon exercise of the share options price of fh‘e
Nome 01( grcmfee %ﬁ/\i&[% Eﬁ/ﬂ%ﬁﬁ*g;ég%f@%%éKﬁﬂ Comr::::/e:
BT BNEE
Exercise  immediately
Date Outstanding Granted  Outstanding orice  before date Erercise
of grant of during of per share of grant period
1.4.2016 the year 31.3.2017
ﬁA S BEEEL
B “E—tF =ECE]
™ H - E =B=+— KRERGD
FHEH HATE  FREL BEHXTE SRITEE W E 1715 A
HKS HK$
BT BT
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny BES 18.9.2015 816,000 - 816,000 3.00 2.28 Note |
—RF FiEh
AA+AH
Deborah Alejandra Deborah Alejandra 15.3.2016 180,000 - 180,000 3.00 2.08 Note 1
Valdez Perez Valdez Perez “ERE (=
(spouse of Stephen Hung) CHxEE®B =A+hH
Sub-total INEt 41,090,000 - 41,090,000
Employees (In aggregate) B8 (§5t1) 18.9.2015 19,200,000 - 19,200,000 3.00 2.98 Note 1
“E—RF §iEh
NA+N\H
15.3.2016 875,000 - 875,000 3.00 2.08 Note 1
TE-RE i3]
=A+hH
18.9.2016 - 2,100,000 2,100,000 3142 316 Note 2
TEB—RF e
NENH
Sub-total NEt 20,075,000 2,100,000 92,175,000
Other participants Hitha s 18.9.2015 1,290,000 - 1,290,000 3.00 2.98 Note 1
(In aggregate) (&5 TE-RE BEh
NA+N\H
Sub-total NEt 1,290,000 - 1,290,000
Total st 62,455,000 2,100,000 64,555,000
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Notes:

1.

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to
one-third on 18 September 2016, as to a further
one-third on 18 September 2017 and as to the
final one-third on 18 September 2018. The
share options are exercisable from the aforesaid
vesting dates until 17 September 2019 (both
dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 frcmches, as to
one third on 8 September 2017, as to a further
one-third on 8 September 2018 and as to the
final one-third on 8 September 2019. The share
options are exercisable from the aforesaid
vesting dates until 7 September 2020 (both
dates inclusive).

Adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February

2018.

Adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February
2018 and the completion of the Rights Issue on
20 March 2018.

Comprising (a) 2,694,500 share options, (b)
52,650 share options (adjusted as a result of
the Capital Reorganisation which took effect

on 12 February 2018) and (c) 760,095 share
options (adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February
2018 and the completion of the Rights Issue on
20 March 2018).

Comprising (a) 4,669,500 share options, (b)
52,650 share options (adjusted as a result of
the Capital Reorganisation which took effect

on 12 February 2018) and (c) 760,095 share
options (adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February
2018 and the completion of the Rights Issue on
20 March 2018).

Comprising (a) 4,669,500 share options, (b)
973,400 share options (adjusted as a result of
the Capital Reorganisation which took effect

on 12 February 2018) and (c) 760,095 share
options (adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February
2018 and the completion of the Rights Issue on
20 March 2018).
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36. BERIESTEI ()
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—hEREREFE (18)

MEE -
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 36. FERRIESTEI (1)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (@) AR 1 E%H”’*E 3 (18
(ii) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) ZE—AFERETE (8B)
No options are granted, exercised or cancelled %YK F—/\F=A=T—HILFE, B
under the share option scheme of 2015 Share BRI IEERIESTE S — S — A FERE
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March STEER B, (TSR,
2018.
During the year ended 31 March 2017, 2,100,000 HE_E—tF-"F=+— E| EFE,
share options were granted to employees 2,100, OOOT\E%HX$E ERIZE—RFNLANA
on 8 September 2016. The fair value of the RFRE. RIXH BEHN BRI -5 BT ER
options determined at the date of grant using REEBEREINEEZBERENFE 42066000
the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model was BT
HK$2,066,000.
The fair value was calculated using the NWETHF ER D R-aF AT e BRI 5
Black-Scholes Option Pricing model. The inputs into B, HE @ ABEL T
the model were as follows:
8 September 2016
“EK
HBNH
Closing share price as at the date of grant REHBEBRWHE HK$%‘]470
3140570
Exercise price 1T1HE ?]Eiiﬁ:%
4 years
i BHRCEH
Expected life FEHAF HA 44E
Expected volatility TEHA IR iziz:
0.53%
ick- i |
Risk-free rate R R A == 0.53%
- 4 o Nil
Expected dividend yield TEARRR B3R .

The Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model has been

used to estimate the fair value of the options. The

B - EATREBRI ARG EREZL
FE. BLGHEBRENTECEENRENRE
EREMGSL. BERRREBHISEERRE
NFESE,

variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. Changes in variables and
assumptions may result in changes in the fair value
of the options.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

36. BERIESTEI ()
(@) AR Tﬁﬁﬂ’“?fg stE ()

(ii) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
An amount of HK$2,173,000 (2017:
HK$18,116,000) of share based payment expenses
has been recognised during the year ended 31
March 2018 with corresponding decrease (2017:
increase) in share option reserve. Included in the
amount of HK$2,173,000 (2017: HK$18,116,000)
of share-based payment expenses, an amount
of HK$6,435,000 (2017: HK$2,429,000) of
share-based payment expenses was recognised
as reversal of expense (2017: expense) in profit or
loss and an amount of HK$4,262,000 (2017:
HK$15,687,000) was capitalised in hotel under
development for their contributions to the hotel

project.

(b) Share option scheme of Falloncroft Investments

Limited ("Falloncroft”)

On 5 February 2013, the Company completed its
acquisition of the entire equity interest in Falloncroft
from an independent third party for a cash consideration
of HK$2,000,000,000 (the "Acquisition”) in which
Falloncroft becomes a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Upon the completion of the Acquisition,
Falloncroft adopted a share option scheme and granted
options that would, for a subscription and capital
contribution, in cash, of up to HK$600,000,000,
entitle Chief Wise Limited ("Chief Wise"), an affiliate

of Mr Stephen Hung (former joint chairman and the
executive director of the Company), to subscribe for
600,000,000 shares of Falloncroft. Chief Wise may
assign these options to the management of Falloncroft

as it sees fit.

The scheme was structured such that the option holders
on exercise, will always have to pay the same pro

rata amount (up to the lesser of 10% of the equity
capital (including shareholders’ loan) of Falloncroft or
HK$600,000,000) for the shares of Falloncroft as
the Company pays for its interest in Falloncroft. Holders
of the options subscribing for Falloncroft Shares, on
exercise of the options, have the right to require the
Company to purchase their respective holdings of the
shares of Falloncroft in exchange for an allotment

and issue of new ordinary shares of the Company,
determined based on a Formu|ar, with details set out in
a circular of the Company dated 5 January 2013.
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(i) =% £¢E§E“$ED+2'J (€)
HETS—/\E-F=-t+—HIEEECHR
LM&%%%E%ZH&F%EE%%&Q, 73,0008 7T
(:%ftfﬁ 118,116,000 7T) , AAFERD (Z

—t&E 18N S ABRERR. URMA
Hhiﬁﬂﬁﬁfimnooo%m (ZB—t%F:
18,116,00078 7t) 2+, ##6,43500072 7T (Z
= — £ 1 2,429,000787T) zuﬁxf’ﬁ?%ﬁﬁ**
ZIHEEZERBRERABEER (T
—LT&F ), MAH4,262,000E 7T L%ﬁ
—14F 115,687,000870) & LIRR D AEER Z
MRS EHEEEER AL EBTERE
R IR E AR,

(b) Falloncroft investments Limited ([Falloncroftl) 2 B&

R #EET 2
RIE—="F"FHH, ARBEZEME—%
Y = H W BEFalloncroft2 B3R 12, IR UE
732,000,000,0008 7t (MWHE=1E)) , #it,
Falloncroftil AR /N Elw £ B E LN Eo MNTEA U
21812, Falloncroftiiih 7 BERRHEET & I T8
fetE, FRLIREEE R HE &%600,000,000
BT B T Chief Wise Limited (I Chief Wise |, #</3
Bl BMEEE RN TES KB LE BB
7)) FR#B600,000,0008% FalloncroftB&17) 2 1 F
Chief Wise PI 1R E 584 1 2 IS 2 SR R EISE T
Falloncroftz 12 &,

SHEIE FHER, UGEBRIERE ARTHEREN
B EMEE, AL EILE R FalloncroftZ #E T
FIE, %A (EBR 2 Falloncroftz 10% 8 A
(TFEREER) $600,000,00078 70 BIEE) o
PITA B A A IE 1 T B BF ER EE FalloncroftiR 17 2 BE A%
BREANBRERARN T%Eﬁ%kﬁ)ﬁﬁz
Falloncroft 17, LAAS#BEC 88 N 8817 AN BT &
B, BREGTERIFEHNR AR TE,HHZ%*E——
F—HAHZBH,
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 36. BERRREETE (8)

(b) Share option scheme of Falloncroft Investments (b) Falloncroft investments Limited (IFalloncroftl) 2 B8
Limited (‘Falloncroft”) (Continued) BREETE (18)
HES—/\EN_EF—tHE=HF=+—HIF

No options were granted, exercised or cancelled under

the share option scheme of Falloncroft during the years

ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

The said share options of Falloncroft lapsed during
the year ended 31 March 2018 and the share option
expenses previously recognised in non-controlling
interests were transferred to accumulated losses upon

expiry.

EM AR IR Falloncroft S8 AR AR T B3 . 17H a5t
BT R AR A

DL FFalloncroft B EEREE S —/\E=4
=+ —HIEFELRY, MR IEERERER
2 BB S BN B HA R s s = HE TS IR,

37. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND SHARE FINANCING 37. R REEEIRR DR B

PLAN

(a) Share award scheme

(o) BRIDEZENSTE

On 6 September 2006, share award scheme was
adopted by the Company. The share award scheme
allows the Company to make bonus payments to
eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) by way
of the Company's shares acquired by and held through
an independent trustee until fulfilment of specified
conditions before vesting.

None of the eligible persons of the Group were awarded
any of the Company's shares under the share award
scheme during the year ended 31 March 2017,

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 1,088,550
shares (as adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February 2018)
were awarded to advisers of the Company. The total
fair value of 1,088,550 vested shares of the Company
granted to the advisors was calculated at the market
closing price on the date of grant. Upon vesting and
transfer to the owordees, the related costs of the vested
shares of HK$33,692,000 are credited to shares held
for share award scheme, and the related fair value of
the vested shares of HK$11,089,000 are debited to

SI’IGFG OWOI’d reserve.

RZ|EARNFNANE, RRE RN ERET
gl RNERFEBRFALTRNGEBAL (Z
BAEEZES. ES. B, SEHARMAEN
A RB R BIFETUREEAL, HERMDF B —
LEUZSEABARFTEEEEENRBIEMFE
Ak Lo

RBEZF—tFE=A=1+—HLFERN, H#HE
AEESERATREBERNDERG EIER T A

RERM.

REE_E—/N\F=ZA=+—HIEEFER, B
A4/ B BE 575 1,088,550 0% B 10 82 Bh (KR —
E-N\F_A+-BETZRAEREMIE)
BT EERT & 11,088,550 8 AN B R E AR 1)
NEEEBBEHACWTER. REBENX
HEETERBAR AR, BBRMOZAARMA
33,692,000/ 70 B T A LD B2 BN ET 235 2 B
M, TER 8RR« 18RI TF1E1,089,00078 7T
E R RD £ B R A0 BRo
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37. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND SHARE FINANCING

PLAN (Continued)

(b) Share financing plan
On 6 September 2006, share financing plan was
adopted by the Company. The share financing plan
allows eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) to borrow
funds from the Company or from a company within the
Group to acquire new or old shares of the Company on
a non-recourse basis with the subject shares pledged to
the Company as security subject always to connected
transaction and other relevant provisions under the
Listing Rules.

None of the eligible persons of the Group acquired any
of the Company's shares under the share financing plan
during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes the bank and other borrowings and
convertible bonds disclosed in notes 32 and 33, respectively,
net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As a part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue
of new debts or the redempﬁon of existing debits.

37.

38.

B3 B EH B R AR 3 B 5B (48D

(b) RINREESTE

RIFBSRENANRE, AREHRMNROBEST
g, RNBMEFBIBFERAL (SEAEE
EE. EF. B, FAARNEN) AEXRE
WAEERN—BREENUEERBEERELR
RELZHAERD, MLERMAERTFARET
fERERE, MERNS EHRAIE N ERRES
5 R BAB AR REME S M TE

RBE_E—N\FEh_E—tF=A=+—HIt
FERN, HEAERSERATREROBES
BB E TR AN TR,

BREBREE

AEEEERELR, UERAERETEEF AR
BigE, WEBEILERMERSGRARETRER
REFR. RMBEFE, NERERBRRMER T2,

AEECEXERARER FE, SEDHINWE
39233 BB R SR1T IR HAM G TN pI R AR R 25 (FOBRIR
EREREEHEERE) RAREES AELERE (B
SEEBITRARER o
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

39. EMIE
(o) EFTEER

2018 2017
—F-N\F “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET 57T
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables BRI EWFIE (BEIRE
(including cash and cash equivalents) KEIBSEEEE) 3,314,101 2148974
Financial liabilities sHEE
Amortised cost [mE-SiEin7Z 6,762,345 6,379,828

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
and other debfors, amounts due from associates,

joint ventures, joint operations/other partners of joint
operations and subsidiaries of a shareholder, other
loans receivable, pledged bank deposits, short term
bank deposifs, bank balances and cosh, trade and
other creditors, amounts due to a joint venture, joint
operations/other partners of joint operations and a
subsidiary of a shareholder, loan from a subsidiary of a
shoreho|o|er, bank and other borrowings and convertible
bonds. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risks (currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a
timely and effective manner.
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(b) REREEBRREE

FEETIEEMTIBIEE S NAMBITUR.
RIS NE). AEhE AEXER/EER
HBHR—aRECHBAENE. EMER
B BEMRTENR. ERRITER RITE
ghIES. B REMEMHE BY—HBcg
T YRR/ SEEHHMBHR—LKRE
Z—BENBRAENIEAE —aREZ—BNBEAF
B RITREMERL D BRRES. ZEEH
TEZHBERENERNE. tEFemMI BN
T ETEBRRIEDHAR (EERR LA KE
%) EERBNATES AR, BELEFER
ZHREFIN T, EEEEENERILEFRR
DURE (R B 5 7B U B e i & 2 FE o
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risks

(i) Currency risk

39. £ T E ()
(b) &R EREEIEEIRREER (18)

5 AR
() B

Several subsidiaries of the Company have trade
and other debfors, short term bank deposifs, bank
balances and cash and trade and other creditors
denominated in foreign currencies, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign

AREEENB AR EUNESEMZE
5N EMEWFRIA. BHRITER. RITHE
BNIREUNE S N EMEARUE, SRk
B A2 N AL R

AEERBEHAUNERBUCEREEN

currency denominated monetary assets and EageRmEwT
monetary liabilities as at the reporting date are as
follows:
2018 2017
—E\&F =t
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE TE7
Assets BHE
MOP P 3,544 2,521
RMB AR 37,335 37,355
usD ETT 3,612 18
Liabilities &\
MOP P 3,906 7,201

241

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

39. R TE (%)
(b) &R EREEBIRREER (18)

(Continued)
Market risks (Continued) HmiFE R (18)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () B (8)

RRRPIES B TR, HASETRAR
REARBERETZKBER, TRFMSR
BAAEEN A REREE AR T ES% (T
E—LF 1 5%) ZBURE, ATEEEASF
PIBRSNE L 3R 5 B 8 PR Az BURR R 235% (T
E—LF 5%, WHERBHOREEREZE
EERBHIE L 25 G, BREDTMEZE

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation

of the RMB against Hong Kong dollars as MOP
is pegged to Hong Kong dollars. The following
table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2017:
5%) increase and decrease in RMB against Hong
Kong dollars. 5% (2017: 5%) is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally

to key management personnel and represents
management'’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 5% (2017: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease
in post-tax loss for the year where RMB strengthen
5% (2017: 5%) against Hong Kong dollars. For a
5% (2017: 5%) weakening of RMB against Hong
Kong dollars, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax loss and the balances below
would be negative.

RMB AR

DNEBBARAGEECEBIRR, WRR
HHIRIES% (CF—CF 1 5%) EXEFEE
HEEHRE, UTEHXRTARKEREBE L
Ftow (CFB—LF [ 5%) MO AFEREZEE
WD MARERBETES (CTE— ti
5%) , RHMEBRSHFERMER ZTE,
R LU GBI IR B B2 1B .

2018 2017
ZE-N\F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
1,559 1,560

This is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding on trade and other debtors and bank
balances and cash denominated in RMB at the end
of the reporting period.
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39. £ T E (&)
(b) £FEAMREZEBZREEK ()

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risks (Continued) MmiZE R (18)
(i) Interest rate risk (i) 73K &

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate amount due from

a joint venture of HK$7,435,000 (2017: nil),
other borrowings of HK$315,000,000 (2017:
HK$300,000,000) and convertible bonds of
HK$684,611,000 (2017: HK$576,707,000) as
set out in notes 25, 32 and 33, respectively. The

LA EE25. 328233F7h, AEEDFIFLE
FEW —E & & (b FEFIE7,435,00075 7T LE
—t& D) . BEMER315000,0008 7T (—
Z— -+t 1 300,000,000 71) K o] R E %
684,611,000/ 77 (— = —14 1 576,707,000
Bro) AR N FENERR. RTE—tF
—B=+—H, AEERFEMEWRTIE

7,000,00078 75 A& S N FAEH] K E b,

Group was also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to other loans receivable of

HK$7,000,000 at 31 March 2017.

AEE I EMELRCE B E57032,159,0007%
T (CE—14 © 28,542,000 7T) . =i
HERTT1E50N7,020,0005 7T (ZE—LHE
16,247,000757T) « %2 8ARTT {7 71271,887,000
BT (CE—LF © 36,876,00057T) « RIT

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate other loans receivable
of HK$32,159,000 (2017: HK$28,542,000),
pledged bank deposits of HK$17,020,000 (2017
HK$16,247,000), short-term bank deposits of

HK$271,887,000 (2017: HK$36,876,000), $5ER19,103,0005 7, (— 5 —14F 1 23,637,000
bank balances of HK$19,103,000 (2017: B . —BREBEC—RBNBARZER
HK$23,637,000), loan from a subsidiary of 75,000,00075 71 (— & —+ £ © 32,000,000

a shareholder of HK$75,000,000 (2017: Bor) MIRITEN3,828,554,00075 7T, (— =
HK$32,000,000) and bank borrowings of —154F 1 3,648,354,00078 1) EZIRE A=
HK$3,828,554,000 (2017: HK$3,648,354,000). JE0

FEECRSR/NXEAREIEZRENEES
BENXR RTESRAREBRITRZEN
BEZKH,

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on fluctuation of the best lending rate

in Hong Kong, the banks’ cost of funds and HIBOR.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. @R T E (@)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) £RLE MR EIEBIZRBUER (18)
(Continued)
Market risks (Continued) M5 ER (&)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) /@ (18)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for
variable-rate other loans receivob|e, loan from

a subsidiary of a shareholder and variable-rate
bank borrowings. Certain bank borrowings in

which the related interest expense is capitalised

in the hotel under development is not included

in the interest rate sensitivity analysis below.

The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding af the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis points (2017: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease in interest rates for variable-rate other
loans receivable, loan from a subsidiary of a
shareholder and variable-rate bank borrowings

is used when reporting interest rate risk internally

to key management personnel and represents
management'’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. If interest rates had
been 50 basis points (2017: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March
2018 would increase/decrease by HK$9,735,000
(2017: increase/decrease by HK$2,428,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to
interest rates on its borrowings.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of prevailing market
interest rate on pledged bank deposits, short term
bank deposits and bank balances. The Group
considered interest rate fluctuation on these bank
deposits and balances is insignificant.

BURE D

TR EL 2 BURFE A Th AR I B R B
EF —REI—EWNBAS ZETUR
FEIRTENFAZ A RARMET.
A ERES EBTEETEEERACETIR
TEE R EE LT F RBURE D HT .
AT BRI EE R REESR T
BR2EMAREEMRE. ATESEAS
VEPIERH) = | b 3 2 R (E FISOE & 2L (T F
—L&E I 50EER) AHMEKTEEEN. —
LR E BB AT 2 BRI FERT
B FIRBING RDEE, HIhEIEEY
BlEE IR v SR KB B E L 2 5T, AF)
K EFFES0EER (TS —1H4F | soEE
), EFEEMBERIAB BT, &
EEHE_E—/\F=ZA=+—HIFEZ
MEEBESEI, B 9,7350005 T (T
—EF 80, 82,428,000 7T) o LT
AN AEEREEFASHRERITE.

AR EEMIBITER. RERTERRRT
R IRTTHIBAN X KE), AEETEER
AR ER. AEERATERBHESF
IRIT RS R 2 B Ko
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. R TE (18)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Credit risk
At the end of the reporting period, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from:

the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position; and

the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to
financial guarantee issued by the Group as disclosed
in note 42.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly
the recoverable amount of each individual debtor at

the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

As at 31 March 2018, other than those financial assets
whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum
exposure to credit risk, the Group's maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due fo failure to discharge an obligation by

the counterparties is arising from the deposits paid

for acquisition of property, plant and equipment as
disclosed in note 15(b).
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ECE—/\F=ZB=+—HLEE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

39. &R T E (18)
(b) &REAIGEIEBIEREEE ()

(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Due to the fact that there are only a few major property
developers in Hong Kong, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk in a few customers. In view
of their credit standings, good payment record in the
past and long term relationships with the Group, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is not material. At the end of the reporting
period, the outstanding balances from the five largest
customers, which have been included in trade debtors
and amounts due from joint ventures, amounted

to HK$626,424,000 (2017: HK$432,219,000)

in aggregate, of which the single largest customer

3%) of the total
trade debtors and trade balances of amounts due from

represents approximately 14% (2017: 1
joint ventures at the end of the reporting period.

In oddi’rion, the Group's other loans receivable as at

31 March 2018 amounting to HK$32,159,000 (2017:
HK$35,542,000) (see note 27 for details) expose the
Group to concentration of credit risk. The directors of the
Company continue to monitor and assess the financial
status of the counterparties, and they believe the
exposure to credit risk on these balances is not significant
as the counterparties are of good financial position.

With respect to credit risk arising from amounts due
from associates, joint ventures, joint operqﬂons/ofher
partners of joint operations and subsidiaries of a
shareholder, the Group's exposure to credit risk arising
from default of the counterparties is limited as the
counterparties have good reputation and a good history
of repayment and the Group does not expect to incur a
significant loss for uncollected amounts due from these
counterparties.

The credit risk on deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment is limited as the
counterparties have good reputation.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because these
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than the above, the Group has no other
significanf concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

39. £ T B (18)
(b) &RAEIGEIEBEREE ()

(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance its operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$3,014,106,000 (2017: HK$300,941,000), which
causes the Group in significant liquidity risk. Subsequent
to the end of reporting period, the Group has taken
appropriate measures as set out in note 1 to mitigate
such liquidity risk.

The following table details the Group's contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank and other borrowings with
repayable on demand clause are included in the
earliest fime band regardless of the possibility of banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates
for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based
on the agreed repayment dates. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are ﬂoo’ring rates, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the
reporting period.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

39. ERTE ()
(b) &Rt EREEEEIRREUR (18)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEEZEAR (18
Weighted  On demand Total Total
average or within 91 days - undiscounted carrying
interest rate 90 days Tyear  Overl year cash flow amount
mEK
e BEs  ht+—H REREE
THFE N ABUA E—F —ENt RSEE REERS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET TET TET
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=R
=+-g
Trade and other creditors B2 NEMENRIE - 1,466,994 164,596 164,545 1796135  1796,35
Amount due to a joint venture  [E{T—B & & (b E 58 - 59 - - 59 52
Amounts due to joint ENEEEE,/ 8%
operations/other partners BEMBHTRE - 58,283 - - 58,283 58,283
of joint operations
' /EE T — 1L —
Amount due to a subsidiary FEfT :;%\H}iﬁz & ) 4710 ) ) 4710 4710
of a shareholder () YNEIE =]
Loan from a subsidiary of —2REC—EE
+ 7.0% 75,432 - - 75,432 75,000
a shareholder NEEE b
Bank and other borrowings  $R1T I AL fER 59% 411,419 8,411 99,034 4,148,864 4143554
Convertible bonds Rk e 18.8% . - 09218542 2,218,542 684,611
5,716,890 173,007 2,412,121 8,302,018 6,762,345
Financial guarantee contract SRIERSH 13,500 - - 13,500 -
248
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39. RMTE ()
(b) £REREIEBZREE (18)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEEZER (18
Weighted  On demand Total Total
average or within 91 days - undiscounted carrying
interest rate 90 days Tyear  Overl year cash flow amount
mEK
E BN+ t— AERRE ERiatE]
TR = B BE-F —FMt RERE R
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
A—E—HES
At 31 March 2017 E_]:_JEICE—)%
Trade and other creditors B 5 NEMEN IS - 1,360,419 74,845 973,238 1,708,502 1,708,502
Amount due to a joint venture  JE{S—BEI & & (P EFNTE - 67 - - 67 67
Amounts due to joint
E (A A KK
op'erfu‘rions/o’rher partners % Q%Eigggz - 113,551 - - 113,551 113,551
of joint operations
' /EE T — 1L —
Amount due to a subsidiary of FEfT - ;%\H}iﬁz ] ) 647 ) ) 647 647
a shareholder (g~ YNEIEQ
Loan from a subsidiary of o — %5 7 — B E
N 7.0% 32,184 - - 32,184 32,000
shareholder NFfEE ’
Bank and other borrowings #8717 N7 HLHIEFN 6.0% 931,049 81,655 3376143 4,388,847 3948354
Convertible bonds SRR 18.8% - - 2918542 2218542 576707
2,437,917 156,500 5,867,923 8,462,340 6,379,828
Financial guarantee confract ~ £ ELEREE K - 18,000 - - 18,000 -

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer

credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

()

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank and other borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the “on demand or within
90 days” time band in the above maturity analysis. As
at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank and
other borrowings amounted to HK$764,130,000 and
HK$578,070,000 respectively. Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the directors do not believe
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The directors believe that such bank and other
borrowings will be repaid together with interest within
one year is based on the scheduled repayment dates of
the loan agreements amounted to HK$768,099,000
(2017: HK$579,399,000).

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
The fair values of the financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis have been determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on a
discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant
inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk
of counterparties.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their corresponding fair values.

(d) Financial asset and financial liability subject to

offsetting and enforceable contractual agreement
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a legally
enforceable right to set off the other loan receivable
at the amount of HK$7,000,000 and the trade
and retention payable to a related company of

this counterparty at the amount of opproxima’re|y
HK$11,000,000, irrespective of whether they were
offset in the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position. The amounts recognised for the other loan
receivable do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position
since the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is
only enforceable upon an event of default.

39. R T E (18)
(b) &RAEAIMGEIEBIZEREE (8)

REBESRAR (18
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TE—tHF-A=-+—H, Z5FBRTNEM
B RAIR A S 182899 7] 2764,130,00078 7T
N2578,070,00078 Lo 85 BAEL & Z iS5tk
%, EEMEE, BIOEARIETEENSER
KENFER, BEERA, LSBT NAEMENRE
FEF—FEIRBEENBE AT EANEN—F
P1EB D 4874768,099,00058 0 (ZE—+H4F :
579,399,000 7T) o
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o
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES AND OTHER 40. R IREFIETE & E Mt BB & 48 4 51 281

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of the schemes
are separately held in funds under the control of trustees.
The cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents contributions payable to the funds by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable
by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited
contributions. At the end of the reporting period, there were
no forfeited contributions which arose upon employees
leaving the schemes prior to their interests in the Group's
contributions becoming fully vested and which are available
to reduce the contributions payable by the Group in future
years.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee.

Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at the rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme. Under the
MPF Scheme, there will not be any forfeited contribution
available to reduce the contribution payable by the Group.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss represent
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at the rates
specified in the rules of the scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme for
eligible employee in Macau. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of an independent trustee. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES AND OTHER POST 40. B REHIET 8 R EH BB &5 52 (@)

41.

EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued)

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in retirement KREBE PR B A2 EHPREEMBITIERE

benefit schemes organised by the local government
authority in the PRC. They are required to make certain
monthly contributions based on the local standard basic
salaries. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

BRI ENE 8. WERREMTERLRFE
AXNETHR. AEERBRESTEELRE H
M, BIEETT Eﬁi&aﬂﬁ%ﬂifﬁo

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 4. BAREE
2018 2017
—E-\F “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not EEIHRERNIFEE M HBRE
provided in the consolidated financial AERERUL NEECE
statements in respect of PN
- hotel under development —FRIAEE 97,971 181,783
- acquisition of property, plant and equipment —BEEYZE. BN 110,626 187,226
208,597 369,009
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42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 42 HAEE

2018 2017
—E-\F F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET

Indemnities issued to financial institutions for bonds 7 — R B = /2 &) BEER
on construction contracts of an associate and ZLZ{/\%}]?E}XZT% A1) 44,738 49,837

joint operations BT eREECRERSE

43,

In addition, the Group has a corporate guarantee issued to
a bank for facilities granted to an associate. The extent of

such facilities utilised by the associate as at 31 March 2018
amounted to HK$13,500,000 (2017: HK$18,000,000).

No provision has been made in the consolidated financial
statements as it is not probable that an outflow of economic

benefits will be required.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises which fall due as follows:

43.

B, AEEH-BHEASERTHEDRTE
HABER R_E-NEZA=+—H, &5
& r13,500,00078 7T (Z & —+ 4 [ 18,000,00078 70)
[SYE = N=IE ==
AN KB BERE T, B ERS S
53R 7= P F B o

AR

TR A
RS, FEEETIRMETERAANLE
SR B B R R R B AR, LSRR
ZETHT

2018 2017

—E-N\EF Bt

HK$'000 HK$ooo

FET FAET

Within one year —FR 35,172 41,894

In the second to fifth year inclus F-ERDE 47,918 78,444
n e secon OoTl ear Inclusive , ,

Y (ERMESEERN)
83,090 120,338

Leases in respect of premises are negotiated, and monthly

rentals are fixed, for terms ranging from one to five years.

Leases in respect of plant and machinery are negotiated
based on individual contracts and the Group had no
significant commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases of these plant and

machinery.
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BE_E—/\F=ZA=T—HLEFE

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

44, BHE N TR 57 ISR

(a) The Group entered into the following significant (o) £, AEEHEEREATFTIIMNTERRS !
transactions with its related parties during the year:
2018 2017
Class of related party Nature of transaction —F-N\F E—tF
REE A 1R RHME HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Associates Construction works charged by the Group 4059
NS AEEWEERTIEE '
Joint ventures Construction works charged by the Group
e —— 100 707,365 667,462
aEhX FEEWERERTIES
Project management fees charged by the Group 199 m
AEEWRBEEEES
Interest charged by the Group 4
AEE B UEH] R

None of the related party transactions disclosed above
constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

(b) The remuneration of key management personnel during

the year was as follows:

BEM R LR B CREAN TR Z A ETHIRA
P& 2 RER 5 U BRIER 7o

b) FREBEEAESZFHMMUT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\EF Bt
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHER FE
Short-term employee benefits DHEAE 2@ A 41,245 36,294
Post-employment benefits RRFER 741 744
Share-based payment ISP ST g NEN 420 15,220
492,406 592,258

The remuneration of key management personnel is FTEEEASECFNTHRFMEZSEREER A

determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

Details of the balances with associates and joint ventures

at the end of the reporting period are set out in the

consolidated statement of financial position and in note 25.
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 45 RNBIZMHEARRE

COMPANY
2018 2017
—EF-\&F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSET JERMEEE
Investments in subsidiaries R ERBIRE 6,482,690 7,096,732
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Other debtors Hb I 133 153
Bank balances IRITHEER 687,217 7,437
687,350 7,590
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEafE
Other creditors and accrued expenses Hin eI I8 X FEFT RIS 7,932 3,584
Amounts due to subsidiaries LN EYNEIE = 865,800 680,530
Loan from a subsidiary —RENBREER 65,000 -
938,732 684,114
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES ik =N Rk (251,382) (676,524)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES B ER BB ARG 6,231,308 6,420,208
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY JEREBMEE
Convertible bonds A IR B 684,611 576,707
5,546,697 5,843,501
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B AR i
Share capital B A 202,591 1,841,734
Reserves (Note) e (HED) 5,344,106 4,001,767
TOTAL EQUITY TR 5,546,697 5,843,501
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 45. KRB Z BRI E ()
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: B EE
Movements of reserves of the Company during the current KNBRAEE R BFFEC FESSOT

and prior years are as follows:

Shares held for Capital ~ Retained profits
Contrbuted Convertble shareaward  Shoreoption  Share award redempfion  (accumulated
Share premium suplus— Special reserve bonds reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
RiaE EEne RRIEE BHEE RA%REE B4BDERE (R ) 5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TEn TEn TER TAL AL Thn TAT
At1 April 2016 RZE-AENB-A 2,280,474 35,497 (150,000) 1794972 (52,366) 75428 8316 255 4)08 3,996,684
Loss ond fofol hensi o ﬁ,
pueneiot ORI FEPERLEETRE - - - - - - - - (16,308) (16,308)

expense for the year

Recognition of equity-settled share-

R LERREH AR

based payment expenses of

BENRAAERZATE - - - - - 18,16 - - - 18,16
3 (E36(0)

the share option scherme of the
Company (Note 36(a])

Recognition of equify-seﬁ\ed shore-

based payment expenses of

3250 - - 3250
the share award scheme of the
Company (Note 37(a])
Shares vested under the share aword  1£7
561 . (558¢) ; ; %
scheme (Note 37(a))
At 31 March 2017 2,280,474 35,497 (150,000) 1794972 (46,75) 93,544 5980 255 (12,200) 4,001,767
Loss ond fofal comprehensi e
0ss and total comprehensive FEERNAEELEE ) ) ) _ ) ) ) _ 1285549 1288549
expense for the year
Cap\ta\ reduction BB - 1823317 - - - - - - - 1823317
Issue of righs issue shares BITRRRG 898,780 - - - - - - - - 808780
Transaction costs affributable fo issue P .
FTURROEERANE (4109) - - - - - . - - (41102
of rights ssue shares
Recognition of equity-setfled share- -
S g T
ased payment expenses o
e TARRIHE . . . - - @) . . : @
the share option scheme of the
Company (Note 36(c))
Recogrition of equity-setfled share-
based payment expenses of
1,089 - - 1,089
the share award scheme of the
Company (Note 37(a))
Shares vested under the share aword 1% BHEEERG 334692 B (1,089) - (1329) 11,274
scheme (Note 37(a))
Transfer upon lapse of share option (65,099) - - 65099
At 31 Morch 2018 3,068,152 1,858,814 (150,000) 1794970 (13,063) 26,970 5980 25 (1247,276) 5344106
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

46.

COMPANY (Continued)

The special reserve of the Company represented the
difference between the aggregate of the net asset value

of, and shareholder’s loan to, Paul Y. Management
Contracting amounting to HK$250,000,000 and the issue
value of the shares of HK$400,000,000 as consideration
for the acquisition of Paul Y. Management Contracting in
prior years.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

45. KRB MBI E (1)

ANBZ R REIEEEFERRTREER TR
A81250,000,0008 Tt IR ER E A AR ZE T
{E74400,000,00078 7t & 10 (1E BB 1EF E B EE R
EERTIREZRE) 2 =58,

46. AMEZYEECBRBHR

TR AEERARELHEL 2 BE 2, &
BIREOFReEH, ARELIFEECERELHR
TREBEMLHHRRSRBRUMUMNARE 2R
ERESRBRNEAMEBETIFERERNEZEE,

Interest
payable
and loan
management
Loan from fee and Bank
a subsidiary of transaction and other Convertible
a shareholder  costs payable borrowings bonds Total
FERH B R
— AR FENER
—REM S EREN RITN
NEMERR L3 BA HhERR  mlERES w5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TE7T TETT TETT TETT
(Note 31)
(B 5£31)
RTE—tF
At 1 April 2017 == 32,000 60,388 3,948,354 576,707 4,617,449
Financing cash inflows BIEIHE TR 43,000 - 1,853,840 - 1,896,840
Financing cash outflows &R (203,983) (1,658,640) - (1,862,623)
Interest expenses and
loan mopnogemenf fee EW%EZ%‘J%%%
. RENERB N 285,667 - 107,904 393,57
and transaction costs N !
i d during the year GRES
incurre g y
At 31 March 2018 K—=—/\F=A 75,000 142,072 4,143,554 684,611 5,045,237

=+—H
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E_E—/\F=A="1—

HIEFE

47. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group disposed
of its entire interest in an associate, FiE — HE—EE T
F2EPE/NT], for a consideration of HK$32,219,000 and a
gain on disposal of an associate has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 2017. The consideration for the disposal was included
in trade and other debtors, deposifs and prepayment as at
31 March 2017 and 2018 and has been received after the

48.

end of the reporting period.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT

OPERATIONS

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as

at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary
[ EUNSEZY

Challenge Shore Limited

China Earth Limited
EHERAF
Corless Limited

Euro Dynasty Limited

Falloncroft

South Shore Management
Limited (formerly known as
The 15 Management Limited)

HEEEERLE
([FRE+=EEBRLE)

The 13 Management Ltd.

T=EE-ABRLT

Manlink Limited

New Concordia

i

47.

48.

FTEIERERS
REBEE_E—tF=F=+—HLEE, x&EEH
E-BRENTPE_FE-—BEEIREERA T2
ERRRHE, 1U1832,219,0008 7T, WHREE —_F—+t
FoR =t —HULEFEZGEBRAEREREHE—T
BENBeBAN, R_E—tER_ZE—N\F=H
—+—H, HEREBHFABZ MEMEKFIE. 5]
& N FEIFIB P AR & BR R #k W (o),

FEMBRE. BERE.
#

GELENGEXRHE

() KRB EFEMBRANR_F—N\ER_F—LF

ZR=+—HZFBEOT:

Issued and
Place of fully pai
. aceo . Yy Pmd Percentage of issued share capital/
|ncorporohon/ share cep\fcﬂ/ A . )
registration/ registered capital/ a3 gﬂr%gﬁegigg;gl/;g?zg D
operation capital RITBA/EINRA/ B 7
Wi/ 5m/ Eééf:&%%ﬁE%K/ held by the subsidiaries atfributable to fhg Group  Principal activity
SEME HMER/EX WENERE FRERE TEXH
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-0\E ZE-tF ZE-\f ZE-tE
% % % %
British Virgin Islands US$I ordinary share 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
(v = EER REER
EEEHE
(ZBRES)
Hong Kong HKS$! ord@ry share 100 100 5176 5176 Investment holding
&R ErEER RERR
BVI USS2 ordinary sbores 100 100 5176 5176 Investment holding
EBRUHE = EER RERR
BVI US$3 or(ﬂngry shcres 100 100 5176 5176 Investment holding
EBRUHE EREER RERR
BVI 5,400,000,000 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
ERERUME ordinary shares of pTesponlil
no par value
5,400,000,000%
BEESER
Hong Kong HKSI ordinary share 100 100 100 100 Management and
EE 1BTEER secrefu\ric| services
SERWERS
Macau MOP%[OOO\/cqp'\fd 100 100 100 100 Management and
B 95,0008M % EX secrefafio| services
EERNERS
BVI Ussi o@i[ary share 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
RERUHE IETEER BEEK
Macau MOP25,000 capital 100 100 100 100 Hotel development
A 95,0002 ER BERE
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

48. TEMBRE. BERE.
#(18)

BELEREEERE

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as (o) ARRAFEMBLARANRS—N\ERZE—LE
at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are as follows: (Continued) —B=+—HzHEBEOT . @)
Issued and
P\oce of . fll qud Percentage of issued share capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ i ) )
regjstration/ registered capifal/ a3 qﬂreﬁgﬁegd Cg:gl//cg‘;lzé— IND
operation capital WITHA/ERA/ B 75
Name of subsidiary ﬁXﬁ/EH/ Ei’iﬂ:&@i@ﬂﬁﬁ/ held by the subsidiaries atfributable to the Group ~ Principal activity
ol =UNSTE2Y EESky HMER/ER l=YNSES2E) AREEE TEXE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“EF-\E “E-tF ZE-\F “E-+tf
% % % %
Paul Y. (E & M) Contractors ~ Hong Kong HK$60,000,000 99.9999 99.9999 51.7599 517599 Provision of electrical,
Limited —é% ordinory shares mechanical and bui|ding
RERETEBRAT 60,000,000 services
BLEER REBHIZERE
Paul Y. Builders Group Limited  Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 5176 5176 Investment holding
FERECEEARENT EE WETEBR RERR
HK$1,000,000
non-voting deferred
shares (Note (i) below)
1,000,000 10
FEERTLR
(P
Paul Y. Builders Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000,000 100 100 5176 5176  Building construction
REESBRLT &5 ordinary shares BFES
200,000,000 7T
LER
Paul Y. Curtain Wall and Hong Kong HKS$2 ordinary shares 100 100 51.76 5176 Trading and installation of
Aluminium Works Company ~ &7 VETEER building materiols
Limited (formerly known as BEMNEZ RER
Paul Y. Building Materials
Company Limited)
REERRETRE
PRRE (517 Paul
Y. Building Materials
Company Limited)
Paul Y. Construction & Hong Kong HK$390,000,000 100 100 5176 5176  Building construction and
Engineering Co. Limited &5 ordinary shares specialist works
RERRIRERLT 390,000,000/ 70 BFRENSRIR
LER
Paul Y. Construction & Singapore SGD4,500,000 100 100 51.76 5176 Construction
Engineering Pte. Limited R ordinary shares BRTRE
4,500,000 17T
LER
Paul Y. Construction and Moalaysia RM1,000,000 100 100 51.76 51.76  Construction
Engineering Sdn. Bhd. ERAS ordinary shares BATRE
100000058 E &Mk
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

48. TEMBAE. BERNE. EEERGERTE
#(58)

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as (o) RRBEFEMBLRENZZT—N\FERIEZFT—LF
at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are as follows: (Continued) —B=+—HzHEBEOT . @)
Issued and
P\oce of . fll qud Percentage of issued share capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ i ) )
regjstration/ registered capifal/ a3 qﬂreﬁgﬁegd Cg:gl//cg‘;lzé— IND
operation capital WITHA/ERA/ B 75
Name of subsidiary ﬁXﬁ/EH/ Ei’iﬂ:&@i@ﬂﬁﬁ/ held by the subsidiaries atfributable to the Group ~ Principal activity
ol =UNSTE2Y EESky HMER/ER l=YNSES2E) AREEE TEXE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\FE “E-tE ZE-\F “E-tE
% % % %
Paul Y. Construction (China) The PRC RMBI120,000,000 100 100 51.76 5176 - Civil engineering and
Limited i registered capital building construction
RERE (PE) BRAF AE#120,000,00070 IARTEREFTRSE
HHER
Paul Y. Construction Company, Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 5176 5176 Civil engineering, building
Limifed &B VETEER construction and
RERZBRL investment holding
HK$50,000,000 IATE BFEEK
non-voting preferred REZR
shares (Note (i) below) - . - .
50,000,000/
ERERERR
D)
Paul Y. Construction Holdings ~ Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 5176 5176 Investment holding
Limted &A VATEBER RERK
FEREEEBRENT
Paul Y. Construction BVI US$50,002 100 100 51.76 5176  Investment holding
International Limited RERUBE ordinary shares WEER
50,000% & &K
Paul Y. Contracting Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary shares 100 100 51.76 5176 Construction
&% 1005 EER BETRE
Paul Y. Facilities Management  Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 51.76 5176 Facilities management
Co, Limited &5 AT EER  senvices
RERMERERE LT RIEERRHE
Paul Y. Finance L|m|fed Hong Kong HKS ordinary share 100 100 5176 5176 Provision of finance
REREBRENF BE e EER RMRE
Paul Y. Foundation (Mocau) Macau MOP25,000 capital 100 100 5176 5176 Civil engineering and
Limited il 95,0002 5 &R foundation works
REME (£FY) BIELT TARTRRMETRE
Paul Y. Foundation Holdings ~ BVI Ussi ord'mory share 100 100 5176 5176 Investment holding
Limited EBRIHE IETEER RERR
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

48. TEMBAE. BERNE. EEERGERTE
#(58)

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as (o) RRBEFEMBLRENZZT—N\FERIEZFT—LF
at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are as follows: (Continued) =HB=4+—HZFBUT: (8
Issued and
P\oce of . fll qud Percentage of issued share capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ i i )
regjstration/ registered capifal/ a3 qﬂreﬁgﬁegd Cg:gl//cg‘;lzé— IND
operation capital WITHA/ EEA/ B T
Narme of subsidiary ﬁXﬁ/EH/ Ei’iﬂ:&%ﬁi@ﬂﬁﬁ/ held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group ~ Principal activity
KBLZLHE B2y EMEs/Er  KBATSE FATRE | TEER
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\F “E-tE ZE-\F "E-tE
% % % %
Paul Y. Foundation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 5176 5176 Civil engineering and
1%%%%%&%@& —é% ordinary shares foundation works
10,000,000/ 7T TATERHETR
LER
Paul Y. General Contractors Hong Kong HK$500,000,000 100 100 5176 5176 Civil engineering and
Limited E ordinary shcrej building construction
REEREEERLT 500,000,000 70 IATERETRS
LER
Paul Y. Interior Contractors Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 5176 5176 Interior decoration works
Limited 5E AT T ER and services
FERGTEEREAT ERREIERRS
Paul Y. Management (Macau)  Hong Kong HKS$1 ordinary share 100 100 51.76 5176 Management and
Limited ) &5 BBk secretarial services
RESE (B 5RLE BERWERS
Paul Y. Management BVI US$2,000 100 100 5176 5176 Investment holding
Confrodmg Group lelfed EBRUEE ordinary shares REEH
RERRTEEEEARA 2,000 T E &R
Paul Y. Management L\mlfed Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 5176 5176  Manogement and
REEEERLNT &5 ETEER secrefarial services
EERWERE
Paul Y. Plant Hire Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 5176 5176 Trading and letting of
RERWAEBREAT EA AT EER plant and machinery B
BRLHBEERAE
Paul Y. Project Management  Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 51.76 5176 Project management
International Lim'\fed &A VETEER services and investment
FREEBTIREEEER NG holding
BEEERENR
REZR
Paul Y. Specialist Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100 51.76 5176 Construction
A ?3: ordinary shares iﬁ:ﬁz
1000 T EER
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 48. FEMBRF. BENE. SECEREGEEHE
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT ¥} (8)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as (o) KRB FEMBREN_E—N\ER_E—CFE
at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are as follows: (Continued) =B=+—HxZ=HE0TFT : (8
Issued and
Place of fully paid ) )
incorporation/ share capital/ Percentage of issued share capital/

registered capital/capitol

oot ool oaRs/EREL/EECEAY
Name of subsidiary mi/5m/ DEILEERE/ held by the subsidiaries atfributable to the Group ~ Principal activity
WE A E4E SR HRER/ER WE L ERE FRERE TEXH
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\FE “E-tE ZE-\F “E-tE
% % % %
PY Construction (Macau) Macau MOP25,000 capital 100 100 51.76 5176 Construction
Limited i 95,000 & &L BEIR
RERZEZ (BF)
BRRF
PYE BVI HK$122,055,899.60 N/A N/A 51.76 5176  Investment holding
REREZ RERUED ordinary shares Nl TER RELZK
192,055,899.607 7T
=pelid
PYE General Contractors Macau MOP25,000 capital 100 100 51.76 51.76  Construction
(Macau) Limited Pl 95,0002 ER BREIRE
BREERAEREAT
Unistress Concrete Products Hong Kong HK$200,000 100 100 51.76 5176 Manufacturing, trading
(HK) Limited &5 ordinary shares and installation of
BRatas (&R 900,000%7¢ concrefe products and
BRAE LER construction works
ERIERHE 5
REFURBRETRE
HK$1,000,000 100 100 51.76 5176
non-voting deferred
shares (Note (i) below)
1,000,000/ 7T
ERERELR
S GED)
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are as follows: (Continued)
All of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company.

Notes:

(i) The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are
not entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends
for any financial year and are, on winding up or
otherwise, only entitled out of the surplus assets of
the company to a return of the copifo| after a total
sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been
distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of
the company.

(i) The holders of the non-voting preferred shares are
not entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends
unless the net profits of the company available
for dividends exceed HK$100,000,000,000
in which case they should be entitled to fixed
non-cumulative dividends at the rate of 5% per
annum for any financial year and are, on winding
up, only entitled out of the surplus assets of the
company to a return of the capital after a total sum
of HK$10,000,000,000 has been distributed to
the holders of the ordinory shares of the company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group as at
31 March 2018 and 2017 which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
|eng’rh

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at the
end of the reporting period or at any time during both

years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group.
The principal activities of these subsidiaries, whose
place of incorporation/registration/operation are
mainly in Hong Kong or BVI, are construction, property
deve|opmenf management, other business, investment

holding or inactive.

48. TEMBRE. BERE.

AELERNGEXRFE
#(58)

() ARBEEWBRINR_F-—N\ERZF—CF
ZR=+—HZHBWOT : (@
ERPREM B AR EHEA N B BB,

FREE -

() HHEERERIELERRSE AEERE, 75
ﬁ@‘ém}ﬁﬁﬁﬁifwﬁ%, BERERE
AN BERFNEAMB R T IREE
1oooooooooooooo;§m%.& NEIR=PE:Y
HENEHRBRGEEZELT, BERESE
Ao

(i) WEEIREEELRSTE ANEREE, THE
BERK S, BRIFFZA B AIMEIR EFF &
100,000,000,00075 70, fEUtIER T,
ERBTAVEFEER—IEFE A5%[E
EIFRBRE, BHEEEEAN ,amﬁ%

iﬁz%@%ﬁlo,ooo,ooo,ooo%n%DZ B
HEANREBRGEELEBRT, %ﬁ_iﬁgiﬁ
o

U EBRMIIAESHRAETEREALEN_F
—N\ERTE—CFZA=+T—HXBHEEZLR
SENBLAE. EFRN, FHEMBNBLATCE
FHE BRI o

RE|BEIRRNMETE 2 ERRERN, BHEHS
RNEER ERERE S

RE|BEER, AR HEEHAEEMELIFBEK
MEMNE L B, ZEMBLS ML/ M, E
BHETEEEENRBRLES, MEHHER

T2 MEBEREE. HMXER. REERIEE
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly

owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material

non-controlling interests:

48. TEMBAE. BERNE. EEERGERTE

#(58)

(b) HEEERFZRER ZIFEEMB LR ZFRE

TREFFEEE I ERERCAEEIEF2EW
BREZEHRE

Proportion of ownership of
issued ordinary share capital

held by non-controlling

interests Profit allocated to
Place of Principal place ElSuity s yasca s non- confrong inferests  Accumulated non-controlling
Name of subsidiary incorporation of business BT ERRA NEEFER interests
MBLELHE BT TR BTG T&ﬁzmﬂ ESEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
e A =
- ’ ” HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
’ ’ TERn TER TER FET
PYE BVI Hong Kong 48.24 48.94 3,421 4,335 314,763 303,135
frERE EBEIHE &2
Individually immaterial subsidiaries - - 37103
with non-con?ro”'\ng interests
BIFERER R
FEANBAT
3,42 4335 34763 340038
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 48. FEMBLE. MERT. GECENEGEERKE

ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT £ (58)

OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have (b) EEERFTRIERCIELEBEWB R ZFHE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) (3B)
Summarised financial information in respect of the BEERIEREDR CAEENBREICHBE
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling EHLAIN ™, U T HBERBEREEEN NS M
interests is set out below. The summarised financial HIHET ~ =58,

information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.

PYE IREEEZE
2018 2017
—E-\&F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER F i
Non-current assets IERENEE 233,010 246,753
Currents assets AEEE 4,756,612 427,763
Current liabilities mEEE (4,026,727) (3,461,304)
Non-current liabilities JEREEE (6.836) (6,134)
Equity attributable to owners of PYE (REEZERE \E(LER 956,059 907,078
Revenue WA 6,799,529 6,953,828
Profit for the year FRRF 31,966 60,161
Profit attributable to owners of PYE IREZEEE NE(LEF] 31,966 60,161
Other comprehensive income (expense) REZXEHES AEHEM 17015 (1,144)
attributable to owners of PYE 2EKE (B ’ '
Other comprehensive income (expense) A
FEHM2EWE FI) 17,015 (11,144)

for the year
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

48 TEMBAE. BERNE. SELRNGEXRBE
#(18)

(b) HEEERIFZRER ZIFEEMB LR ZFHE

material non-controlling interests (Continued) €5
PYE (Continued) IREEEZE (18)
2018 2017
—F—N\F “E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET
o ) g TE(l L
Total comprehensive income attributable to T%ﬁ@%?ﬁﬁ/\ﬁfﬁiﬁ 48,981 49017
owners of PYE Eay =
Total comprehensive income attributable to the 15 ZE 12 22 JEI AR FE LS FE (L
non-controlling interests of PYE S EWHIRER ) )
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EWGIERE 48,981 49,017
% A ,‘%M
Net cash from (used in) operating activities Xsﬁfﬁﬁ,ﬁg%; EXBZ 32,155 (44,133)
Net cash used in investing activities BRiREEoIRe R85 (91,678) (294,563)
Net cash from financing activities RERMEBEH RS 185,093 93,747
Net cash inflows (outflows) BEARA CRH) 258 125,570 (244,949)

(c) Particulars of the Company'’s principal associates as
at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

regjstration/

operation
Name of associate ML/ |/ Registered capital
Eri=yNSTE R SRR HEA
Zhong Yu - Paul Y. Project The PRC US$500,000 registered

Management Company e

Limited 500,000 %77
TRPFRETRER GAEEN
EBERLA (FxIsE)

The above associate is held by the Company indirectly.

Note: This company is sino-foreign equity joint venture

company.

() ARBEFBHERTDR _F—N\ER_F—EF
ZR=+—HZHRBUOT:

Percentage of registered capitall

capital (Note below)

HERzEDY
held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group ~ Principal activity
WELTSE FEEES TEES
2018 2017 2018 2017
“EN\E EtF ZB-\E _E-tF
% % % %
40 40 20.7 90.7 Project management and
consultancy services
BEEELEERE
Babui: = l/N=I

Z/NCIIEE-SS R
o

HEBEENT,
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 48. TEMBAE. BERNE. EEERGERTE
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT #(58)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(d) Particulars of the Company's principal joint ventures (d) ARBFTEGECLEN_E—N\ER_E—tFE
as at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are as follows: —B=4+—HxZEHBWT:
Place of Percentage of issued share capital/
incorporation/ Issued ond fully paid registered capital/ capital
regjstration/ share capital/ regjstered BRARA/AHMER/BECENL
operation capital/capital L ]
Narme of joint venture Wﬁ/ﬁfﬂﬁ/ E%ﬁ&%ﬁﬁ%$/ held by the subswdiones attributable to the Group Principal activity
BEOELE ET HES B DL AR B
2018 2017 2018 2017
B\ “FtF ZE-N\E “FLF
% % % %
Paul Y. - Lian Beng JV Pte. Ltd.  Singapore 56D300,000 50 50 25.88 2588 Construction
b ordinary shares BRTE
300,000 FTT
EEk
Paul Y. - Omas Joint Venture  Macau MOP100,000 50 50 25.88 2588  Construction
Company Limifed ] capital ERTIZ
RE-RTHERRAT 100,000 ZFIEER
MIEREEERLT The PRC RMB53,000,000 50 50 25.88 9588  Investment holding
] registered capital RERE
AEH 53,000,000 70
Gal=EN
TNAHREFEERAT  The PRC RMBI0,000,000 50 50 95.88 95,88 Property holding
e registered capital MERE
AEH10,000,000 70
&L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
ECE—/\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(e) Particulars of the Company's principal joint
operations as at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are as

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ond fully paid
registration/ share capital/regjstered
operation capital/capital
Narme of joint operation xﬁ Eﬂjf/ EééF&%ErE§L$/
SEEEAE R HRER/EX
Laing O' Rourke - Hsin Chong Hong Kong (Note )
- Paul Y. Joint Venture 5 (I3H)
Laing O’ Rourke - Hsin Chong Hong Kong (Note 1)
- Paul Y. (WKCD) Joint Venture &7 (FE)
Paul Y. - Omas Joint Venture Macau (Note1)
RE-EEHELT &3 iog3)
Paul Y. - Yau Lee Joint Venture Macau (Notes 1and 9)
A (EER2)
Note 1: There is no issued share capital/registered
capital/capital for the joint operations as
they are unincorporated bodies.
Note 2: During the year, the Group acquired certain

assets and liabilities of the joint operation
from the other partner of joint operation
while the joint operation partner shall be
jointly and severally liable in respect of
hidden defects in the construction works. In
the opinion of the directors, the transaction
is not material to the consolidated financial
statements as a who|e, and no separate
disclosure note to be made.

The above tables list the subsidiories, associate, joint
ventures and joint operations of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other associates, joint ventures
and joint operations Wou|o|, in the opinion of the direcfors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
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SRFIRERMTEE

48. TEMBAE. BERNE. EEERGERTE
#(58)
() ARBXEBEERBN _FT—/\ER_F—tHF

ZR=+—HZHFBEOT:

Percentage of issued share capital/

registered capital/capital
BRTRA/GHRELR/ EAED T
held by the subsidiaries atfributable to the Group Princioal activi
HELTS FEEEE sy
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\E EtE ZE-\& “E+E
% % % %
225 225 1165 1165 Civil engineering
TATRE
225 225 1.65 165 Civil engineering
TARTHE
50 50 25.88 25.88  Construction
BRTRE
60 60 31.06 3106 Construction
BETE
i1 HBREZFLREAIPEAERS, RUEGER
B BRITRAGHRELRER,
et £, A£E WAM%T&EWE%#W%AM

EHBETEERER, EXBRHEHR
B R =Rl 2R TIEC %fﬁ?&ﬁa%/\o =5
SRR, ERNXZHRGMBRRERMS
WM EsE, BATIEREIINE,

%%E@%Mﬁ%%‘%ﬁﬁﬂ%I%%%K%EE%%
YHENAEBEREDEEFECAEERB L

H&&é\ﬁ \ DE@%&/\A*%T%O %%DU%J D$§‘J
HthENT). 828 bEXERGEXHTZERKD
EVAR=
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TR

For the year ended 31 March
BE-R=t+—HIZFE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
“E-RE ZE-RF ZBRE “E—tF ZBN\E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
RESULTS ES
Revenue ON 8,579,708 9,303,418 6,811,519 6,197,109 6,799,529
(Loss) profit before tax BriREl (B518) a7 (2,906) 95,944 (210,332) (32,451)  (1,570,040)
Income tax expense ISR (27,036) (33,856) (22,484) (7,773) (334)
Loss for the year FEBE (29,9492) (7,912) (232,816) (40,224) (1,570,374)
(Loss) ‘profif for the year SR (B18) B
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ES/NCIEZE DN (50,586) (29,883) (197,361) (44,559) (1,573,795)
Non-controlling interests FEPRRR RS 20,644 21,971 (35,455) 4,335 3,421
(29,942) (7,912) (239,816) (40,204)  (1,570,374)
At 31 March
A=HA=+—H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
ZEFE ZS5—HF 5 F F—tF IBF-N\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BENAR
Total assets REE 9,003,511 19,375,203 19,546,594 13,523,795 13,945,190
Total liabilities Y =KET (4,649,482)  (6,087,387)  (6,496,199) (7,503,1M)  (8,485,823)
Total equity RRER 4,354,029 6,287,816 6,050,395 6,020,684 5,459,367
Equity attributable to: TEIGHER
Owners of the Company RNFHEBA 3,983,236 5,885,907 5,709,382 5,680,446 5,144,604
Non-controlling interests FEPE R 370,793 401,909 341,013 340,238 314,763
4,354,029 6,287,816 6,050,395 6,020,684 5,459,367
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Peter Lee Coker Jr.
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
Walter Craig Power

James Chiu, OBE, JP

Lee Chack Fan,
GBS, SBsS, JP

lain Ferguson Bruce

Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Chairman (Executive Director)
Deputy Chairman (Executive Director)
Chief Executive Officer

(Executive Director)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

=t

NI

AUDIT COMMITTEE

James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman)
Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP
lain Ferguson Bruce

Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP (Chairman)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
lain Ferguson Bruce
Francis Goutenmacher

FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

lain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman)
Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Walter Craig Power

DISCLOSURES COMMITTEE

lain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman)
Peter Lee Coker Jr.
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

lain Ferguson Bruce

=y

Peter Lee Coker Jr. FE(HITESE)
AsR BIF/E (BITEE)
Walter Craig Power TTEHEZE (BITER)
A, OBE, JP B ITEE
)=, GBS, SBS, JP B ITEE
mEL BIIFHITEE
Francis Goutenmacher B IFHITEER
P& 8 BIIFHITEE
BEREZEE

B, OBE, JP(T/E)

Z )55, GBS, SBS, JP

L

Francis Goutenmacher

e R

FNEEE

HEHS, OBE, JP(F/E)

SR

)55, GBS, SBS, JP

REEEE

=555, GBS, SBS, JP(E/%)

=R

L

Francis Goutenmacher

MBERICEEREES

mELT (EE)

Peter Lee Coker Jr.

SR

Walter Craig Power

WEELZEE

mELT (FE)

Peter Lee Coker Jr.

=R

TtEERELEE

WS, OBE, JP(F/Z)

ER

et
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

JNS =Y
INBIE
PYE COMMITTEE RERXEZET
James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman) HHS, OBE, JP(F/E)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom NS
Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP %255, GBS, SBS, JP
lain Ferguson Bruce HET
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE WITEEE
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Chairman) Peter Lee Coker Jr. (/%)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom E=
Walter Craig Power Walter Craig Power
Richard Lico BE+7H
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER MF5HRE
Richard Lico 2 iyl
COMPANY SECRETARY REWE
Mui Ching Hung, Joanna MBERAL
SOLICITORS 72EM
Conyers Dill & Pearman (Bermuda) Conyers Dill & Pearman (5 522%E)
DLA Piper Hong Kong (Hong Kong) BRERENERPT (BF)

Leonel Alves Law Firm (Macau)

Reed Smith Richards Butler (Hong Kong)
Winston & Strawn (Hong Kong)

AUDITOR
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Banco Nacional Ultramarino

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China, Macau Branch

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd, Hong Kong Branch
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd, Macau Branch

BNP Paribas

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited

DBS Bank (China) Limited, Beijing Branch

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
OCBC Wing Hang Bank, Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited, Beijing Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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Leonel Alves Law Firm (Z#F9)
BB AEETT (&5
Winston & Strawn (Z &)

BB
e -MERS E5TETT

FEERIRT

RPEFIRIT

FEIRTT (B8) BRRAE
PEISRTT, EPIDTT
BRITRNERRE, HED
Z@IBITRIMBRAE, BFID
EE ERRERTT

FREIEEERIRTT (ZN) R BRAE
PERT (BEER) BREAE

ERRT (PE) BRAE, R
ERIET (8) BRRE
BERTHRLF

tRE A ER1T () BIERF
thE T HER1T (RF) R BRAE
EB/KFRITERRT
REIRITARANE

REERTT (PR BRRAE, IERDIT
BB LBESRITERAT

T
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NSTE U

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
601, Hutchison House

10 Harcourt Road

Central

Hong Kong

Tel : +852 2577 6113

Fax: +852 2577 6213

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO8

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.southshore-holdings.com

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange 577
Reuters 0577 . HK
Bloomberg 577 : HK

SOUTH SHORE

SR
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

FEE MR
=5

RIRE 281058
OIEGYNETES

EE5E | +852 2577 6113
EE © +852 2577 6213

108 R B AR R

ol

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road
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Bermuda
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ERAERFRI835
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